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Botswana Development Corporation
Fairscape Precinct,
Plot 70667, Fairgrounds
P/Bag 160, Gaborone
Tel: (267) 365 1300
Fax: (267) 391 3539
Email: enquiries@bdc.bw
Website: www.bdc.bw

2YHUYLHZ�RI�%'&
• Established in 1970 as a private company
• Wholly owned by the Government of Botswana
• Provides debt and equity funding to investors (Local 

and foreign) for commercially viable projects
• Funding starts from P30 Million
• Has made a mandate to invest outside of Botswana’s 

borders
• Promotes and facilitates economic development and 

GLYHUVLîFDWLRQ
• Investments across 10 industries including 

manufacturing, services, property, agriculture
• Group balance sheet of P5.1 Billion and a portfolio worth 

over P3.8 Billion

2XU�PDQGDWH
The Corporation derives its mandate from its 
incorporation documents such as the constitution. The 
Corporation’s constitution, as per the Companies Act 
2003, sets out its objectives, the issue and transfer 
of shares, declaration of dividends, powers reserved 
for the shareholder and meetings, and powers and 
duties of the Directors including meetings and 
appointment provisions. As enshrined in its mandate, 
the Corporation’s focus is to promote and facilitate 
the economic development of Botswana by identifying 
opportunities for development of new and existing 
industrial, commercial, and agricultural business 
undertakings as well as property development and the 
preparation, implementation and execution of plans for 
the establishment or improvement of such undertakings 
by whatever means appropriate. This includes but 
QRW� OLPLWHG� WR� GLUHFW� îQDQFLDO� LQYHVWPHQW� LQ� VXFK�
XQGHUWDNLQJV��SURFXUHPHQW�RI�îQDQFLDO�RU�PDQDJHPHQW�
assistance, active participation therein with persons, 
ORFDO�RU�H[WHUQDOO\�EDVHG�îUPV�RU�FRPSDQLHV�

3ULQFLSDO�2EMHFWLYH�DQG�'HYHORSPHQW�
2XWFRPHV
Funding provided to businesses is directed at driving 
WKH�LQGXVWULDOLVDWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRXQWU\�E\�SURYLGLQJ�îQDQFLDO�
assistance to investors with commercially viable 
projects.

3ULQFLSDO�2EMHFWLYH
To become a leading innovative and sustainable 
GHYHORSPHQW�îQDQFH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�

'HYHORSPHQW�2XWFRPHV
• Pioneer new industries
• Unlock value in existing industries
• Stimulate private sector growth and foster linkages 

with the local and foreign industry
• 'ULYH�GLYHUVLîFDWLRQ�DQG�H[SRUWV
• &UHDWH�VLJQLîFDQW�HPSOR\PHQW

• Generate wealth from outside the country

9DOXHV
• Enterprising
• Collaboration
• Integrity

3URGXFWV
• Equity Funding
• Debt Funding
• Mezzanine Funding

“As enshrined in its mandate, the Corporation’s focus is to promote 
and facilitate the economic development of Botswana by identifying 

opportunities for development of new and existing industrial, 
commercial, and agricultural business undertakings as well as 

property development and the preparation, implementation and 
execution of plans for the establishment or improvement of such 

undertakings by whatever means appropriate “

Mission
To provide, facilitate and support 
funding of commercially viable 
enterprises in order to contribute to 
the sustainable development and 
economic growth of the Botswana 
economy.

Vision
To be an innovative and sustainable 
GHYHORSPHQW�îQDQFH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�
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7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�KDV�D�ULFK�DQG�GLYHUVH�KLVWRU\�DV�
WKH�*RYHUQPHQWªV�PDLQ�LQYHVWPHQW�DUP�PDQGDWHG�
WR�SLRQHHU�LQGXVWULHV�DQG�GHYHORS�WKH�HFRQRPLF�
ODQGVFDSH�RI�WKH�FRXQWU\��$V�WKH�\HDU�RI�%'&ªV�
JROGHQ�MXELOHH�GUDZV�WR�DQ�HQG��ZH�UHïHFW�RQ�WKH�
PLOHVWRQHV�WKDW�KDYH�FRQWULEXWHG�WR����\HDUV�RI�
KHULWDJH�DQG�WKH�OHJDF\�RI�LPSDFW�WKDW�ZH�KDYH�
EHFRPH�UHQRZQHG�IRU��
It is with swelling pride that we look back on the founding years of the Corporation established in line 
with the National Development Plan to see Botswana through to a new era of growth, industrialisation 
and prosperity for all.  With the R20,000 seed funding for initial operating costs being received in 
January 1971 from the British Council, BDC saw to opening the doors of Botswana to investment 
opportunities from abroad. The country having just discovered the world’s most precious of stones, gem 
diamonds, Botswana was primed to become a global success story. The Corporation took on to pioneer 
RXU�îUVW�QDWLRQDO�DLUOLQH��$LU�%RWVZDQD��VR�DV�WR�FUHDWH�D�GRRUZD\�IRU�RXU�FRXQWU\�WR�KRVW�WKH�ZRUOG��

Following the establishment of the aviation industry, BDC pioneered complimentary industries including 
the car rental industry via Avis and the hospitality industry that has seen continued investment 
WKURXJKRXW�RXU�îIW\�\HDUV�DV�ZH�VRXJKW�QRW�RQO\�WR�SLRQHHU�EXW�WR�XQORFN�YDOXH�LQ�WKH�VHFWRU��7KH�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�KDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�%RWVZDQDªV�îUVW�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�KRWHO�JURXS��VRPH�SURXGO\�%RWVZDQD�OX[XU\�
brands and other investment properties namely Cresta Marakanelo, Mashatu, Holiday Inn (now Avani), 
Peermont Group and Kwalape Safari Lodge over the course of its operation. 
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7KH� &RUSRUDWLRQªV� SURSHUW\� SRUWIROLR� LQFOXGHV�
UHVLGHQWLDO�SURSHUW\�LQYHVWPHQWV�QDPHO\�
1RWZDQH� &RXUWV�� 5HGVTXDUH�� 6XQVHW� 0HZV� DQG�
*UDQGSDOP� 0HZV�� 2WKHU� GHYHORSPHQWV� LQ� WKH�
SURSHUW\� VHFWRU� LQ� WKH� PRUH� UHFHQW� SDVW� LQFOXGH�
)DLUVFDSH�3UHFLQFW�RQH�RI�%'&ªV�PRVW�SUL]HG�SURMHFWV��
RQH� WKDW� KDV� WUDQVIRUPHG� %RWVZDQDªV� VN\OLQH��
$QRWKHU�SURSHUW\�LQYHVWPHQW�PDGH�E\�%'&�LV�/HWOROH�
/D�5RQD�ZKLFK�IDOOV�XQGHU�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�FRPPHUFLDO�
SURSHUW\�SRUWIROLR��

7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�GHGLFDWLRQ�WR�H[SORULQJ�XQFKDUWHUHG�
WHUULWRU\�DQG�WKH�GULYH�WR�XQORFN�YDOXH�IURP�H[LVWLQJ�
LQGXVWULHV� KDV� EHHQ� WKH� NH\� SURSRQHQW� RI� RXU�
LQYHVWPHQW�VWUDWHJ\��%'&�VDZ�WR�WKH�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�
RI� WKH� PDQXIDFWXULQJ� LQGXVWU\� WKURXJK� FRPSDQLHV�
OLNH�.JDODJDGL�%UHZHULHV�/LPLWHG��6HFKDED�+ROGLQJV��
1RUWH[��3DVGHF��.ZHQD��.ZHQD�5RFOD�DQG�1DPSDN��
7KH� LPSDFW� RI� PDQXIDFWXULQJ� RQ� HPSOR\PHQW��
HFRQRPLF� JURZWK� DQG� WKH� GHYHORSPHQW� RI� RXU�
FRXQWU\� KDV� EHHQ� H[FHSWLRQDO� DV� %RWVZDQD� VRXJKW�
WR�GLYHUVLI\�LQYHVWPHQW�DZD\�IURP�WKH�VROH�IRFXV�RQ�
WKH�PLQLQJ�VHFWRU��

2XU�JURZWK�ZDV�PRVW�QRWDEO\�VHHQ�LQ������ZKHQ�WKH�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�VXUSDVVHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�DQG�UHVHUYHV�RI�
3���P� IRU� WKH�îUVW� WLPH� LQ� LWV�KLVWRU\��$�VLJQLîFDQW�
PLOHVWRQH�DV�%'&�FHOHEUDWHG����\HDUV�RI�RSHUDWLRQ���
7KH� &RUSRUDWLRQªV� LQYHVWPHQW� LQ� WKH� $JULEXVLQHVV�
,QGXVWU\� KDUQHVVHV� WKH� HVVHQFH� RI� 6HWVZDQD�
FXOWXUH�� VXEVLVWHQFH� IDUPLQJ�� DQG� FUHDWHV� ODUJH�
VFDOH� FRPPHUFLDO� DJULFXOWXUDO� VROXWLRQV�� %'&� KDV�
SLRQHHUHG� WKLV� VHFWRU� WKURXJK� WKH�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�RI�
7DODQD� )DUPV� QRZ� OHDVHG� E\� .ZHQDQWOH� DQG� 0LON�
$IULF�D�GDLU\�IDUP�EDVHG�LQ�/REDWVH��

$V� LQGXVWULDOLVDWLRQ� FRQWLQXHG� LQ� %RWVZDQD�� %'&�
VDZ�LW�îW�WR�SLRQHHU�WKH�LQVXUDQFH�LQGXVWU\�DQG�EXLOG�
WKH� îQDQFLDO� VHUYLFHV� VHFWRU� WKURXJK� LWV� VWDNH� LQ�
0HWURSROLWDQ�� %,+/� *URXS�� ,QYHVWHF� DQG� %RWVZDQD�
,QVXUDQFH�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG��7KLV�LQGXVWU\�KDV�VHHQ�
D� IDVW�WUDFNHG� LQFUHDVH� LQ� HFRQRPLF� DFWLYLW\� DQG�
IRUHLJQ�GLUHFW�LQYHVWPHQW��7KH�îUVW�SULYDWH�KHDOWKFDUH�
IDFLOLW\� LQ� %RWVZDQD�� *DERURQH� 3ULYDWH� +RVSLWDO��
ZDV�WKH�îUVW�LQYHVWPHQW�PDGH�E\�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LQ�
HǺRUWV�WR�FUHDWH�D�OHDGLQJ�KHDOWKFDUH�VHFWRU��:H�QRZ�
ERDVW�RI�WKUHH�KHDOWKFDUH�IDFLOLWLHV�XQGHU�RXU�SRUWIROLR�
QDPHO\�*DERURQH�3ULYDWH�+RVSLWDO��6LGLOHJD�3ULYDWH�
+RVSLWDO�DQG�)UDQFLVWRZQ�$FDGHPLF�+RVSLWDO��

7KH� %'&� MRXUQH\� KDV� QRW� EHHQ� ZLWKRXW� LWV�
FKDOOHQJHV�� 7KURXJKRXW� îYH� GHFDGHV� RI� RSHUDWLRQ��
WKH� &RUSRUDWLRQ� GHGLFDWHG� LWVHOI� WR� JURZWK� DQG�
GHYHORSPHQW�� WKLV� VDZ�ERWK� WKH�HVWDEOLVKPHQW� DQG�
WKH�GLVVROYLQJ�RI�FRPSDQLHV��/RVVHV�ZHUH�VHHQ�LQ�RXU�
IRXUWK�GHFDGH�DV�WKH�HǺHFWV�RI�WKH�JOREDO�UHFHVVLRQ�
UHDUHG� WKHLU� KHDG� LQ� %RWVZDQD� DV� ZHOO�� 7KDQNIXOO\�
E\� ������ ZH� ELUWKHG� D� QHZ� %'&� DV� WKH� VWUDWHJLF�
SHULRG�IRU�GRXEOLQJ�EXVLQHVV�HQVXHG��7KLV�ZH�YLHZHG�
DV� RXU� \HDU� RI� WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ� DV� ZH� UHWXUQHG� WKH�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�EDFN�WR�WKH�SURîWDELOLW\�ZH�DUH�SURXG�RI�
WRGD\��

2XU� EXVLQHVV� KDV� EHHQ� WR� EXLOG� %RWVZDQD�� $W� ���
\HDUV�RI�RSHUDWLRQ��ZH�FHOHEUDWH�%RWVZDQDªV�JURZWK�
VWRU\��:H�UHïHFW�RQ�ELUWKLQJ�DQG�JURZLQJ�WKH�SULYDWH�
HQWHUSULVHV� WKDW� KDYH� SDYHG� WKH�ZD\� IRU� HFRQRPLF�
GLYHUVLîFDWLRQ��%'&�KDV�GLOLJHQWO\�ZHDYHG�WKH�VWRU\�
RI� VXVWDLQDEOH� GHYHORSPHQW� DQG� QRZ� ERDVWV� RI�
JURZWK� IURP�WKH� LQLWLDO�3�������WR�D� WRWDO�ZRUWK�RI�
�3����ELOOLRQ�KDYLQJ�LQYHVWHG�LQ�RYHU�����%RWVZDQD�
IRFXVHG�YHQWXUHV�DQG�FUHDWHG�RYHU������MREV��

:H�DUH�SURXG�RI�%RWVZDQDªV�VWRU\�RI�JURZWK�DQG�DUH�
RSWLPLVWLF�DERXW�WKH�SDWK�DKHDG�RI�WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ��,W�
JLYHV�XV� LPPHQVH� MR\�WR�NQRZ�WKDW�GDLO\�%DWVZDQD�
PDNH� XVH� RI� D� SURGXFW� RU� VHUYLFH� WKDW� ZDV� PDGH�
SRVVLEOH�WKURXJK�WKH�LQSXW�DQG�LQYROYHPHQW�RI�%'&��
2XU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�KDV�SHUPHDWHG�HYHU\�PDMRU�LQGXVWU\�
DQG�ZH�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�VRPH�
RI�WKH�FRXQWU\ªV�PRVW�QRWDEOH�FRPSDQLHV��
7KH� WUDFN� UHFRUG� ZH� UHïHFW� RQ� KDV� VHW� D� VROLG�
IRXQGDWLRQ� IRU� DQRWKHU� îIW\� \HDUV� RI� SURJUHVV� DQG�
SURîW�� $V� ZH� PRYH� IRUZDUG� ZLWK� IXUWKHU� LQYHVWLQJ��
ZH�FRQWLQXH� WR�VHHN�VXVWDLQDELOLW\� WKURXJK� IXQGLQJ�
WKH� VROXWLRQV� IRU� WRPRUURZªV� ZRUOG� ¥� WRGD\�� :H�
DUH� FRPPLWWHG� WR� EHLQJ� %RWVZDQDªV� LQYHVWPHQW�
SDUWQHU� RI� FKRLFH� DV� ZH� PD[LPLVH� ORQJWHUP� YDOXH�
IRU� WKH� VKDUHKROGHU� DQG� FUHDWLQJ� ZHDOWK� IRU� IXWXUH�
JHQHUDWLRQV��

:H�KDYH�VHW�DQ�DPELWLRXV�YLVLRQ�IRU�RXU�QH[W�FKDSWHU�
WKDW� ORRNV� LQWR� LQYHVWLQJ� ORFDOO\� LQ� ODUJH� VFDOH�
H[SRUW�RULHQWDWHG� EXVLQHVVHV�� LQYHVWLQJ� JOREDOO\�
LQ� KLJK�UHWXUQ� FRPPHUFLDO� DQG� VWUDWHJLF� SURMHFWV��
LQWHJUDWLQJ� %RWVZDQD� LQWR� WKH� ZRUOG� HFRQRP\�
WKURXJK� FRPPHUFLDO� LQYHVWPHQWV� DQG� SDUWQHUVKLSV�
DQG� SLRQHHULQJ� LQGXVWULHV� DQG� XQORFNLQJ� YDOXH� LQ�
XQWDSSHG�VHFWRUV�DFURVV�%RWVZDQD�
 
:H�ELG�DGLHX�WR����\HDUV�RI�HFRQRPLF�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�
VWHSSLQJ�LQWR�WKH�HUD�RI�HFRQRPLF�WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ��



8 9

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

%276:$1$�'(9(/230(17�&25325$7,21��

DOWN MEMORY LANE

1970 - 2020

1970 

1971 

1972 

1974 

1977 

����
%RWVZDQD�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ��%'&��ZDV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�RQ�$SULO�����������DFFRUGLQJ�WR�VWUDWHJ\�LQ�WKH�
1DWLRQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�RI���������

����
%'&�IXOO\�RSHUDWLRQDO�DV�RI�-DQXDU\�������DIWHU�UHFHLYLQJ�D�GHYHORSPHQW�ORDQ�WR�FRYHU�LQLWLDO�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV�IURP�
WKH�%ULWLVK�&RXQFLO���
7RWDO�LQYHVWPHQWV�VWRRG�DW�5�������ZLWK�5�������UHJLVWHUHG�LQ�WKH�ORDQ�ERRN��

%RWVZDQD�VWLOO�XQGHU�5DQG�0RQHWDU\�$UHD�

����
0U��5��&��6WHSKHQV�DSSRLQWHG�%'&ªV�îUVW�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU��XVKHULQJ�LQ�WKH�ORFDOLVDWLRQ�RI�NH\�SRVLWLRQV��
&RUSRUDWLRQ�UHFRUGHG�D�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�RI�5���������DQG�SDLG�WD[�RI�5���������UHQGHULQJ�LW�RQH�RI�WKH�ODUJHVW�
WD[SD\HUV�LQ�%RWVZDQD�DW�WKDW�WLPH�

����
%RWVZDQD�*RYHUQPHQW�SURYLGHG�D����\HDU�ORDQ�RI�5����PLOOLRQ�LQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�FDVK�UHVHUYHV�
WR�5�����������/RQJ�WHUP�ORDQ�IDFLOLW\�RI�86������PLOOLRQ��DERXW�5����PLOOLRQ��QHJRWLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�%DQN�IRU�
5HFRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�'HYHORSPHQW��PDNLQJ�5����������DYDLODEOH�IRU�IXUWKHU�LQYHVWPHQW��
%'&�UHFRUGHG�UHYHQXH�RI�5���������GHFODUHG�D�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�RI�5��������DQG�FORVHG�WKH�\HDU�ZLWK�D�QHW�SURîW�
RI�5��������

����
0DMRU�VWULGHV�KDYLQJ�EHHQ�PDGH�LQ�WKH�ORFDOLVDWLRQ�RI�NH\�SRVLWLRQV��0U�%�*DRODWKH�ZDV�QRZ�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�ZLWK�FLWL]HQ�ERDUG�PHPEHUV�LQFOXGLQJ�7�6�0DGLVD��%�*�0DNREROH��-�0�1JDQXQX��0�&�7LERQH��DPRQJ�
RWKHUV��
$�PLOHVWRQH�IRU�%'&�ZDV�WKDW�LW�DWWDLQHG�îQDQFLDO�LQGHSHQGHQFH�WKURXJK�LQWHUHVW�DQG�GLYLGHQG�LQFRPH�IURP�LWV�
VXEVLGLDU\�DQG�DǸOLDWHG�FRPSDQLHV�
$�IXUWKHU�PLOHVWRQH�ZDV�WKDW�%'&ªV�)LQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�GHQRPLQDWHG�LQ�3XOD�IRU�WKH�îUVW�WLPH�WKDW�\HDU��
 
����
7KH�ORFDOLVDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU��QRZ�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU���IRU�WKH�îUVW�WLPH�VLQFH�WKH�
HVWDEOLVKPHQW�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LQ�������IURP�0U�.�.XLSHU�WR�0U�0�2�0ROHIDQH���

����
%'&�FHOHEUDWHG�LWV���WK�DQQLYHUVDU\�

����
)LUVW�WLPH�LQ�LWV�KLVWRU\�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�DQG�UHVHUYHV�SDVVHG�WKH�3���P�PDUN��UHDFKLQJ�3�����P��
DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI����SHU�FHQW�RYHU�WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDU�

����
%'&ªV���\HDU�VWUDWHJ\�ZDV�LPSOHPHQWHG��

�����
)LUVW�GLYLGHQG�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�3������PLOOLRQ�SDLG�WR�WKH�VKDUHKROGHU��*RYHUQPHQW�RI�%RWVZDQD

����
%\�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�îYH�\HDU�VWUDWHJ\��%'&�KDG�DFKLHYHG�D�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�RI�3������PLOOLRQ��

����
&RPPHQFHPHQW�RI�D�IRXU�\HDU�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�ZLWK�D�WXUQRYHU�RI�3������PLOOLRQ�DQG�D�QHW�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�RI�3������
PLOOLRQ�VHW�DV�WDUJHWV��7KH�îQDO�\HDU�RI�WKH�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�ZDV�VHW�IRU�������

�����
7KH�\HDU������PDUNHG�WKH�HQG�RI�D�IRXU�\HDU�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�ZKLFK�FRPPHQFHG�LQ�������
%'&�DFKLHYHG�D�WXUQRYHU�RI�3������PLOOLRQ�DQG�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�RI�3������PLOOLRQ��

����
%'&�PDGH�ORVVHV�RI�3������PLOOLRQ�DQG�%'&�*URXS�RI�&RPSDQLHV�PDGH�D�ORVV�RI�3�����PLOOLRQ�

‘13
‘14

‘15
‘17

‘19
‘20

�����
%'&�LQ������PDGH�ORVVHV�RI�3������PLOOLRQ�DQG�%'&�*URXS�RI�&RPSDQLHV�PDGH�D�SURîW�RI�3�����PLOOLRQ��
7KLV�PDUNHG�WKH�WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ�SHULRG�ZKLFK�EUHG�WKH�'7%��VWUDWHJ\��

����
/DXQFK�RI�WKH�����������VWUDWHJ\��0U�%DVKL�*DHWVDORH�DVVXPHV�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRUªV�RǸFH�

����
%'&�UHEUDQGV�WR�D�PRUH�EROG�DQG�VROLG�ORRN�

����
$FKLHYHG�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�JUDGH�FUHGLW�UDWLQJ�RI�%DD����6WDEOH�E\�0RRG\ªV�,QYHVWRUV�6HUYLFH��UHDǸUPHG�LQ�
6HSWHPEHU��������WKLV�PDNLQJ�%'&�WKH�îUVW�ORFDO�FRPSDQ\�WR�DFKLHYH�VXFK�D�UDWLQJ��$FFRUGLQJ�WR�0RRG\ªV��%'&ªV�
UDWLQJV�HQWDLO�D�VWDQGDORQH�FUHGLW�SURîOH�RI�E���ZKLFK�EDODQFHV�ZKDW�0RRG\ªV�UHFRJQLVHV�DV�D�VWURQJ�FRPSDQ\�
VROYHQF\�DQG�OLTXLGLW\�SRVLWLRQ�DJDLQVW�D�KLJK�FRQFHQWUDWLRQ�RI�VWUDWHJLF�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�LQ�ODUJH�HTXLW\�LQYHVWPHQWV�

����
6LQFH������%'&�KDV�EHHQ�LPSOHPHQWLQJ�LWV���<HDU�7UDQVIRUPDWLRQ�6WUDWHJ\�XQGHUSLQQHG�E\�WKH�JRDO�WR�GRXEOH�
WKH�QHW�ZRUWK�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV�������0DUNHG�WKH�îQDO�\HDU�RI��'7%�

����
%'&�&HOHEUDWHV����\HDUV�RI�%XLOGLQJ�%RWVZDQD�

9

50years of Building Botswana

‘87
‘90
’91

‘99
‘02
’04
‘07
‘11
’12
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2XU�%UDQG�3URPLVH�LV�E\�H[WHQVLRQ�WKH�PDQGDWH�RI�RXU�EUDQG��7KH�%'&�
%UDQG�SURPLVH�LV:

7R�SURPRWH�DQG�IDFLOLWDWH�HFRQRPLF�
GHYHORSPHQW�IRU�%RWVZDQD�

%'&� KDV� EHHQ� LQ� H[LVWHQFH� IRU� ��� \HDUV�� 2XU� &RUSRUDWH� %UDQG� YDOXHV�� (QWHUSULVLQJ��
&ROODERUDWLRQ�DQG�,QWHJULW\��DUH�D�EHQFKPDUN�WR�PHDVXUH�WKH�EHKDYLRXU�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�
RI�%RWVZDQD�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�LWV�HPSOR\HHV� 

They are a code by which employees pride themselves on and are known for. Our logo is the visual representation of 
who we are and what we do: a graphic representation of BDC and the important role which we play as a development 
îQDQFH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�

The BDC logo represents four “pillars“of Botswana Development Corporation and a “round table“. The “pillars“element 
UHSUHVHQW�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�FRQWLQXHG�VXSSRUW�DV�ORFDO�DQG�IRUHLJQ�LQYHVWRUV�WKURXJK�SURYLGLQJ�îQDQFLDO�VXSSRUW�WR�
FRPPHUFLDOO\�YLDEOH�SURMHFWV��IRU�WKH�EHQHîW�RI�%RWVZDQDªV�HFRQRPLF�GHYHORSPHQW��7KH�SLOODUV�LGHQWLI\�DQG�UHLQIRUFH�
Botswana Development Corporation as a commercial and industrial development agency that occupies a central and 
responsible position in Botswana. The “roundtable” depicts a discussion type atmosphere where viable partnerships 
are forged, cementing lasting relationships meant to improve the quality of life, and strengthen the Corporation’s 
brand values and promise.

7KH�%RWVZDQD�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ�%UDQG�'LǺHUHQWLDWRU��§<RXU�,QYHVWPHQW�3DUWQHU¨��SXWV�HPSKDVLV�RQ�WKH�PXWXDO�
cooperation and responsibility of both the Corporation and its stakeholders towards a sphere of common interest. It 
depicts Botswana Development Corporation as a leader in equity investments and as an agency that is worthy of its 
stakeholders’ trust to improve their quality of life.

,17(5*5,7<

+RQHVW\

Fairness

$FFRXQWDELOLW\

(TXDOLW\

'HFHQF\

7UDQVSDUHQF\

7UXVWZRUWKLQHVV

(17(535,6,1*

5HVRXUFHIXO

Innovative

Creative

(QWKXVLDVWLF

(QHUJHWLF

,PDJLQDWLYH

6867$,1$%,/,7<

)XWXUH�

)RFXVHG

&UHGLELOLW\

&RKHUHQFH

&RQVLVWHQF\

&200(5&,$/�

)2&86

(ǸFLHQW

3URîW�2ULHQWHG

&RVW�(ǺHFLHQW

3URGXFWLYH

3URIHVVLRQDO

5HOLDEOH

5HVSRQVLYH

&2//$%25$7,21

7HDPZRUN

6\QHUJ\

Cooperation

3DUWQHUVKLS

&RQFHUW

285�%5$1'�3,//$56
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(48,7<�$&&2817('�
INVESTEES

0DUHNLVHWVR�$�0RURJR�:D�5RQD��3W\��/WG
7UDQV8QLRQ��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG

3HHUPRQW�*OREDO�%RWVZDQD��/LPLWHG�
1DPSDN�'LY)RRG�%RWVZDQD�

�3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
7UDQVSRUW�+ROGLQJV�/LPLWHG

0DVKDWX�1DWXUH�5HVHUYH��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG�
,QGXV�+HDOWKFDUH��3W\��/WG�
.DPRVR�$IULFD��3W\��/WG
/HWOROH�/D�5RQD�/LPLWHG

68%6,',$5,(6

)DLUJURXQGV�+ROGLQJV��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
/3�$PXVHPHQW�&HQWUH��3W\��/WG

0DOXWX�(QWHUSULVHV��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
([SRUW�&UHGLW�,QVXUDQFH�DQG�*XDUDQWHH�&RPSDQ\��%RWVZDQD��

�3URSULHWDW\��/LPLWHG
/REDWVH�&OD\�:RUNV��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
&RPPHUFLDO�+ROGLQJV��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG

:HVWHUQ�,QGXVWULDO�(VWDWH��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
%RWVZDQD�+RWHO�'HYHORSPHQW�&RPSDQ\��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG

7DODQD�)DUPV��3URSULHWDU\��/WG
3KDNDODQH�3URSHUW\�'HYHORSPHQW�

�3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
5HVLGHQWLDO�+ROGLQJV�
�3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG�

0LON�$IULF��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG

121��$662&,$7(6
&UDWHV�	�3DOOHWV�%RWVZDQD��3W\��/WG

%D�,VDJR�8QLYHUVLW\��3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
3KLOLVD�'D\�&DUH�&HQWUH��3W\��/WG

6LGLOHJD�3ULYDWH�+RVSLWDO�
*ORU\ODQG�*XHVW�/RGJH��3W\��/WG

7KDNDGX�	�
.ZHQD�+RWHOV�&R��

�3URSULHWDU\��/LPLWHG
3DVGHF�$XWRPRWLYH�7HFKQRORJLHV�
�%RWVZDQD���3URSULHWDU\��/LPWLHG�

/DFURVH��3W\��/WG
2[IRUG�+ROGLQJV�/LPLWHG

$IULFDQ�%DQNLQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
RI�%RWVZDQD�/LPLWHG�
0LQHUJ\�&RDO��3W\��/WG

4827('�,19(670(176
&UHVWD�0DUDNDQHOR�/LPLWHG

6HFKDED�%UHZHU\�+ROGLQJV�/LPLWHG
*ULW�5HDO�(VWDWH��3W\��/WG
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7KH�SHULRG�XQGHU� UHYLHZ�KDV�VHHQ�D� WUDQVLWLRQ� LQWR� WKH�QHZ�VWUDWHJLF�GLUHFWLRQ�GXEEHG�
©%H\RQG� ����ª� ZKLFK� SURPLVHV� D� %ROG� 1HZ� GLUHFWLRQ�� %H\RQG� ����� ZLOO� HQGHYRXU� WR�
PD[LPLVH�ORQJ�WHUP�YDOXH�IRU�WKH�VKDUHKROGHU�DQG�WR�FUHDWH�ZHDOWK�IRU�IXWXUH�JHQHUDWLRQV�
E\� GHHSO\� LQWHJUDWLQJ� %RWVZDQD� LQWR� WKH� JOREDO� HFRQRP\� WKURXJK� LQYHVWPHQWV� DQG�
SDUWQHUVKLSV��

The new strategic overview is preceded by the successful completion of a 5-year Transformation Programme that 
delivered impressive results. Beyond 2019 also looks to further expand BDC’s horizon and unlock value in untapped 
sectors of the economy.This new strategic direction comes at a time when the Corporation celebrates its 50th 
anniversary, presenting a new challenge that will require BDC to take on initiatives that will allow the business to add 
more value and continuously stay relevant to the modern economy.
 
BDC’s ‘Beyond 2019’ strategic overview is based on the underpinning goals to:

'XULQJ�WKH�ODVW�KDOI�RI�)<����WKH�ZRUOG�EHFDPH�DZRNH�WR�WKH�RXWEUHDN�RI�WKH�&RYLG����SDQGHPLF��ZKLFK�KDV�GLVUXSWHG�
EXVLQHVV�DQG�OLIH�LQ�JHQHUDO��,W�LV�LQ�WKH�ZDNH�RI�WKH�SDQGHPLF�WKDW�%'&�KDV�LGHQWLîHG�NH\�OHVVRQV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�
that it will explore, and apply as part of its new strategy.The ‘Beyond 2019’ strategic direction, 50th anniversary and 
WKH�HFRQRPLF�OHVVRQV�IURP�&RYLG����KDYH�VKDSHG�%'&ªV�RXWORRN�IRU�WKH�IXWXUH�DQG�ZLOO�LQïXHQFH�GHFLVLRQV�PDGH�WR�
transform Botswana’s economy and catapult it into the global economy. We continue to engage with the shareholder 
RQ�RXU�QHZ�VWUDWHJLF�GLUHFWLRQ�DQG�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�LWV�RǸFLDO�ODXQFK�

,QYHVWLQJ�JOREDOO\�LQ�KLJK�UHWXUQ�
FRPPHUFLDO�DQG�VWUDWHJLF�SURMHFWV�

,QWHJUDWLQJ�%RWVZDQD�LQWR�WKH�ZRUOG�HFRQRP\�WKURXJK�
FRPPHUFLDO�LQYHVWPHQWV�DQG�SDUWQHUVKLSV

3LRQHHULQJ�LQGXVWULHV�DQG�XQORFNLQJ�YDOXH�LQ�XQWDSSHG�
VHFWRUV�DFURVV�%RWVZDQD

,QYHVWLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�PDLQ�SXUSRVH�RI�PD[LPLVLQJ�ORQJ�
WHUP�UHWXUQV��

,QYHVWLQJ�ORFDOO\�LQ�ODUJH�VFDOH�H[SRUW�RULHQWDWHG�
EXVLQHVVHV��9LVLRQ������
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7KH�LQYHVWPHQW�DSSUDLVDO�
SURFHVV�FDQ�EH�VSOLW�LQWR�
��VWDJHV�DV�IROORZV��7KLV�
SURFHVV�DSSOLHV�IRU�ERWK�QHZ�
DQG�H[LVWLQJ�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�

'HDO�2ULJLQDWLRQ

�� ,GHQWLîFDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�RSSRUWXQLWLHV��GHDOV�
• Minimum deal size BWP30 million
• Sectors: all sectors of the economy except large scale 

mining
• Tenure: 5 to 15 years

$OO�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�RQ�D�
ZHHNO\�EDVLV�E\�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�WHDP��
&ROODWLRQ�RI�GDWD�WR�FRQGXFW�SUHOLPLQDU\�
DQDO\VLV�DQG�îQDQFLDO�PRGHOOLQJ�

• Initial project screening
�� 3UHOLPLQDU\�GXH�GLOLJHQFH�DQG�îQDQFLDO�

modelling
• High level term sheet and initial 

negotiations

(QJDJHPHQW�ZLWK�5LVN�DQG�/HJDO�WHDP�IRU�WKHLU�LQSXW�

�� 3UHSDUDWLRQ�RI�D�EULHI�0HPRUDQGXP�DQG�îQDQFLDO�
model to share with Risk for input

• Indicative term sheet preparation and negotiations for 
Risk and Legal input before sharing with client.

,Q�GHSWK�GXH�GLOLJHQFH�SHUIRUPHG��îQDQFLDO��WHFKQLFDO��
WD[��OHJDO�DQG�HQYLURQPHQWDO�GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�WKH�SURMHFW��LV�
RXWVRXUFHG�

• Full and comprehensive due diligence

$QDO\VHV�DQG�FROODWHV�DOO�WKH�JDWKHUHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IURP�
WKH�DERYH�VWDJHV�LQWR�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�DSSUDLVDO�SDSHU�
LQFRUSRUDWLQJ�LQSXW�IURP�5LVN�DQG�/HJDO�IRU�DSSURYDO�
EDVHG�RQ�DSSURYDO�OLPLWV�

• Credit and Investment committee Approval 
(investments not exceeding BWP150 million)

• Board Risk and Investment Approval (investments not 
exceeding BWP500 million)

• Board Approval (investments exceeding BWP500 
million)

     

STAGE

01

02

03

04

05

STAGE

STAGE

STAGE
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:H�KDYH�VXFFHVVIXOO\�FRPH�WR�WKH�HQG�RI�\HW�DQRWKHU�\HDU�LQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�RSHUDWLRQV�
DQG� ,�DP�KRQRXUHG� WR�EH� UHSRUWLQJ�RQ�%'&ªV�SHUIRUPDQFH� IRU� WKH�\HDU�HQGHG���� -XQH�
������ 7KLV� \HDU� PDUNHG� D� SHULRG� RI� WUDQVLWLRQ� IURP� WKH� VXFFHVVIXO� H[HFXWLRQ� RI� RQH�
FRUSRUDWH�VWUDWHJ\�WR�DQRWKHU��ZLWK�D�KLJKOLJKW�RQ�PD[LPLVLQJ�ZHDOWK�IRU�WKH�VKDUHKROGHU�
DQG�EXLOGLQJ�%RWVZDQDªV�HFRQRP\�

We are also pleased to highlight the celebration of BDC’s 50th anniversary, which also marks 50 years of building 
%RWVZDQD�LQGXVWULHV�DQG�FRQWULEXWLQJ�WR�WKH�EXVLQHVV�HQYLURQPHQW�WKDW�ZH�HQMR\�WRGD\��:H�UHïHFW�RQ�%'&ªV�KXPEOH�
beginnings in 1970 and how it thrived in the ensuing years, alongside many of the companies in which it had invested. 
The Corporation’s impact can be seen and felt across the many industries from Energy, Infrastructure, Manufacturing, 
Agriculture, Services and Tourism to mention a few. We believe that the next 50 years will be characterised by nothing 
but success and even higher impact.
  
Following the impressive results in the prior year, the Corporation realised company revenue of P342 million and 
a net worth of P2,3 billion, accompanied by asset base growth to a record of P5,1 billion. BDC continues to look for 
new opportunities in alignment with its new strategic direction and that of the national agenda. While we continue to 
encounter increasing economic challenges, we remain committed to sailing through these and making a mark in the 
economy. 

,Q�WKH�ODVW�KDOI�RI�WKH�\HDU��WKH�ZRUOG�H[SHULHQFHG�DQ�RXWEUHDN�RI�WKH�QRYHO�&RYLG����YLUXV��ZKLFK�ZDV�îUVW�GLVFRYHUHG�LQ�
the province of Wuhan, China and quickly spread to the rest of the world. Botswana has not been exempted from the 
QHJDWLYH�HǺHFWV�RI�WKH�SDQGHPLF�ZKLFK�KDV�FDXVHG�D�PDVVLYH�VKRFN�DQG�ZKRVH�PHDVXUHV�WR�FRQWDLQ�KDYH�SOXPPHWHG�
the global economy into a severe contraction. Botswana has been grappling with the economic slump which has not 
only presented a challenge to local businesses but also the individual Motswana. 

During the period under review, BDC has made moves that have enabled it to further diversify its portfolio and has 
undertaken initiatives that work towards achieving better economic performance. Our subsidiaries have continued 
to show resilience albeit the ever-increasing economic challenges, which were further heightened by the wake of the 
&RYLG����SDQGHPLF��:H��KRZHYHU��UHPDLQ�FRQîGHQW�LQ�WKH�PHDVXUHV�ZH�KDYH�SXW�LQ�SODFH�WR�VXSSRUW�DQG�RǺHU�UHOLHI�WR�
WKH�DǺHFWHG�EXVLQHVVHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�%'&�SRUWIROLR��

§:H�UHïHFW�RQ�%'&ªV�KXPEOH�
EHJLQQLQJV�LQ������DQG�KRZ�LW�WKULYHG�
LQ�WKH�HQVXLQJ�\HDUV��DORQJVLGH�PDQ\�
RI�WKH�FRPSDQLHV�LQ�ZKLFK�LW�KDG�
LQYHVWHG��§

1HR�%RJDWVX
Chairperson of the Board (Ag)

In the last half of the year, subdued domestic demand for goods and services was experienced as a result of the 
XQIDYRXUDEOH�HǺHFWV�RI�WKH�&RYLG����SDQGHPLF�FRQWDLQPHQW�PHDVXUHV��7KLV�KDV�VWLïHG�HFRQRPLF�DFWLYLW\�ERWK�LQWHUQDOO\�
and externally, with the restrained income and expected increase in foreign prices to contribute to the projected low 
LQïDWLRQ��+HDGOLQH�LQïDWLRQ�DYHUDJHG������LQ�WKH�VHFRQG�TXDUWHU�RI�������ORZHU�WKDQ�WKH�DYHUDJH�RI������LQ�WKH�VHFRQG�
quarter of the prior year 2019. This is accounted for by the decrease in domestic fuel prices in April and June 2020. 
,QïDWLRQ�LV�IRUHFDVW�WR�UHPDLQ�EHORZ�WKH�ORZHU�ERXQG�RI�WKH�%DQN�RI�%RWVZDQDªV���¥����PHGLXP�WHUP�REMHFWLYH�UDQJH�
in the short term, mainly due to the reduction of domestic fuel prices. 

7KH�QDWLRQDO�DFFRXQWV�GDWD�IURP�6WDWLVWLFV�%RWVZDQD�VKRZHG�WKDW�\HDU�RQ�\HDU�JURZWK�LQ�WKH�îUVW�TXDUWHU�RI�WKH�\HDU�
GHFUHDVHG�E\������WR�������GRZQ�IURP������\HDU�RQ�\HDU�JURZWK�UHFRUGHG�LQ�4��������ZKLOH�WKH�,0)�KDV�IRUHFDVW�D�
FRQWUDFWLRQ�RI������IRU�%RWVZDQD�LQ�������7KHUH�DUH�D�ORW�RI�TXHVWLRQV�DV�WR�ZKHQ�PRVW�HǺHFWV�RI�WKH�YLUXV�ZLOO�FHDVH�
and a return to normalcy, however, we are hopeful that the Economic Recovery and Transformation Plan will resolve 
issues encumbering Botswana’s economic growth and development. 

Despite challenges that are presented and the unchartered territory that we are faced with, the board remains 
committed to supporting the Corporation in the delivery of its mandate and exploration of new opportunities as we 
acclimatise to the new normal. 

BDC is pleased to have developed a new strategic overview dubbed ‘Beyond 2019’ which presents dawn to both 
the Corporation and Botswana. This is a bold new direction for the Corporation to maximise long-term value for the 
shareholder and create wealth for future generations by deeply integrating Botswana into the global economy through 
investments and partnerships. The ‘Beyond 2019’ strategy strives to move Botswana from Economic Development to 
Economic Transformation. The new strategic direction promises not only to deliver value to the shareholder but also 
improve citizen participation in key sectors and it is in the interest of the Board to see this happen, for the greater 
EHQHîW�RI�WKH�SHRSOH�RI�%RWVZDQD��:H�GR�QRW�RYHUORRN�WKH�LPSRUWDQFH�RI�WKH�SDUWQHUVKLSV�LQ�WKLV�QHZ�MRXUQH\�DQG�
ZH�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�EXLOG�QHZ�RQHV�DQG�VWUHQJWKHQ�H[LVWLQJ�UHODWLRQVKLSV��WR�EULQJ�D�ZLGHU�VRFLRHFRQRPLF�EHQHîW�DQG�
place Botswana as an attractive investment destination.

,Q�FRQFOXVLRQ��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�FRPPHQG�WKH�%'&�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�6WDǺ�IRU�WKHLU�UHVLOLHQW�HǺRUWV�WR�GHOLYHU�YDOXH�WR�
WKH�VKDUHKROGHU��,�DP�FRQîGHQW�WKDW�WKHLU�VSLULWV�ZLOO�QRW�EH�GDPSHQHG�EXW�ZLOO�VWD\�LJQLWHG�E\�WKH�SDVVLRQ�WR�JURZ��:H�
thank our respective stakeholders and the Government of Botswana for the continued support and dedication to the 
success of the Corporation. We are also immensely grateful to the early leaders of the Corporation who contributed to 
its growth and focus on transforming the economic landscape of Botswana. As the Corporation continues to celebrate 
its 50th anniversary, it remains passionate about its primary mandate to drive the industrialisation of the country by 
SURYLGLQJ�îQDQFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH�WR�LQYHVWRUV�ZLWK�FRPPHUFLDOO\�YLDEOH�SURMHFWV��

We look forward to engaging with all our stakeholders in new avenues that will turn Botswana into a high-income 
country by the year 2036. 

1HR�%RJDWVX
Chairperson of the Board (AG)
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1(2�%2*$768��
%RDUG�&KDLUSHUVRQ��$J�
$SSRLQWHG����-XO\������

 
Ms Bogatsu is a business leader with 20 years working 
H[SHULHQFH�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VHUYLFHV�LQGXVWU\�QRW�OLPLWHG�
to auditing, accounting, taxation and compliance. She 
is currently employed by Botswana Insurance Fund 
0DQDJHPHQW��§%,)0¨���DV�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2ǸFHU��6KH�
MRLQHG�%,)0�LQ������DV�&KLHI�)LQDQFH�2ǸFHU��LQ������
VKH� EHFDPH� &KLHI� )LQDQFH� DQG� 2SHUDWLRQV� 2ǸFHU��

Previous roles include; Barclays Bank of Botswana-
Head of Business Performance and Analytics, 
Financial Accountant and Management Accountant 
DV� ZHOO� DV� (UQVW� 	� <RXQJ� �� $XGLW� 6XSHUYLVRU��

Ms Bogatsu serves on several boards nationally 
and regionally including African Life Financial 
Services Zambia, Feune Pty Ltd, Khumo Properties, 
HealthCare and Private Property Botswana.  She is a 
professional member of the Association of Chartered 
&HUWLîHG� $FFRXQWDQWV� �$&&$��� %RWVZDQD� ,QVWLWXWH�
of Accountants and Botswana Institute of Bankers. 

Ms Bogatsu holds an Executive MBA from the 
University of Chicago Booth School of Business, 
$VVRFLDWLRQ� RI� &KDUWHUHG� &HUWLîHG� $FFRXQWDQW�
(ACCA) from Botswana Accountancy College 
and Bachelor of Commerce Degree, (Accounting 
Major) from the University of Botswana. 

 

&5266�.*26,',,/(��
0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU���
$SSRLQWHG����$SULO�������
 
Mr Kgosidiile has over 20 years 
of experience of building high 
performance teams having served 
in a variety of leadership roles 
including at BPC, MVA Fund and the 
national airline, Air Botswana. Prior 
to joining BDC, Mr. Kgosidiile served 
DV�WKH�$FWLQJ�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2ǸFHU�
at BPC. 

His known forte and expressed 
passion has continued to be for 
commercial environments. His 
experience in leadership capacities 
boasts of strengths across key 
commercial areas including 
Corporate Finance and Strategy, 
Information Technology and Supply 
Chain Management and Business 
transformation to name a few. 

Mr. Kgosidiile’s career began in 
retailing as a Graduate Accounts 
Trainee with the Cash Bazaar Group 
in 1992. He thereafter moved to join 
the national airline, Air Botswana, as 
Financial Accountant and was soon 
promoted to the position of Finance 
Manager.

 He was part of the team that turned 
around the airline, resulting in Air 
%RWVZDQD� DFKLHYLQJ� SURîWDELOLW\� IRU�
7 successive years during his tenure. 

Mr. Kgosidiile was appointed Chief 
([HFXWLYH�2ǸFHU� IRU� WKH�09$�)XQG�
in 2005, and successfully led the 
MVA Fund for over 10 years. 

Under his leadership the MVA 
Fund achieved multiple awards in 
Corporate Reporting, Customer 
6HUYLFH� DQG� 6WDǺ� (QJDJHPHQW� DQG�
was rated the Best Company to 
Work For over 5 consecutive years 
in a survey conducted by Deloitte 
Consulting. 

During his tenure, the MVA Fund 
achieved impressive growth with its 
balance sheet growing more than 
three-fold in just a decade. 

The MVA Fund was recognised as a 
benchmark organisation both within 
the Botswana parastatal sector and 
in the region. Mr. Kgosidiile has also 
served as a Business Consultant in 
his career with a focus on Corporate 
Finance and Strategy. 

Mr. Kgosidiile holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce (Accounting) Degree 
and a Master’s in Business 
Administration from the University 
of Botswana. He is a fellow of the 
Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants and serves as its 
Membership Assessor. He is also 
a fellow member of the Botswana 
Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

Mr. Kgosidiile has served as Board 
Chairman for the Botswana Building 
Society, was a Board member of 
Botswana Railways, Stanbic Bank 
Botswana Limited, MVA Fund and 
.<6�,QYHVWPHQWV�/LPLWHG��

He is currently Board Chairman of 
Mmila Fund Administrators which 
administers the Debswana Pension 
Fund, Board Member of Prime-Time 
Property Holdings Limited and a 
Council Member of ABM University 
College.

$5</�5$/(%$/$�
$SSRLQWHG����)HEUXDU\������
 
Mr Ralebala is Executive Chairman 
of LSG Group. The LSG Group of 
company consists of Tswana Fuel 
(BP Distributor), Lubricants Supplies 
(Castrol Distributor), Tswana 
Gas (LPG Distributor), Africent 
Investments (Retail Filling Stations), 
Regent Hotels, and Manong 
Game Lodge. The LSG group has 
manpower strength in excess of 120 
personnel. A graduate in Mechanical 
Engineering from Kenya Polytechnic 
University, Aryl’s formative years 
were spent at Shell Oil Botswana in 
Retail Development and Sales and 
Marketing. 

He would later follow his passion 
and established the Castrol Oil 
brand in Botswana. With this step 
he developed the Castrol brand 
to market leadership for the past 
two decades. This achievement is 
acclaimed as exceptional in the 
Petroleum industry in Botswana and 
the Region. 

With the above background, Aryl’s 
subsequent business initiatives are 
weighted towards the energy sector, 
Fuel, and LPG gas distribution 
operations under separate entities 
EHLQJ� VLJQLîFDQW� FRPSRQHQWV� RI�
his Group of Companies. Other 
business interests include strategic 
supplies to Mining and Railways 
sectors, Property Investments 
and Hospitality. Besides being a 
successful business professional, 
Aryl participates in some SOEs 
at board level and is an active 
philanthropist contributing to the 
wellbeing of Batswana. 
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Ms Moncho is currently the Deputy 
Permanent Secretary in the Ministry 
of Investment, Trade and Industry. 

She is highly experienced, with a 
demonstrated history of working in 
the international trade, agricultural 
policy and industry development. 

Professionally skilled in international 
trade policy analysis, policy and 
strategy development, Agricultural 
development, Regional Integration, 
and Project Management. 
  

5,&+$5'�&+,/,6$�
$SSRLQWHG����0D\������

Mr. Chilisa is currently the Director 
¥�5LVN�DQG�&RPSOLDQFH�DW�%RWVZDQD�
Housing Corporation assisting the 
Board of Directors and Management 
with oversight and management of 
enterprise risks. 

Mr Chilisa served in the WUC 
Pension Fund as an Employer 
Trustee responsible for risk 
management in the Investment 
Committee of the WUC Pension 
Fund. Mr. Chilisa holds a Master of 
Science in Strategic Management 
from University of Derby (UK), Post 
*UDGXDWH� &HUWLîFDWH� LQ� (QWHUSULVH�
Risk Management from Botswana 
Accountancy College and a Bachelor 
RI�(QJLQHHULQJ�¥�&LYLO��ZLWK�(OHFWLYHV�
on Economics and Accounting) 
from Carleton University (Canada). 
In addition, he did International 
Executive Development Programme 
(IEDP) through Wits Business School 
and London Business School. 

Mr Chilisa is a member of the Institute 
of Risk Management South Africa 
(IRMSA). A registered Professional 
Engineer (P.Eng 20160344) by the 
Engineers Registration Board (ERB) 
RI�%RWVZDQD��D�4XDOLW\�0DQDJHPHQW�
6\VWHP� /HDG� $XGLWRU� DQG� &HUWLîHG�
Enterprise Risk Manager (CERM). 

0U�� &KLOLVD� KDV� VDW� LQ� GLǺHUHQW�
Technical Committees responsible 
for development of building and 
Construction standards for the 
Botswana Bureau of Standards. 
 

7+8/$*$1<2�$�:�02/(%$76,�
$SSRLQWHG����0D\�������

Mr Molebatsi has more than 
fourteen (14) years of progressive 
experience in the Financial Services 
Industry (Actuarial Consultancy, Life 
Insurance and Health Insurance). He 
LV� WKH�3ULQFLSDO�2ǸFHU�DW�%RWVZDQD�
3XEOLF�2ǸFHUV�0HGLFDO�$LG�6FKHPH�
(“BPOMAS”), a position he assumed 
in 2016. 
Prior to joining BPOMAS, he worked 
for Southview Group of Companies 
as the Group Business Developer, 
responsible for executing the 
Group’s expansion strategy and 
overseeing the development and 
execution of the Group Enterprise 
Risk Management framework.  

He started his career as Actuarial 
Analyst at Botswana Life Insurance 
Company where he contributed 
in Product Development, and was 
responsible for Investment Analysis, 
Actuarial Valuations and Pricing 
of the Annuity Portfolio as well as 
Reinsurance Treaties.   Mr Molebatsi 
holds an MSc and BSc in Actuarial 
Science from the University of Kent 
at Canterbury (UK). 

He is competent in areas of strategy 
development and implementation, 
Market & Product Development, 
Investment Analysis, Capital Project 
Appraisal, Contract Management 
and Project Management (Prince 2 
Practitioner). 

%21,)$&(�*��03+(7/+(�
$SSRLQWHG����)HEUXDU\������
 
Mr Mphetlhe is Deputy Secretary for 
Development Programmes in the 
Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Development. He has worked as an 
Economist in the Ministry of Finance 
and Development Planning for 
more than 10 years in Development 
Programmes Section and the 
Macroeconomics Section.   He 
worked in various positions in the 
Development Programmes Sections 
up to the level of Chief Economist in 
2006 after which he was appointed 
Director for Macroeconomics 
Policy, where he was responsible 
for economic policy coordination, 
including the preparation of the 
National Development Plan. Mr 
Mphetlhe has previously served 
as Deputy Permanent Secretary 
in the Ministry of Trade and 
Industry responsible for industrial 
development, and investment 
attraction and promotion. He served 
on the Local Enterprise Authority 
Board, Botswana Innovation 
Hub Board and the Competition 
Commission as well as the 
Botswana National Productivity 
Board. He currently serves on the 
%RDUG� RI� %RWVZDQD� 4XDOLîFDWLRQ�
Authority and is the Chairperson of 
the Botswana Country Coordinating 
Mechanism. 
 
Mr Mphetlhe earned a Master of 
,QWHUQDWLRQDO� $ǺDLUV� �3URJUDP� LQ�
Economic Policy Management) at 
Columbia University in the USA and 
B.A. Social Sciences (Economics 
& Accounting) at the University of 
Botswana. 
 

2'8(76(�7(%2*2�
$SSRLQWHG����0D\������

Ms. Oduetse Tebogo has over 20 
years of extensive experience in the 
real estate industry, cutting across 
diverse environments of housing 
development and management; 
telecommunications as well as 
banking. She is currently running a 
progressively growing real estate 
enterprise of which she is a Managing 
Director and is also a Lecturer at Ba 
Isago University. Prior to venturing 
into self-employment, she worked 
at Barclays Bank Botswana as 
Head of Corporate Real Estate 
Solutions, a senior management 
position responsible for country’s 
bank operational real estate which 
included all operational real estate 
assets. She was also in charge of 
facilities management, third party 
contracts and some colleagues’ 
schemes.  Prior to joining Barclays, 
Oduetse worked for Botswana 
Telecommunications Corporation 
Limited (“BTCL”) as a Head of Shared 
Services. At BTCL, she was charged 
with acquisition, management and 
disposal of BTCL’s real estate assets. 
She started her career at Botswana 
Housing Corporation as an Estates 
2ǸFHU�LQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�0DQDJHPHQW�
Section, where she was eventually 
appointed area manager. 

Oduetse holds a BA in Planning 
and Sociology from University of 
Botswana, an MSc in Real Estate 
from the University of Reading, 
UK. She also has Prince 2 Project 
Management. She is a member 
of both Botswana Institute of 
Development Professions, and 
Real Estate Institute of Botswana. 
She is very strong in all real estate 
management issues.  

21$/(11$�27/$$',6$�
$SSRLQWHG����)HEUXDU\������
 
Onalenna has 11 years’ post-
TXDOLîFDWLRQ�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�FRUSRUDWH�
and commercial law. 

During the formative years of her 
career, she honed her skills in 
dispute resolution and handled 
many leading cases in commercial 
law in Botswana, primarily serving 
corporate and institutional clients in 
WKH�îQDQFLDO�VHUYLFHV�VHFWRU��PLQLQJ�
and aviation. Her current practice 
LQFOXGHV�EDQNLQJ��îQDQFH��LQVROYHQF\�
and restructuring, mergers and 
acquisitions and general corporate 
commercial work. 

Her experience is augmented 
by her secondment to a leading 
bank in 2015 where she advised 
RQ� EDQNLQJ� DQG� îQDQFH� ODZ�� 7KLV�
is in addition, to exposure to the 
international corporate atmosphere 
obtained whilst on secondment 
in the corporate department of 
6ODXJKWHU�DQG�0D\��/RQGRQ�RǸFH��LQ�
2012, where she assisted in various 
corporate transactions. 
 
Onalenna holds a Master of Laws 
(LLM) in Commercial and Corporate 
/DZ�IURP�4XHHQ�0DU\�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�
London (2019) obtained through the 
prestigious Chevening Scholarship, 
and a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) degree 
from the University of Botswana 
(2008). 

She was admitted to practise as an 
attorney, notary, and conveyancer in 
2008. 
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6KH� LV� WKH� &KLHI� 2SHUDWLQJ� 2ǸFHU�
at Business Towers Consult (Pty) 
Ltd. Highly experienced with a 
demonstrated history of working 
LQ� WKH� îQDQFLDO� VHUYLFHV� LQGXVWU\��
Skilled in Management, Leadership, 
Project Management, Customer 
Service, and Strategic Planning. 
Strong operations professional with 
a Bachelor of Arts (BA) focused 
in International Economics from 
University of Botswana and a 
Master’s in Business Administration 
(MBA) - International Business from 
Maastricht School of Management, 
in the Netherlands. Ms Monare 
started her career at Botswana 
Development Corporation Limited 
(BDC) in 1991 where she worked 
for 12 years in Policy Interpretation 
and Implementation, Project 
Finance, Project Management and 
Monitoring. She served in several 
capacities and progressed up the 
ladder to the position of Principal 
%XVLQHVV�'HYHORSPHQW�2ǸFHU��

She was appointed Corporate 
Finance Advisor of African Alliance 
Botswana Limited in February 2003. 
In September 2003, Ms Monare was 
appointed an Investment Associate 
2ǸFHU� DW� WKH� îUVW� YHQWXUH� FDSLWDO�
company established in Botswana, 
Venture Partners (Botswana). She 
was self-employed at Business 
Towers Consult (Pty) Ltd from 
2004 until 2011 prior to joining the 
Ministry of Trade and Industry in the 
implementation of the Economic 
'LYHUVLîFDWLRQ�'ULYH��(''��6WUDWHJ\��
at Director Level. She returned to 
Business Towers Consult (Pty) Ltd in 
March 2019. 

,1'(3(1'(17�%2$5'�
&200,77((�0(0%(56�
 

:KHQ�DSSURSULDWH��
WKH�%RDUG�EULQJV�LQ�
LQGHSHQGHQW�SURIHVVLRQDOV�
WR�DVVLVW�WKH�%RDUG�WR�EHWWHU�
H[HFXWH�LWV�GXWLHV�DQG�
UHVSRQVLELOLW\��

The current independent 
members are:  

0,&+$(/�/(62//(��
,QGHSHQGHQW�PHPEHU��%RDUG�
)LQDQFH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH���
$SSRLQWHG�)HEUXDU\������
 
$� FHUWLîHG� &KDUWHUHG� $FFRXQWDQW��
Mr. Lesolle is formerly the Executive 
Director of Botswana Accountancy 
College (“BAC”) and former CEO 
of Botswana Savings Bank. He is a 
Fellow of the Association of Chartered 
&HUWLîHG� $FFRXQWDQWV� �$&&$��
and has extensive experience in 
various aspects of business and the 
accountancy profession as well as in 
business leadership, organisational 
transformation, strategy formulation 
and its implementation, and 
managing change.  

He has contributed extensively in 
the accountancy profession both 
locally at the Botswana Institute of 
Accountants (BIA, now BICA) where 
for many years he was Member of 
Council, and ultimately as President 
of the Institute. He is Non-Executive 
Director for several Boards including 
the BDC Audit Committee, Chairman 
of VPB, former Member of University 
of Botswana Council and others. 
 
0U��/HVROOH�KDV�DQ�$&&$�TXDOLîFDWLRQ�
and is also a Member of the Botswana 
Institute of Chartered Accountants.  

026,02/2',�%,**,(�/()+2.2�
,QGHSHQGHQW�PHPEHU��%RDUG�7HQGHU�
&RPPLWWHH�
$SSRLQWHG����-XO\������
 
0U�� /HǿRNR� LV� D� 3URMHFW� 0DQDJHU�
4XDQWLW\� 6XUYH\RU�� :LWK� RYHU� ���
\HDUVª� H[SHULHQFH�� 0U� /HǿRNRªV�
career began as an Assistant 
4XDQWLW\� 6XUYH\RU�� WKH� 'HSDUWPHQW�
of Architecture and Building 
Services, before being appointed 
DV� 3ULQFLSDO� 4XDQWLW\� 6XUYH\RU��
BHC;  Divisional Manager and later 
Executive Director for Works, Public 
Procurement and Asset Disposal 
Board (“PPADB”); participating in the 
adjudication and award of works, 
supplies and services tenders.  

While at PPADB, he acted as CEO 
and chaired all Board Meetings in the 
Position of Executive Chairman for 
two years prior to the appointment 
of the substantive Chairperson. Mr 
/HǿRNR� LV� DOVR� D� %RDUG� 0HPEHU�
at the Building Regulations Board 
in the Ministry of Infrastructure, 
Science & Technology, where he has 
been a member for the last 16 years. 
0U� /HǿRNR� KROGV� DQ� 06F� LQ�
Construction Management (Project 
Management), and BSc. Building 
(FRQRPLFV� 	� 4XDQWLW\� 6XUYH\LQJ�
both from University of Heriot-watt, 
Edinburgh. He is a Professional 
Member of Royal Institution of 
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), and a 
member of the Institute of Botswana 
4XDQWLW\� 6XUYH\RUV� �0,%46��� +H�
LV� DOVR� D� &HUWLîHG� 3XEOLF�3ULYDWH�
3DUWQHUVKLS�6SHFLDOLVW��&HUWLîHG�333�
Specialist). 

6($1�5$6(%276$�
,QGHSHQGHQW�PHPEHU��5LVN�DQG�
,QYHVWPHQW�&RPPLWWHH
5HVLJQHG����$XJXVW�����

Mr. Rasebotsa is the Chief Executive 
2ǸFHU� RI� $IULFDQ� $OOLDQFH�� $�
seasoned former banker and 
risk manager, Mr. Rasebotsa has 
extensive experience in Risk 
Management Strategic Leadership, 
direction and guidance. 

Previously, he has held the position 
of General Manager at Continental 
Outdoor Media (Botswana). 

Prior to this appointment, he was the 
Managing Director of Coronation 
Fund Managers (Botswana). 

Mr. Rasebotsa has previously 
VHUYHG� DV� &KLHI� ([HFXWLYH� 2ǸFHU�
at Glenrand MIB and has held 
various senior positions including 
Risk Director at Barclays Bank in 
Botswana, Country Credit Director 
for Barclays Bank of Zambia PLC 
and Associate Corporate Credit 
'LUHFWRU�DW�%DUFOD\V�UHJLRQDO�RǸFH�LQ�
South Africa. Mr. Rasebotsa holds a 
Bachelor of Commerce Degree.



30 31

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

&25325$7(�*29(51$1&(

*29(51$1&(�)5$0(:25.

Sound corporate governance and sustainability are interlinked practices that are fundamental to the continuing 
operation of BDC. Sound corporate governance itself engenders high sustainability performance. It is in this regard, 
WKDW� %'&� FRQWLQXHV� WR� FRPPLW� FRQVLGHUDEOH� UHVRXUFHV� WR� HQVXUH� HǺHFWLYH� JRYHUQDQFH�� IDLUQHVV�� DFFRXQWDELOLW\��
transparency and responsiveness in its daily operation. The BDC Board, as the custodian of corporate governance, 
LV� GHGLFDWHG� WR� WKH� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� RI� HǺHFWLYH� VWUXFWXUHV�� SROLFLHV� DQG� SUDFWLFHV� WKDW� SURPRWH� VRXQG� FRUSRUDWH�
governance and ensure that management practises are aligned with the interests and values of the shareholder and 
stakeholders. Shareholder rights, environmental and social factors play a pivotal role in any investment decision.

At a governance level, BDC is directed by a Board of directors appointed by the Minister of Investment Trade 
and Industry, as the representative of the Shareholder. Being the oversight body, the Board is accountable to the 
Shareholder for creating, protecting wealth and ensuring optimum utilization of the of the Corporation’s resources and 
to further report the performance of the Corporation in a timely manner. Independence of the Board is a priority, with 
the Board consisting of nine non-Executive Directors and only one Executive Director. Each of the Directors have a 
îGXFLDU\�GXW\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LV�JRYHUQHG�LQ�WKH�EHVW�SRVVLEOH�ZD\��FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�YDOXHV�DQG�LQWHUHVW�
of all stakeholders. The Board Chairperson has no executive function.

The Board comprises of diverse skills with expertise spanning over 20 years in credit risk, procurement, human 
UHVRXUFHV�� ODZ�� HFRQRPLFV�� îQDQFH�� SURSHUW\�� HQJLQHHULQJ�� VWUDWHJ\� GHYHORSPHQW� DQG� SULYDWH� VHFWRU� DQG� EXVLQHVV�
development.  

The Board’s mandate is enshrined in the Constitution, the Board Charter and Governance Policy. The Board ensures 
DQ�HǺHFWLYH�V\VWHP�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��HǺHFWLYH�FRPSOLDQFH�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��7KHVH�FRQWURO�IXQFWLRQV�HQVXUH�
WKDW�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�PHHWV�WKH�VWDQGDUG�DQG�UHSRUWLQJ�REOLJDWLRQV�UHTXLUHG�RI�D�VHOI�UHJXODWHG�îQDQFH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�

*RRG�JRYHUQDQFH�LV�HQVKULQHG�LQ�WKH�%RDUG�&RPPLWWHHV�ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�HVWDEOLVKHG�WR�GHDO�ZLWK�VSHFLîF�IXQFWLRQV�RI�
the Board. It is in this regard, that independent professional experts have been appointed to sit on Board Committees 
WR�DVVLVW�WKH�%RDUG�WR�HǺHFWLYHO\�H[HFXWH�LWV�GXWLHV�

&25325$7(�9$/8(6

The Board ensures that in conducting its business and on interaction with stakeholders, there is conformance to 
WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�&RUSRUDWH�9DOXHV�LQ�IRUFH�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH��RU�DV�GHîQHG�LQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�6WUDWHJ\�GRFXPHQW��
Strong and sustainable corporate performance is achieved across all aspects, in line with the business model together 
and a governance framework, which includes a Governance Policy, Board Charter, Delegation of Authority Policy and 
D�6KDUHKROGHUªV�&RPSDFW�FRPSOHPHQWHG�E\�D�&RQïLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�3ROLF\��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�IUDPHZRUN��%'&ªV�VWUDWHJLF�
essence is to leverage good governance and partnerships to create and grow commercially viable businesses. The 
governance framework aims at ensuring the development of an environment wherein those charged with governance 
and assurance can perform their duties. In addition, the Board and Management engages with the Shareholder, to 
ensure that there is alignment between the Shareholder’s national vision and the corporate strategy.

%2$5'�&200,77((6

7KH�%RDUG�HVWDEOLVKHG�îYH�VWDQGLQJ�FRPPLWWHHV�WR�DVVLVW�LQ�H[HUFLVLQJ�LWV�DXWKRULW\��$XWKRULW\�KDV�EHHQ�GHOHJDWHG�
WR�WKH�%RDUG�&RPPLWWHHV�IRU�SXUSRVHV�RI�LPSURYLQJ�HǺHFWLYHQHVV�DQG�HǸFLHQF\�RI�GHFLVLRQV��7KH�%RDUG��KRZHYHU��
retains accountability for the exercise of its delegated authority. 

These Board Committees are:

%RDUG�7HQGHU�&RPPLWWHH��%7&�
The purpose of the Board Tender Committee is to assist the Board by assuming an oversight role, considering and making 
decisions on all the Corporation’s tender matters including tender procedures and processes. The responsibilities of 
the Committee are to adjudicate on procurement of works, services, supplies and disposal of assets and to address 
matters relating to these procedures. The Committee further warrants that procurement plans developed by BDC are 
aligned to the budget and that they are consistent with organisational goals and objectives. 
   

%RDUG�)LQDQFH�DQG�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH��)$&�
The purpose of the Board Finance and Audit Committee is to assist the Board in carrying out its duties with regard to 
îQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ��,W�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�D�FOHDU�FKDQQHO�RI�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�0DQDJHPHQW��,QWHUQDO�
Auditors, External Auditors and the Board of Directors; to improve the ability of the Board as a whole to ensure that 
SURSHU�DQG�HǺHFWLYH�FRQWURO�DQG�HWKLFDO�SUDFWLFHV�DUH�SUHVHUYHG�DW�HYHU\�OHYHO�RI�GHOHJDWLRQ�E\�SURYLGLQJ�D�VSHFLDO�IRFXV�
on these subjects in a Finance and Audit Committee of the Board; and to provide a means by which Directors can be 
informed of marginal and contentious points that have to be resolved in the preparation of the annual accounts and 
budgets.

 
%RDUG�5LVN�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPPLWWHH��%5,&�
The purpose of the Board Risk and Investment Committee is to assist the Board by assuming an oversight role with 
regards to the investment strategy of the Corporation, and to make the relevant recommendations to the Board for 
approval. It is responsible for reviewing the Investment strategy of the Corporation; ensuring compliance with the  Credit 
and Investment Policies and Investment Procedures in place; to review quarterly, the implementation and compliance 
of the Risk Management activities as contained in the ERM Framework; to review quarterly the Strategic Risk Register, 
WKH�3HUIRUPDQFH�RI�,QYHVWPHQWV�DW�VWUDWHJLF�OHYHO��WR�HQVXUH�&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�OHJLVODWLRQ��UXOHV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV�DǺHFWLQJ�
the corporation’s investment activities, and provide oversight; to review, consider and approve all investment and 
divestment proposals in line with the Corporation’s approved Risk Appetite and Delegations; and to review, consider 
and recommend to the Board, all project investments and Divestments proposals above the Committee limit.
     

%7&�&RPSRVLWLRQ

)$&�&RPSRVLWLRQ

Non Executive 
Members (3)

Independent 
Member (1)

Company 
Secretary

Executive 
Member (1)

Non Executive 
Members (3)

Independent 
Member (1)

Company 
Secretary
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&,&�&RPSRVLWLRQ

Managing Director

Head, Risk

&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2ǸFHU

&KLHI�,QYHVWPHQW�2ǸFHU

Head, Legal & Company 
Secretary

%RDUG�+XPDQ�&DSLWDO�&RPPLWWHH��+&&�
The purpose of the Board Human Capital Committee is to assist the Board by assuming an oversight role on issues 
DǺHFWLQJ� WKH� &RUSRUDWLRQªV� KXPDQ� FDSLWDO�� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� ZHOIDUH� RI� VWDǺ�� DQG� HQVXULQJ� DGKHUHQFH� WR� WKH� JHQHUDO�
conditions governing employees the Corporation. It is responsible for monitoring and advising on the human capital 
RI� %'&�� DV�ZHOO� DV� WKH�ZHOIDUH� RI� VWDǺ�� WR� HQVXUH� DGKHUHQFH� WR� WKH� JHQHUDO� FRQGLWLRQV� JRYHUQLQJ� HPSOR\HHV� WKH�
Corporation, in order to attain the Corporate’s objectives.

  

&UHGLW�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPPLWWHH��&,&�
The Committee is made up of Senior Management. The Committee ensures that all investment proposals are subjected 
to rigorous examination prior to recommendation to the Board Risk and Investment Committee and the Board, 
depending on the threshold. The Credit & Investment Committee approves transactions, in particular investments to 
EH�PDGH��îQDQFLQJ�RI�SURMHFWV�DQG�DSSURYDO�RI�GLYHVWPHQWV��

',5(&725�(9$/8$7,21

,Q�RUGHU�WR�DVFHUWDLQ�ZKHWKHU�WKH�%RDUG�DFKLHYHV�LWV�PDQGDWH��WKHUH�LV�QHHG�WR�HYDOXDWH�LWV�HǸFLHQF\�DQG�HǺHFWLYHQHVV��
This exercise cannot be overlooked as it ensures continuous improvement of sound corporate governance.  In line 
with the commitment made by the Board through the Board Charter, the Board and its independent Board Committee, 
PHPEHUV�DUH�HYDOXDWHG�RQ�WKHLU�SHUIRUPDQFH�IRU�WKH�SUHFHGLQJ�\HDU��7KH�DQQXDO�HYDOXDWLRQ�H[HUFLVH�LV�DLPHG�DW�îQGLQJ�
D�EDODQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�LQFUHDVHG�GHPDQGV�IRU�%RDUGV�WR�EH�DFFRXQWDEOH��HǺHFWLYH�OHDGHUVKLS��DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�
%RDUG��7KH�DVVHVVPHQW�IRFXVHV�RQ�îGXFLDU\�GXWLHV��ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��VWUDWHJLF�OHDGHUVKLS�DQG�GLUHFWLRQ��

&25325$7(�*29(51$1&(

%5,&�&RPSRVLWLRQ

+&&�&RPSRVLWLRQ

Non Executive 
Members (4)

Non Executive 
Members (4)

Company 
Secretary (1)

Company 
Secretary (1)
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With the fast-changing governance landscape and the increased demand for Boards to provide leadership and to 
take accountability BDC undertakes training workshops for the Board on Corporate Governance. BDC as a company, 
working within the highly competitive private sector, it is incumbent that the Board is continuously trained and 
XSVNLOOHG�RQ� WKH�QDWXUH�RI� WKH�EXVLQHVV�� LQ�SDUWLFXODU��GHYHORSPHQW�îQDQFH� LQVWLWXWLRQV� IXQGLQJ��îQDQFLDO�VNLOOV��DV�
well as risk management. As such, BDC continues to put in place continuous development programmes aimed at 
empowering and upskilling the Board with current key trends. 

,1)250$7,21�7(&+12/2*<�*29(51$1&(

In today’s world the information systems of enterprises are now pervasive, no longer only used to enable a company 
WR�ZRUN�PRUH�HǸFLHQWO\�EXW�DUH�QRZ� WKH�YHU\� IDEULF�RI� WKH�HQWHUSULVH�RI� WRGD\�� ,W� LV�ZLWK� WKLV� LQ�PLQG� WKDW�DW�%'&��
information systems have been aligned with the long-term strategy of the Corporation, to ensure achievement of 
the latter. Similarly, over and above the Information Systems, critical to IT Governance is Information Management 
especially as it relates to Information Security. The Corporation continuously reviews its information and data security 
to ensure that critical information of both the Corporation and its clients is fully secured, from external threats.

7+(�%2$5'ª6�5(63216(�72�7+(�&29,'����3$1'(0,&

7KH�&RYLG����3DQGHPLF��§3DQGHPLF¨��EURXJKW�DERXW�PDQ\�FKDOOHQJHV�WR�GLǺHUHQW�W\SHV�RI�RUJDQLVDWLRQV�WKURXJKRXW�
the world. With its oversight role, the Board undertook to safeguard the governance and viability of the Corporation. 
7KH�%RDUGªV�UROH�ZDV�H[HUFLVHG�E\�JXLGLQJ�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�0DQDJHPHQW�LQ�GHFLVLRQV�DURXQG�WKH�îJKW�IRU�VXUYLYDO�DQG�
ensuring the Corporation emerges from the Pandemic stronger and more resilient. It has been critical for the Board 
to exercise discipline, objectivity and good judgment. To this end, the Board ensured that the Corporation’s response 
to the Pandemic is in line with the fundamental values and culture of the Corporation. More importantly, the Board 
HQVXUHG�WKDW�WKHLU�îGXFLDU\�GXWLHV�RZHG�E\�HDFK�RI�WKHP�WR�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�ZHUH�H[HUFLVHG�LQ�WKH�EHVW�LQWHUHVW�RI�WKH�
company.
But to name a few, Board and Committee meetings are and continue to be held virtually in observance of the Pandemic 
protocols as laid out by the Shareholder and as practised globally. A Crisis Management Team was established; 
which team holds monthly meetings. Rotational arrangements were introduced, arrangement is aligned with the 
government’s position. A Pulse Check Survey was conducted which survey showed that all implemented initiatives 
ZHUH�TXLWH�HǺHFWLYH��DQG�WKDW�RYHUDOO�SURGXFWLYLW\�LV�JRRG��

%'&�*29(51$1&(�&+(&./,67

Below is the governance checklist as well as the Board and Committee attendance matrix.

%'&�*29(51$1&(�&+(&./,67� $'+(5$1&(
BDC Constitution <(6é
Board Charter <(6é
BDC Corporate Strategy <(6é
Shareholder compact <(6é
BDC Risk Appetite Statement <(6é
Treasury Policy and Framework <(6é
BDC Processes Manual <(6é
Credit and Investment Policy <(6é
Credit Pricing Policy <(6é
Credit Risk and Portfolio Management Framework <(6é
IT Security Policy <(6é

67$7(0(17�2)�&203/,$1&(

7KH�%RDUG� LV� VDWLVîHG� WKDW� HYHU\� HǺRUW� LV� EHLQJ�PDGH� WR� FRPSO\� LQ� DOO�PDWHULDO� UHVSHFWV� WR� DOO� SULQFLSOHV� RI� JRRG�
governance, as pronounced in King Corporate Governance Code and the Companies Act Cap 42:01, as well as the 
principles as set out in the proposed corporate governance Code for Botswana, as issued by the Directors Institute of 
Botswana. Below is an assessment of the Corporation’s compliance with Botswana Corporate Governance Code and 
King Code:
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  Key
✓   Applied  

   Partially applied  
   Not applied  
   In progress  
   Not applicable  

Ethical leadership and corporate citizenship  
✓   E#ective leadership based on an ethical foundation  
✓   Responsible corporate citizen  
✓   E#ective management of company’s ethics  

Board and Directors
✓   $e Board is the custodian of corporate governance  
✓   Strategy, risk, performance and sustainability are inseparable  

   $e Board should consider business rescue proceedings when appropriate  
✓   Directors act in the best interests of the company  
✓   $e Chairman of the Board is an independent non-executive director  
✓   Framework for the delegation of authority has been established  
✓   $e Board comprises a balance of power, with a majority of non-executive directors who are independent  

  Directors are appointed through a formal process  
✓   Formal induction and ongoing training of directors is conducted  
✓   $e Board is assisted by a competent, suitably quali%ed and experienced Company Secretary  

  Regular performance evaluations of the Board, its committees and the individual directors  
✓   Appointment of well-structured committees and oversight of key functions  
✓   A governance framework is agreed between the Corporation and its subsidiaries*  

    Directors are fairly and responsibly remunerated  
✓   Remuneration of directors is disclosed in the annual report  

      $e Corporation’s remuneration policy is approved by its shareholders  

Internal Audit
✓   E#ective risk based Internal Audit  
✓ Written assessment of the e#ectiveness of the company’s system of internal controls and risk management  
✓ Internal Audit is strategically positioned to achieve its objectives  

Audit Committee
✓   E#ective and independent  
✓   Suitably skilled and experienced independent non-executive directors  
✓  Chaired by an independent non-executive director  
✓   Oversees integrated reporting  
✓   A combined assurance model is applied to improve e&ciency in assurance activities  

✓   Satis%es itself of the expertise, resources and experience of the company’s %nance function  
✓   Oversees the external audit process  
✓   Reports to the Board and shareholders on how it has discharged its duties  

Compliance with laws, codes, rules and standards
✓   $e Board ensures the company complies with relevant laws  
✓   $e Board and its directors have a working understanding of the relevance and implications of non-compliance  
✓  Compliance risk forms an integral part of the company’s risk management process  
✓   $e Board has delegated to management the implementation of an e#ective compliance framework and process  

Governing stakeholder relationships
✓   Appreciation that stakeholders’ perceptions a#ect a company’s reputation  
✓   Management actively deals with stakeholder relationships  
✓   $ere is an appropriate balance between its various stakeholder groupings  

   Equitable treatment of shareholders  
✓   Transparent and e#ective communication to stakeholders  
✓   Disputes are resolved e#ectively and timeously  

$e governance of Information Technology
✓   $e Board is responsible for Information Technology (IT) governance  
✓   IT is aligned with the performance and sustainability objectives of the Corporation  
✓   Management is responsible for the implementation of an IT governance framework  
✓   $e Board monitors and evaluates signi%cant IT investments and expenditure  
✓   IT is an integral part of the Corporation’s risk management  
✓   Information assets are managed e#ectively  
✓   $e Risk Committee assists the Board in carrying out IT responsibilities  

$e governance of risk
✓   $e Board is responsible for the governance of risk and setting levels of risk tolerance  
✓   $e Board determines the levels of risk tolerance  
✓   $e Audit and Risk Committees assist the Board in carrying out its risk responsibilities  
✓   $e Board delegates the risk management plan to management  
✓    $e Board ensures that risk assessments and monitoring are performed on a continual basis  
✓   Frameworks and methodologies are implemented to increase the probability of anticipating unpredictable risks  
✓    Management implements appropriate risk responses  
✓   $e Board receives assurance on the e#ectiveness of the risk management process  
✓    Su&cient risk disclosure to stakeholders  

Integrated reporting and disclosure
✓   Ensures the integrity of the Corporation’s integrated report  
✓   Sustainability reporting and disclosure is integrated with the Corporation’s %nancial reporting  
✓   Sustainability reporting and disclosure is independently assured  
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:H� KDYH� FRPH� WR� WKH� HQG� RI� \HW� DQRWKHU� VXFFHVVIXO� SHULRG� DQG� %'&� KDV� FRQWLQXHG�
LWV� WUDMHFWRU\�� 'XULQJ� WKH� SHULRG� XQGHU� UHYLHZ�� ZH� WUDQVLWLRQHG� IURP� WKH� HQG� RI� D�
WUDQVIRUPDWLRQDO�SHULRG�GXEEHG��'7%��ZKLFK�GHOLYHUHG�QRWDEOH�UHVXOWV��WR�©%H\RQG�����ª�
ZKLFK�VHHNV�WR�PRYH�%RWVZDQD�IURP�HFRQRPLF�GHYHORSPHQW�WR�HFRQRPLF�WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ��
7KH�QHZ�VWUDWHJLF�GLUHFWLRQ�ZLOO�VHH�%RWVZDQD� LQWHJUDWHG� LQWR� WKH�JOREDO�HFRQRP\�DQG�
FUHDWLQJ�VXVWDLQDEOH�ORQJ�WHUP�ZHDOWK�IRU�%RWVZDQD��

)LQDQFLDO�3HUIRUPDQFH�

%'&�&RPSDQ\
7KH�&RPSDQ\ªV�UHYHQXH�DPRXQWHG�WR�3����PLOOLRQ�DJDLQVW�SULRU�\HDU�3����PLOOLRQ���7KLV�����LQFUHDVH�LV�JURZWK�GULYHQ�
E\�D�KLJKHU�LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH�UHïHFWLQJ�D�SRVLWLYH�VKLIW�LQ�DVVHW�VWUXFWXUH�IURP�HTXLW\�EDVHG�DVVHWV�WR�PRUH�GHEW�EDVHG�
DVVHWV� RYHU� WKH� SHULRG�� 7KH� FRUSRUDWLRQ� SXVKHG� IRU� KLJKHU� FRVW� HǸFLHQFLHV� UHVXOWLQJ� LQ� DGPLQLVWUDWLYH� H[SHQVHV�
UHGXFLQJ�E\����ZKLOVW�RYHUDOO�FRVWV�UHGXFHG�WR�3���PLOOLRQ�DJDLQVW�WKH�SULRU�\HDU�3���PLOOLRQ�VXSSRUWHG�E\�XQUHDOLVHG�
foreign exchange gains from an overall positive net dollar asset position held by the Company. 

)LQDQFH�FRVWV�JUHZ�E\�����WR�3���PLOOLRQ�ZKLFK�ZHUH�D�QHFHVVDU\�FRVW�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�QHZ�IXQGLQJ�WKDW�ZDV�WDNHQ�RQ�
board to facilitate the pipeline conversion as well as facilitate the second regional transaction that was made into 
a Pan African focused real estate income group. Liquidity and capital ratios remain robust and supportive of the 
business drive to deliver on the strategic goals.

7KH�&RPSDQ\ªV�DVVHW�EDVH�VWRRG�DW�3���ELOOLRQ�UHFRUGLQJ�DQ�RYHUDOO�����JURZWK�FRPSDUHG�WR�SULRU�\HDU�GULYHQ�E\�D�
growth in investments assets which are primarily local and regional debt assets. The growth in debt assets also meant 
DQ����\HDU�RQ�\HDU�JURZWK�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\ªV�QHW�ZRUWK�WR�3���ELOOLRQ�

§7KH�GLVUXSWLRQV�DQG�HFRQRPLF�
OHVVRQV�WKDW�ZHUH�KLJKOLJKWHG�E\�WKH�
SDQGHPLF�KDYH�DFWHG�DV�D�FDWDO\VW�
IRU�FUHDWLQJ�XQLTXH�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WKDW�
UHZULWH�%RWVZDQDªV�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�
WUDQVIRUPDWLRQDO�QDUUDWLYH�§

0U��&URVV�.JRVLGLLOH
Managing Director

%'&�*URXS
*URXS�UHYHQXH�FORVHG�WKH�\HDU�DW�3���PLOOLRQ������KLJKHU� WKDQ�SULRU�\HDU�3���PLOOLRQ�PDLQO\�GULYHQ�E\�VLJQLîFDQW�
growth in interest income by the Company coupled with an increase in the commercial value of properties. Interest 
on loans was the main contributor to the overall positive performance aligned to overall strategic intent to have debt 
DVVHWV�DV�WKH�PDLQ�VRXUFH�RI�LQFRPH�DW�FRPSDQ\�OHYHO��*URXS�RSHUDWLQJ�SURîW�FORVHG�WKH�\HDU�DW�3���PLOOLRQ�DJDLQVW�
SULRU�\HDU�3���PLOOLRQ��WKH�����JURZWK�LV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HǸFLHQFLHV�DWWDLQHG�RQ�WKH�FRVW�RI�VHUYLFHV�IURP�RQH�RI�WKH�
group subsidiaries. Despite the impact of COVID-19 the group remained resolute and maintained lower administrative 
H[SHQGLWXUH� DPRXQWLQJ� WR� 3���PLOOLRQ�� ���� ORZHU� WKDQ� SULRU� \HDU� GXH� WR� RYHUDOO� FRVW� FRQWDLQPHQW� DV�ZHOO� DV� WKH�
planned restructuring of some investment assets that resulted in the loss of control. The Group total assets showed a 
���\HDU�RQ�\HDU�JURZWK�DW�3���ELOOLRQ�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�JURZWK�LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�DVVHWV��
 
'HOLYHULQJ�9DOXH�
BDC remained resilient despite the challenges brought about the Covid-19 pandemic, which surfaced in the second 
KDOI�RI�)<����%'&�HPSOR\HG�LWV�FULVLV�PDQDJHPHQW�SODQ�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�LWV�LQYHVWHH�FRPSDQLHV�FDQ�
withstand the shock and turbulence, that came as a result of the pandemic. The Corporation availed contingency 
IXQGV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�JHDUHG�WRZDUGV�KHOSLQJ�DǺHFWHG�FRPSDQLHV�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�HTXLW\�LQMHFWLRQV�DQG�ORDQV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�
RSHUDWLRQV�RI�WKH�DǺHFWHG�LQYHVWHH�FRPSDQLHV�DQG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�MREV�DUH�SUHVHUYHG�DQG�WKDW�WKH�EXVLQHVVHV�DUH�DOVR�
VXVWDLQHG��7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�KDV�DOVR�PDGH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�WKH�UHVWUXFWXULQJ�RI�ORDQV�E\�WKH�DǺHFWHG�EXVLQHVVHV�WKURXJK�
interest holidays. 

The Corporation disbursed P706 million into projects during the year that ended June 2020. Although not having 
DFKLHYHG�LWV�WDUJHW�RI�3��ELOOLRQ��WKLV�ZDV�VLJQLîFDQW�SURJUHVV�PDGH��JLYHQ�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�HFRQRPLF�FOLPDWH�ZKLFK�
was materially impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and its implications. 

7KH�SLQFK�RI� WKH�&RYLG����KDV�EHHQ� IHOW�DFURVV� WKH�GLǺHUHQW�VHFWRUV� WKDW�%'&� LV� LQYHVWHG� LQ��KRZHYHU�GHVSLWH� WKH�
FKDOOHQJHV��ZH�UHPDLQ�FRQîGHQW�WKDW�ZH�ZLOO�PDLQWDLQ�SURîWDELOLW\��WKDW�ZLOO�EH�GULYHQ�E\�RXU�QHZ�FRUSRUDWH�VWUDWHJ\��
The disruptions and economic lessons that were highlighted by the pandemic have acted as a catalyst for creating 
unique opportunities that rewrite Botswana’s development and transformational narrative. 

&RQFOXVLRQ
:H�UHPDLQ�FRQîGHQW�LQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�DELOLW\�WR�VWD\�RQ�D�SRVLWLYH�WUDMHFWRU\�DV�ZH�FHOHEUDWH�RXU�JROGHQ�MXELOHH�DQG�
ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�PDNLQJ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�LPSDFW�LQ�WKH�QH[W����\HDUV��:H�ORRN�DW�RXU�WUDLOEOD]LQJ�MRXUQH\�DQG�EHOLHYH�WKDW�
we are geared to withstand any shocks in the future, as we have in our 50-year journey. 

We are proud of the achievements made in the past year that have contributed to the growth and diversity of the 
manufacturing, healthcare, agri-business, services and property sectors. The initiatives undertaken under the 
investments in these sectors will allow for the creation of more jobs for Batswana, contribute towards the development 
RI�DQ�H[SRUW�OHG�HFRQRP\�DQG�OHYHUDJH�JOREDO�QHWZRUNV�IRU�ORFDO�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�GLYHUVLîFDWLRQ�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�%'&ªV�
mandate as government’s main investment arm.

:H�DUH�PRUH�WKDQ�FRPPLWWHG�WR�RǺHULQJ�FRQVLVWHQW�JURZWK�DQG�WR�JHQHUDWLQJ�ZHDOWK�IRU� WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�� WKDW�ZLOO�
IXUWKHU�LQVWLO�FRQîGHQFH�LQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�LWV�DELOLW\�WR�GHOLYHU�LQ�LWV�PDQGDWH��7KLV�ZLOO�EH�GULYHQ�E\�WKH�&RUSRUDWH�
Values that form the DNA of our resilient team. We emphasise the value of the relationships we have with our 
GLǺHUHQW�VWDNHKROGHUV�DQG�DUH�FRQVFLRXV�RI�WKH�UROH�WKH\�SOD\�LQ�RXU�VXFFHVV��WKHUHIRUH��ZH�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�IRUJH�WKHVH�
relationships forward. 

0U��&URVV�.JRVLGLLOH
Managing Director



38 39

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

(;(&87,9(�0$1$*(0(17

38

50years of Building Botswana

05��02$7/+2',�/(.$8.$8
&KLHI�,QYHVWPHQW�2ǸFHU

05��&5266�.*26,',,/(
0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU

05��*,/%(57�2)(7276(
+HDG���/HJDO�	�%RDUG�6HFUHWDULDW

06��%(1(',&7$�$%26,
&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2ǸFHU

06��%2,76+:$5(/2�/(%$1*
+HDG���&RUSRUDWH�$ǺDLUV�	�6WUDWHJ\

05��%2,780(/2�%$1$%27/+(
&KLHI�$XGLW�([HFXWLYH

05��%276+(/2�02.27(',
+HDG���5LVN

06��7+$%,/(�02,32/$,
+HDG���+XPDQ�&DSLWDO



40 41

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

,17(5*5$7('�5(3257

41

50years of Building Botswana



42 43

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

,19(670(17�5(3257

7KH�\HDU�WR�-XQH������VDZ�WKH�%'&�
PDLQWDLQ�WKH�VWURQJ�PRPHQWXP�IURP�WKH�
SUHYLRXV�\HDU�GHOLYHULQJ�VLJQLîFDQW�UHWXUQ�

DQG�QHZ�EXVLQHVV�IRU�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ���

7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�KDG�FRPPLWWHG� WR�DW� OHDVW�%:3� ��ELOOLRQ� LQ�QHZ� LQYHVWPHQWV�DQG�GLVEXUVHPHQWV� IRU� WKH�îQDQFLDO�
\HDU�HQGLQJ���WK�-XQH��������%'&��DOEHLW�QRW�PHHWLQJ�WKH�GLVEXUVHPHQW�WDUJHW��PDGH�VLJQLîFDQW�SURJUHVV�WRZDUGV�
achieving it for the year with BWP 706 million achieved as at the end of the period, against a record BWP 753 million 
achieved in the previous year. The BWP 706 million represents one of the highest disbursements achieved in the 
Corporation’s history.

The BWP1 billion target was materially impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic leading to delayed pipeline conversion in 
WKH�VHFRQG�KDOI�RI�WKH�îQDQFLDO�\HDU�ZLWK�GLVEXUVHPHQWV�VORZLQJ�GRZQ�VLJQLîFDQWO\��7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�LWV�YDULRXV�
SRUWIROLR� FRPSDQLHV� H[SHULHQFHG� VLJQLîFDQW� LQWHUUXSWLRQV� DV� D� UHVXOW� RI� WKH� SDQGHPLF�ZLWK� VRPH� FRPSDQLHV� DQG�
industries impacted more than others.  The implementation of the required public health protocols to control the 
pandemic led to the country entering a State of Public Emergency (SOPE) which included movement restrictions, 
closure of businesses as well as borders during the period. These necessary measures along with the broader global 
FRPPXQLW\�DOVR�H[SHULHQFLQJ�VLJQLîFDQW�LPSDFW�GXH�WR�WKH�&RYLG����SDQGHPLF�FRQWLQXH�WR�LPSDFW�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�
its portfolio companies. The impact is anticipated to decline the next few quarters, assuming the pandemic continues 
to be managed well, as has been the case.

7KH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI� WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ� UHPDLQHG�SRVLWLYH�GXULQJ� WKH�SHULRG�GHVSLWH� WKH�VLJQLîFDQW�KHDGZLQGV�EHLQJ�
faced across the business and portfolio. The period has seen BDC give increasing priority to portfolio Management 
as we engage with, and seek to assist our investee companies navigate the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and 
LWV�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�HFRQRP\�DQG�LQGXVWULHV��:KLOVW�PRVW�EXVLQHVVHV�ZHUH�IRUFHG�WR�FORVH�GRZQ�RU�VLJQLîFDQWO\�FXUWDLO�
operations for the month of April and May those that were operating were doing so at reduced capacity due to the 
lockdown and SOE regulations.  The months of May and June saw most businesses recommence operations, albeit 
at curtailed capacity.  The sectors in our portfolio most impacted by the pandemic and related shutdowns are the 
services sectors, primarily hospitality and education sectors, as well as the manufacturing and mining sectors which 
closed during the period.

The Corporation’s dividend income over the period was consequently impacted by the pandemic with several 
companies forced to delay dividend declarations in a bid to preserve cash for operational needs.  For the period to 
June 2020, the portfolio generated dividends of BWP 72.4 million against a target of BWP 89.9 million, and a prior-year 
GLYLGHQG�RI�%:3�����PLOOLRQ�� �'HVSLWH�WKH�KHDGZLQGV��WKH�GLYLGHQG�LQFRPH��KRZHYHU��UHPDLQHG�ZHOO�GLYHUVLîHG�ZLWK�
contributions received from across the portfolio.

<7'�'LYLGHQG�,QFRPH

The Corporation’s divestment drive continued over the period and remains key in the Corporation’s strategy and 
investment process. The Corporation intends to continue reviewing its portfolio to identify divestment opportunities 
within the portfolio where investments have reached their life cycle within the Corporation in order to raise much-
needed liquidity for new investment opportunities.  During the period the Corporation was able to conclude an exit 
from Investec Asset Management, a partial exit from Sechaba and Letlole La Rona as well as a sell-down of industrial 
properties in our property portfolio.

'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�WR�-XQH�������WKH�%'&�SRUWIROLR�FRQWLQXHG�LWV�JURZWK�WUDMHFWRU\�JURZLQJ�E\�DQ�LPSUHVVLYH������FORVLQJ�
WKH�îQDQFLDO�\HDU�DW�D�UHFRUG�%:3������ELOOLRQ��DJDLQVW�SULRU�\HDU�EDODQFH�RI�%:3������ELOOLRQ���

������ ������
$FWXDO %XGJHW



44 45

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

The noteworthy growth experienced over the period is primarily due to new investments undertaken over the period 
as well as continued implementation of existing transactions in the portfolio. 
 

 

1HZ�%XVLQHVV�8SGDWH�
'XULQJ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�\HDU��WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�GLVEXUVHG�3����PLOOLRQ�WRZDUGV�QHZ�LQYHVWPHQWV��FRPSDULQJ�ZHOO�ZLWK�WKH�
prior year achievement. As at the end of June 2020 the Corporation had approximately P282 million approved and 
FRPPLWWHG�WR�EHLQJ�GLVEXUVHG�LQ�)<����2I�WKH�IXQGLQJ�GLVEXUVHG��3����PLOOLRQ�ZDV�GLVEXUVHG�WR�IXQG�%'&ªV�VHFRQG�
regional transaction, whilst a further P120 million was reserved for further investment into a regional transaction. 

6HUYLFHV�6HFWRU
• An investment of P239 million was disbursed towards one of Southern Africa’s leading manufacturing, 

supply and distribution companies based in Botswana. The company’s product range consists of fast-moving 
consumer goods, pharmaceuticals, liquor, building materials and equipment.

0LQLQJ�6HUYLFHV�
• The Corporation made a follow-on investment of P80 million towards a coal mining and trading company 

incorporated in Botswana and listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange. 

3URSHUW\
• An Investment of approximately P149 million was made into a Pan African focused real estate income group 

listed in the Stock Exchange of Mauritius (“SEM”), Johannesburg Stock Exchange (“JSE”) and London Stock 
Exchange (“LSE”).  The Group is focused on real estate investment assets in preselected African countries 
(excluding South Africa) with assets underpinned predominantly by US Dollar and Euro denominated long-
term leases with high-quality tenants, delivering strong sustainable long-term income.

+HDOWKFDUH
• An investment of P49.5 million towards the establishment of an academic healthcare provider. The company is 

HDUPDUNHG�WR�RǺHU�D����EHG�PXOWL�VXSHU�VSHFLDOW\�KRVSLWDO�LQ�7DWL�6LGLQJ��)UDQFLVWRZQ�
�� $�îQDO�LQYHVWPHQW�RI�3���PLOOLRQ�ZDV�PDGH�WRZDUGV�WKH�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�RI�D�OHDGLQJ�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�KHDOWKFDUH�

provider in Block 7 Gaborone bringing our total investment to P150 million.  The 110 beds hospital is to provide 
multi-specialty tertiary healthcare services.

([LVWLQJ�3RUWIROLR�&RPSDQLHV�
• The Corporation provided P162 million of follow-on capital towards existing portfolio companies to support 

their growth and working initiatives.

Divestments

%'&�,QYHVWPHQWV�$FWLYLW\
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7KLV�DPELWLRQ�UHPDLQV�D�SULRULW\�LQ�HQVXULQJ�HǸFLHQF\�DQG�EXVLQHVV�FRQWLQXLW\�DV�ZH�QDYLJDWH�WKURXJK�D�FKDQJLQJ�
world, even as the business world was brought to a standstill by the pandemic restrictions and protocols that were 
LPSOHPHQWHG��7KH�\HDU�DQG�LWV�FKDOOHQJHV�UHDǸUPHG�WKH�UHVLOLHQFH�RI�RXU�EXVLQHVV�RǺHULQJV�DQG�RXU�SHRSOH��

As a Corporation, we were challenged to re-examine the relationship between Human Capital and technology as 
ZHOO�DV�HPEUDFLQJ� WKH�QHZ�ZD\V�RI�ZRUN� LQ�RUGHU� WR�HǺHFWLYHO\�GHOLYHU�RQ�RXU�VWUDWHJLF�REMHFWLYHV��7KH�VXFFHVV�RI�
the strategy is underpinned by our ethos in working hard to create a safe and inclusive environment and creating 
opportunities for all to excel, accelerating a strong corporate culture through our positive aspirational unwritten ground 
rules, enhancing capacity within our team in order to ensure relevance and to strengthen the skills and competencies 
that employees need to thrive in a fast-changing world, building highly empowered teams by creating meaningful 
UROHV� DQG� SODWIRUPV� WKDW� HQDEOH� UHDO�WLPH� IHHGEDFN� FRQYHUVDWLRQV� WKURXJKRXW� WKH� \HDU�� EXLOGLQJ� VHOI�VXǸFLHQF\�
through our talent management framework which ensures assessment of our leaderships’ ability to deliver value for 
the Corporation.

2XU�'1$

)ROORZLQJ� D� GHOLEHUDWH� HǺRUW� WR� WUDQVIRUP� RXU� FRUSRUDWH� FXOWXUH�� DV� ZHOO� DV� LPSURYLQJ� HPSOR\HH� H[SHULHQFH�� WKH�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�DGRSWHG� ©3RVLWLYH�$VSLUDWLRQDO�*URXQG�5XOHVª�8*5V�PRGHO��ZKLFK�GHîQHV� WKH�GHVLUHG�EHKDYLRXUV� DQG�
values that employees are expected to display across the Corporation. These UGRs have been deliberately adopted 
LQ�RUGHU�IRU�HPSOR\HHV�WR�UHFRJQLVH�WKH�EHKDYLRXUV�WKDW�LQïXHQFH�WKH�ZD\�ZH�GR�WKLQJV�©DURXQG�KHUHª��7KLV�XQLTXH�
corporate culture is attributed to leadership involvement in driving the people agenda, championing culture change 
initiatives as well as actively and visibly modelling the desired behaviours across. We celebrate diversity in all its forms 
as part of creating a vibrant and inclusive place to work, where everyone can bring their whole selves to work through 
our exciting culture change initiatives. 

'HYHORSLQJ�IRU�VXFFHVV

Capability building has remained a high strategic priority for the Corporation. This is necessitated by the changing 
cultural, technological and business landscape.  As a result, we continue to evolve constantly and explore more 
innovative ways in building inhouse capability to ensure relevance and agility of our employees to succeed in a fast-
changing world. We provide learning and development opportunities for all by encouraging a self-paced learning 
environment. As a way of building our talent pipeline, we also develop employees with breadth and depth of experience 
through secondment opportunities between functions and across our subsidiaries. This helps our employees to 
broaden their experience, enhance leadership skills that deliver quality and value, and make a meaningful impact to 
our key stakeholders. 

9DOXH�&UHDWLRQ�IRU�VXFFHVV

:H� SDUWQHU� ZLWK� WKH� EXVLQHVV� WR�PDLQWDLQ� HǺHFWLYH� DQG� HǸFLHQW� WHDPV�ZKLFK� IRFXV�PRUH� RQ�PD[LPLVLQJ� FDUHHU�
experience, providing meaningful roles to achieve both business and personal goals and encourage a growth mindset. 
This is evidenced by the inculcation of the Talent Management discussions and Individual development plans into the 
performance process, which provides real-time feedback periodically. Through our health and wellness programs, we 
provide a safe and healthy environment to ensure maximum value creation, and as Covid 19 has reshaped the way we 
OLYH��DQG�ZRUN��ZH�FRQWLQXH�WR�HǺHFWLYHO\�QDYLJDWH�RXU�WHDP�WKURXJK�WKH�SDQGHPLF�

Looking through a lens into the future, Human Capital continues to ensure, through leadership involvement, that as 
the world of work morphs, we remain vigilant, constantly visualising the future trends and adjusting swiftly without 
delay in order to ensure that we as a corporation and our employees remain relevant. The Covid-19 pandemic has 
also provided a moment of clarity for work and Talent Management by highlighting the need for an emphasis on 
key competencies to support the business.  Therefore Human Capital is challenged to better understand that their 
role is not just about catering to the needs of the employees  but rather catering to their needs in a way that ensures 
EXVLQHVV�FRQLQXWLW\��$V�VXFK��WKHUH�LV�D�QHHG�WR�GHYHORS�EHWWHU�ZD\V�RI�DVVHVVLQJ�MRE�HǺHFWLYHQHVV��DQG�HQVXULQJ�HDFK�
employee is meaningfully engaged.  In order to achieve this and create value for the Corporation, we recognise the 
desire to integrate work-life balance for our employees and continue to ensure that they feel valued, rewarded, and are 
able to maintain balance in their lives.
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7KH�SXUSRVH�RI�%'&ªV�*URXS�,QWHUQDO�$XGLW�
�*,$��LV�WR�SURYLGH�LQGHSHQGHQW��REMHFWLYH�

DVVXUDQFH�DQG�FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFHV�
GHVLJQHG�WR�DGG�YDOXH�DQG�LPSURYH�WKH�

RSHUDWLRQV�RI�%'&�*URXS�

*RYHUQLQJ�DQG�PDQDJLQJ�,QWHUQDO�$XGLW�

The Internal Audit department provides, independent and objective assurance to the Board that the governance 
SURFHVVHV�� PDQDJHPHQW� RI� ULVN� DQG� LQWHUQDO� FRQWURO� V\VWHPV� DUH� DGHTXDWH� DQG� HǺHFWLYH� LQ� PLWLJDWLQJ� WKH� PRVW�
VLJQLîFDQW�ULVNV�WKDW�WKUHDWHQ�WKH�DFKLHYHPHQW�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�REMHFWLYHV�

Internal Audit is part of the Corporation’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework as the third line of defense. The 
purpose, authority and responsibilities of the department are set out formally in a charter approved by the Board. 

2UJDQLVDWLRQDO�VWDWXV�

To enhance independence and objectivity and ensure accomplishment of audit objectives, the Chief Audit Executive 
reports functionally to the Board of Directors through the Finance and Audit Committee “the Committee” and 
administratively to the Managing Director. To establish, maintain, and assure that the internal audit department has 
VXǸFLHQW�DXWKRULW\�WR�IXOîOO�LWV�GXWLHV��WKH�&RPPLWWHH��

• Approves the internal audit department’s charter; 
• Approves the risk-based internal audit plan; 
• Approves the internal audit budget and resource plan; 
• Receive communications from the Chief Audit Executive on the internal audit department’s performance 

relative to its plan and other matters;
• Approves decisions regarding the appointment, performance evaluation and removal of the Chief Audit 

Executive.

4XDOLW\�$VVHVVPHQW�,PSURYHPHQW�3URJUDP 

An independent quality assurance review of the Internal Audit Department was conducted during the period under 
review as required by the Institute of Internal Auditors. The Department received a “a fully conforms” rating, which is 
the highest available rating.

The assessment was conducted as part of the Department’s quality assurance improvement program and covered 
all aspects of the internal audit activity. It included evaluation of the internal audit department’s conformance with 
the standards and an evaluation of whether internal auditors apply the IIA’s Code of Ethics. The program which was 
FRQGXFWHG�E\�'HORLWWH�DOVR�DVVHVVHG�WKH�HǸFLHQF\�DQG�HǺHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�LQWHUQDO�DXGLW�GHSDUWPHQW�DQG�LGHQWLîHG�
opportunities for improvement. 
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&RPELQHG�DVVXUDQFH�RYHUYLHZ

 
BDC’s combined assurance model aims to optimise the assurance coverage obtained from management, internal 
DVVXUDQFH�SURYLGHUV�DQG�H[WHUQDO�DVVXUDQFH�SURYLGHUV�RQ�WKH�ULVN�DUHDV�DǺHFWLQJ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��:LWKLQ�%'&�WKHUH�
are a number of assurance providers that either directly or indirectly provide the Board and management with certain 
DVVXUDQFHV�RYHU�WKH�HǺHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKRVH�FRQWUROV�WKDW�PLWLJDWH�WKH�ULVNV�DV�LGHQWLîHG�GXULQJ�WKH�ULVN�DVVHVVPHQW�
process described in the operating environment. Collectively the activities of these assurance providers are referred 
to as the combined assurance model.

7KH� QDWXUH� DQG� VLJQLîFDQFH� RI� ULVNV� YDU\� DQG� ZLOO� UHTXLUH� DVVXUDQFH� SURYLGHUV� ZLWK� WKH� QHFHVVDU\� H[SHUWLVH� DQG�
experience to provide assurance that risks are adequately mitigated. Assurance providers include external audit, 
internal audit, regulators, etc.

%HORZ�DUH�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQªV�UROH�SOD\HUV�LQ�DQ�DVVXUDQFH�IUDPHZRUN�ZLWK�HDFK�SURYLGLQJ�D�GLǺHUHQW�OHYHO�DQG�GHJUHH�
of assurance. Collectively they work together to obtain the optimum level of assurance needed. 

MANAGEMENT

&20%,1('�$6685$1&(
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BDC Assurance Providers 

Objective

Co-ordinated approach to Corporation assurance activities. 
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1. Management-
based assurance

Management oversight including strategy implementation, 
performance measurements, control self-assessments and 
continual monitoring mechanisms and systems. 

2. Governance 
functions (e.g. 
Risk, IT and 
Legal) 

5LVN�PDQDJHPHQW��DGRSWLQJ�DQ�HǺHFWLYH�HQWHUSULVH�ULVN�
management framework), legal, compliance, health and safety, and 
quality assurance are the leaders in this level. They are responsible 
for maintaining policies, minimum standards, oversight and risk 
management performance and reporting.

3. Independent 
assurance 

Independent and objective assurance of the overall adequacy and 
HǺHFWLYHQHVV�RI�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��JRYHUQDQFH�DQG�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�
within the Corporation. This is predominantly the role of internal 
audit, external audit and other credible assurance providers.

4. Oversight 
committees and 
Board   

Properly mandated committees and the Board have an overall 
oversight role. 

*5283�,17(51$/�$8',7

7LS�2Ǻ�$QRQ\PRXV�

The Corporation is committed to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. Ethical business 
EHKDYLRU� LV� WKH� UHVSRQVLELOLW\� RI� HYHU\� SHUVRQ� LQ� WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ� DQG� LV� UHïHFWHG�QRW� RQO\� LQ� WKH�PDQDJHPHQW� RI�
relationships with each other but also with stakeholders. The Corporation’s Ethics Policy and related Policies are a 
key component of its commitment to high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of its business. 
In line with this commitment, we expect employees and members of the public who may be aware of any unethical 
conduct of BDC group companies and employees of the Corporation to come forward and communicate these 
concerns through the appropriate channels provided by the Corporation, without any concerns or fear of victimization. 
It is recognized that wherever practical, and subject to any legal constraints, matters reported will proceed on a 
FRQîGHQWLDO�EDVLV�

The Corporation’s Ethics Line is a supplementary reporting mechanism through which to raise concerns, if for any 
UHDVRQ�DQ�HPSOR\HH�LV�XQFRPIRUWDEOH�ZLWK�XVLQJ�WKH�QRUPDO�EXVLQHVV�FKDQQHOV�RU�XQVDWLVîHG�ZLWK�WKH�UHVSRQVH�IURP�
the normal business channels. The system is available for use by all employees, contractors and stakeholders.

&RPPLWPHQW�WR�ZKLVWOHEORZHU�SURWHFWLRQ�

The Corporation subscribes to the principle of both encouraging and protecting whistleblowers and accordingly will:

• Ensure protection of employees who submit a disclosure in good faith and use the appropriate reporting 
channels provided by the Corporation;

• Strive to create a culture which will facilitate the disclosure of information by employees relating to criminal and 
other unethical or irregular conduct in the workplace in a responsible manner by providing clear guidelines for 
the disclosure of such information and protection against reprisals as a result of such disclosure;

• Promote zero tolerance to any criminal and other unethical or irregular conduct within the Corporation.

All reports made are treated with complete anonymity. 
The Hotline covers BDC and all its group of companies.

If you are aware of any unethical business conduct or if you have any grievance 

Call BDC TIP-OFFS ANONYMOUS HOTLINE
DON’T DELAY...CALL TIP-OFFS 
ANONYMOUS TODAY!

Toll Free:  0800 600 644 (BTC)
Orange:  1144
Mascom:  71119773
Free Fax:  0800 00 77 88
Email:  EGF#WLS�RǺV�FRP
Website:  ZZZ�WLS�RǺV�FRP
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%'&�DLPV�WR�SURPRWH�DQG�IDFLOLWDWH�HFRQRPLF�
GHYHORSPHQW�IRU�%RWVZDQD�ZKLOH�UHVSHFWLQJ�WKH�

HQYLURQPHQW��&RQGXFWLQJ�EXVLQHVV�VXVWDLQDEO\�LV�
NH\�IRU�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LQ�FUHDWLQJ�DQG�SURWHFWLQJ�

YDOXH�LQ�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP���EXLOGLQJ�PHDQLQJIXO��
SDUWQHUVKLSV�DQG�DWWUDFWLQJ�FXVWRPHUV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKH�

EHVW�VXSSOLHUV��LQYHVWRUV��DQG�HPSOR\HHV�

+HDOWK�DQG�

6DIHW\

*HQGHU�(TXDOLW\

�DQG�<RXWK�(PSRZHUPHQW

)XOO�&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�
$SSOLFDEOH�/DZV�
DQG�6WDQGDUGV�LQ�)RUFH

6\VWHPDWLF�5LVN�DQG
�,PSDFW�$VVHVVPHQW�

5HVSRQVLYHQHVV�WR�

&OLPDWH�&KDQJH
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Focus Area Commitments Targets 2024
Sustainable Development 
Goals (SDGs) Supported

)XOO�&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�
$SSOLFDEOH�/DZV�DQG�6WDQGDUGV�
LQ�)RUFH

•BDC shall only fund investments 
and projects which are capable 
of demonstrating that applicable 
environmental laws, labour laws and 
as well as any other enforceable 
regulations issued by competent 
authorities in the Republic of Botswana 
will be complied without exception.
•In compliance with these legislations 
and standards, BDC and its clients 
shall meaningfully engage with its 
stakeholders through transparent 
consultative processes to address 
PDWWHUV�DǺHFWLQJ�WKHLU�ZHOOEHLQJ�DV�D�
result of BDC activities. 

Promote awareness 
of ethical values and 
principles increase the 
number of stakeholder 
perception surveys covering 
sustainability elements to >4 
per year by 2024

6'*���¥�'HFHQW�ZRUN�DQG�
economic growth
6'*����¥�3HDFH��MXVWLFH��DQG�
stronginstitutions

6\VWHPDWLF�5LVN�DQG�,PSDFW�
$VVHVVPHQW�

•BDC is committed to full and consistent 
compliance with its Environmental and 
Social Management System to ensure 
that environment and social risks are 
assessed and evaluated throughout 
project life cycles.
•Screening for environmental and social 
impacts for appropriate categorisation 
is an integral part of credit assessment 
process and credit approval shall not be 
given where environmental and social 
risks cannot be avoided or minimised to 
manageable levels. 

Achieve zero environmental 
and social risk related 
incidents.

6'*���¥�'HFHQW�ZRUN�DQG�
economic growth

+HDOWK�DQG�6DIHW\ •At the very minimum, BDC and its 
clients shall adhere to the generally 
accepted occupational health and safety 
standards (as stipulated in Botswana 
Labour Laws) and the International 
Labour Organisation core labour 
standards. 

Achieve zero work-related 
fatalities. 
Achieve zero injury rate

6'*���¥�*RRG�KHDOWK�DQG�
well-being 
6'*���¥�&OHDQ�ZDWHU�DQG�
sanitation
6'*���¥�'HFHQW�ZRUN�DQG�
economic growth

*HQGHU�(TXDOLW\�DQG�<RXWK�
(PSRZHUPHQW

•In line with Government’s stated goals, 
BDC shall actively but responsibly invest 
in projects that advance the promotion 
of gender equality and youth economic 
empowerment. 

0DLQWDLQ�D�����VKDUH�
RI�ZRPHQ�DQG�PHQ��DW�
0DQDJHPHQW�OHYHO��E\������
Invest in 8 youth owned 
projects by 2024.

6'*���¥�*HQGHU�HTXDOLW\�
6'*����¥�5HGXFHG�
inequalities

5HVSRQVLYHQHVV�WR�&OLPDWH�
&KDQJH

•The assessment of the susceptibility 
to climate change shall form an integral 
part of BDC’s environmental and social 
assessment process.
•Clients will be encouraged to develop 
projects and initiatives that mitigate 
against the impacts of climate change 
with a proper costing mechanism for 
such projects and initiatives.
•A Climate Screening process which 
entails a pro-active climate risk 
Management approach enforces the 
incorporation of climate adaptation 
measurers into the design of investment 
projects as may be applicable. Climate 
Change Screening is performed by 
Business Development Executives 
assigned to individual projects, using 
the ‘BDC Climate Screening Guidelines 
and Tools’.

Achieve zero routine blazing 
and emission of associated 
gas by 2024

6'*���¥�$ǺRUGDEOH�DQG�FOHDQ�
energy
6'*����¥�&OLPDWH�DFWLRQ�

50years of Building Botswana
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$V�SDUW�RI�%'&ªV�ZD\�WR�JLYH�EDFN�WR�WKH�
FRPPXQLWLHV�ZLWKLQ�ZKLFK�LW�RSHUDWHV��

WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�GHOLYHULQJ�RQ�
LPSDFWIXO�&RUSRUDWH�6RFLDO�,QYHVWPHQW�DQG�
&RUSRUDWH�6RFLDO�5HVSRQVLELOLW\�LQLWLDWLYHV�

LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�LWV�FRUSRUDWH�VWUDWHJ\��

BDC’s CSR program is focused on initiatives that promote and support entrepreneurship, support inclusion of people 
living with disabilities and; promote and expose local talent through music and arts. The BDC Corporate Social 
Responsibility [CSR] Programme was established for the purpose of setting up a Grants and Donations Fund through 
ZKLFK� WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�ZLOO�GHOLYHU�RQ� LWV�&RUSRUDWH�6RFLDO�5HVSRQVLELOLW\�REMHFWLYH�RI�H[WHQGLQJ�îQDQFLDO�DQG�QRQ�
îQDQFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH�WR�GHVHUYLQJ�RUJDQLVDWLRQV��,Q�WKH�\HDU�XQGHU�UHYLHZ��%'&�KDV�XQGHUWDNHQ�&65�LQLWLDWLYHV�ZRUWK�
almost P3 000 000.00. The main objectives of our CSR initiatives is to: Build Sustainable Community Relationships 
and Investments; and to contribute towards citizen development and empowerment. 

•  Our Corporate Social Investment (CSI) programme is more pro-active and long-term where the Corporation pro-
DFWLYHO\�LGHQWLîHV�RQH�RU�WZR�FRPPXQLW\�LQLWLDWLYHV��SURMHFWV�ZLWKLQ�LWV�FXUUHQW�JHRJUDSKLF�DUHD�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��

•  Our Donations programme is more reactive and short term, where the Corporation responds to requests for 
IXQGLQJ�RU�GRQDWLRQV�PRVW�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�RQFH�RǺ��

•  Our Sponsorships programme is also on a more short term basis and is primarily driven towards improving our 
VWUDWHJLF�SDUWQHUVKLSV�WKDW�RǺHU�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�IRU�IXUWKHU�DSSUHFLDWLQJ�%'&ªV�PDQGDWH��

2XU�&ULWHULD�IRU�'RQDWLRQV��6SRQVRUVKLSV�DQG�&6,

7KH� &RUSRUDWLRQ� PD\� PDNH� GRQDWLRQV�� VSRQVRUVKLSV� RU� îQDQFLDO� LQYHVWPHQWV� WR� GHVHUYLQJ� &65� LQLWLDWLYHV��
organisations, programmes, projects, publications or causes. The Corporation will NOT take part in any religious or 
SROLWLFDO�UHTXHVWV�IRU�îQDQFLDO��KXPDQ�UHVRXUFH�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�VXSSRUW�

Persons qualifying for support should meet the following criteria:

a)  Organisations which provide skills development, employment opportunities, and services to national 
communities at large. 

b)  Organisations must be registered, in good standing and compliant in terms of all legislation relevant and 
applicable to them. 

c)  Where a request is from a non-registered entity or an individual, whose case in the opinion of the CSR Committee 
deserves assistance, it will be reviewed and recommended to the Managing Director for request approval.

G��� 7KH\�VKRXOG�SHUIRUP�VHUYLFHV�WKDW�GLUHFWO\�FRQWULEXWH�WR�SRWHQWLDO�DQG�DFWXDO�EHQHîW�WR�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�DQG�DUH�
non-discriminatory, including but not limited to the following:
I.  The conservation of the environment,  including natural resources.
II.  Creation of employment opportunities in communities throughout the Country.
III.  The  care, rehabilitation and training of the handicapped, socially disadvantaged and ill.
IV.  Research and public education on the history, culture, people and economy of Botswana.
V.  The provision of recreational and sporting activities representing the country at National level.
VI.  The promotion of Botswana as an investment and tourist destination.
VII.  The promotion and development of business and entrepreneurial skills for self-employment 

opportunities.
VIII. Support sustainable community based small developmental projects giving priority to youth and 

women.
IX.  Promotion of talent through sports, music, arts and cultural activities.

7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�UHPDLQV�FRPPLWWHG�WR�LWV�&65�SROLF\�DV�LW�UHPDLQV�DW�WKH�FRUH�RI�ZKR�%'&�LV�DV�D�îQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQ��
Driving sustainability and longevity, especially for programmes which support vulnerable communities, shall continue 
to be a priority for our action. 



60 61

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

+,*+/,*+76�2)�7+(�,1,7,$7,9(6�6833257('�,1�����������

&RFD�&ROD�GRQDWHV�D�WUXFN�IXOO�RI�
SURGXFWV�YDOXHG�DW�3�����������DQG�
3�����������FDVK�WR�WKH�0LQLVWU\�
RI�+HDOWK�DQG�:HOOQHVV�

.%/��GRQDWHV�VDQLWL]HUV�ZRUWK�3����
PLOOLRQ�WR�WKH�0LQLVWU\�RI�+HDOWK�DQG�
:HOOQHVV�

//5�GRQDWHV�3��PLOOLRQ�WR�FRYLG����
UHOLHI�IXQG

%'&�GRQDWHV�����PDVNV�WR�3LODQH�
3ULPDU\�VFKRRO�

%'&�LQ�SDUWQHUVKLS�ZLWK�)DLUVFDSH�
WHQDQWV�GRQDWH�IRRG�KDPSHUV�
DQG�WRLOHWULHV�WR�+DSS\�+HDUWV�
2UJDQLVDWLRQ�

%'&�VXSSRUWV�VRODU�OLJKWLQJ�SRZHU�
SURMHFW�LQ�*DNXWR�

%'&�SDUWQHUV�ZLWK�$IULFD�<RXWK�
(QWUHSUHQHXUV�6XPPLW

&UHVWD�MRLQV�îJKW�DJDLQVW�FRYLG����
E\�RǺHULQJ�LWV�KRWHOV�DV�TXDUDQWLQH�
VLWHV�

60

%'&ªV�5HVSRQVH�WR�&29,'����3DQGHPLF

The world is in a precarious situation where regional and global economies have been negatively impacted by 
the unpredictable nature of the COVID-19 pandemic. Botswana has not been spared from the pandemic and the 
&RUSRUDWLRQ�KDV�PDGH�FRQWLQXRXV�HǺRUWV�LQ�VHHNLQJ�ZD\V�RI�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�WKH�SDQGHPLF��$V�ZH�FHOHEUDWH�RXU�JROGHQ�
jubilee and look forward to many more years to come, we are determined to do everything we can to play our part in 
RYHUFRPLQJ�&29,'����DQG�LWV�HǺHFWV�

6XVWDLQLQJ�WKH�HFRQRP\

%'&�KDV�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�RYHU����LQGXVWU\�DQG�VHFWRU�OHDGLQJ�FRPSDQLHV���VRPH�RI�ZKLFK�RSHUDWH�LQ�WKH�PRVW�DǺHFWHG�
sectors including tourism and hospitality, manufacturing and services.  To ensure that jobs are preserved, and 
businesses are sustained,  BDC made available P50million in contingency funds in the form of equity injections and 
ORDQV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�RSHUDWLRQV�RI�WKH�DǺHFWHG�FRPSDQLHV��)XUWKHUPRUH���WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�PDGH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�UHVWUXFWXULQJ�
RI�ORDQV�E\�WKH�DǺHFWHG�EXVLQHVVHV�WKURXJK�LQWHUHVW�KROLGD\V�DQG�UHVWUXFWXULQJ�RI�ORDQV�

3��PLOOLRQ�FDVK�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WRZDUGV�&29,'����3DQGHPLF�5HOLHI�)XQG

A COVID-19 relief fund was set up by the Government of Botswana to alleviate the impact of the pandemic. BDC 
WKHUHIRUH�FRPPLWWHG�3��PLOOLRQ�WR�DLG�WKH�JRYHUQPHQWªV�HǺRUWV��7KH�DPRXQW��ZDV�PDGH�XS�RI�D�3����PLOOLRQ�GRQDWLRQ�
by the Corporation and a P300 000.00 contribution from the employees.

3�����������WRZDUGV�VXSSRUWLQJ�WKH�YXOQHUDEOH

Working in partnership with a distribution company,  Kamoso Africa, which is a BDC investee company,  the Corporation 
LGHQWLîHG��RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�PRVW�YXOQHUDEOH�PHPEHUV�RI�VRFLHW\�LQ�%RWVZDQD��7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�DQ�LQFUHDVH�
LQ�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�SHRSOH�ZKR�QHHG�VRFLDO�ZHOIDUH��DV�EUHDG�ZLQQHUV�IRXQG�LW�PRUH�GLǸFXOW�WR�SURYLGH�IRU�WKHLU�IDPLOLHV��
%'&�DQG�.DPRVR�$IULFD�SURYLGHG�DLG�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�IRRG�KDPSHUV�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�RXU�SHRSOH�FRQWLQXH�WR�OLYH�GLJQLîHG�
OLYHV��$�WRWDO�RI�3�����������KDV�EHHQ�FRPPLWWHG�WRZDUGV�WKLV�HǺRUW�

%'&�*URXS�DQG�,QYHVWHH�&RPSDQLHV�&RQWULEXWLRQ

Since the early days of the COVID-19 outbreak, our Group and investee companies have made unprecedented moves 
WR�DVVLVW�LQ�WKH�îJKW��7KHVH�HǺRUWV�ZHUH�WKURXJK�FDVK�DQG�LQ�NLQG�GRQDWLRQV�WR�WKH�*RYHUQPHQW��UHOLHI�HǺRUWV��:H�DUH�
KRQRXUHG�WR�EH�SDUW�RI�WKLV�JUHDWHU�HǺRUW�LQ�WKH�îJKW�DJDLQVW�WKH�SDQGHPLF�
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7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
RI�%RWVZDQD�'HYHORSPHQW�&RUSRUDWLRQ�/LPLWHG��§WKH�*URXS¨���FRPSULVLQJ�WKH�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�îQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW����
-XQH������DQG�WKH�VWDWHPHQWV�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�RWKHU��FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH��FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\�DQG�FDVK�ïRZV�IRU�
WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�HQGHG��DQG�D�VXPPDU\�RI�VLJQLîFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DQG�RWKHU�H[SODQDWRU\�QRWHV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

The Directors are required by the Companies Act of Botswana (Companies Act, 2003) to maintain adequate accounting 
UHFRUGV�DQG�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�FRQWHQW�DQG�LQWHJULW\�RI�WKH�îQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKLV�UHSRUW��,W�LV�WKHLU�
UHVSRQVLELOLW\� WR�HQVXUH� WKDW� WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�DQG�VHSDUDWH�îQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� IDLUO\�SUHVHQW� WKH�VWDWH�RI�DǺDLUV�
RI�WKH�*URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\�DV�DW����-XQH������DQG�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKHLU�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�FDVK�ïRZV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�
ended, in conformity with IFRS. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the group 
DQG�FRPSDQ\�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�WKHLU�UHSRUW�LV�SUHVHQWHG�RQ�SDJH����

The Directors’ are responsible for such internal controls as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the 
SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU�

7KH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,)56�DQG�DUH�EDVHG�XSRQ�DSSURSULDWH�
accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates. The 
'LUHFWRUVª� UHVSRQVLELOLW\� DOVR� LQFOXGHV� PDLQWDLQLQJ� DGHTXDWH� DFFRXQWLQJ� UHFRUGV� DQG� DQ� HǺHFWLYH� V\VWHP� RI� ULVN�
management .

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DFNQRZOHGJH�WKDW�WKH\�DUH�XOWLPDWHO\�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�V\VWHP�RI�LQWHUQDO�îQDQFLDO�FRQWURO�HVWDEOLVKHG�
by the Group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Directors 
to meet these responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss 
LQ�D�FRVW�HǺHFWLYH�PDQQHU��7KH�VWDQGDUGV� LQFOXGH�WKH�SURSHU�GHOHJDWLRQ�RI� UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�ZLWKLQ�D�FOHDUO\�GHîQHG�
IUDPHZRUN��HǺHFWLYH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�DGHTXDWH�VHJUHJDWLRQ�RI�GXWLHV�WR�HQVXUH�DQ�DFFHSWDEOH�OHYHO�RI�ULVN��
These controls are monitored throughout the Group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 
standards in ensuring the Group’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 
reproach. The focus of risk management in the Group is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known 
forms of risk across the Group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group endeavours to minimise it 
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and there is no 
reason to believe the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead. The Directors are of the opinion, based 
on the information and explanations given by Management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable 
DVVXUDQFH� WKDW� WKH� îQDQFLDO� UHFRUGV� PD\� EH� UHOLHG� RQ� IRU� WKH� SUHSDUDWLRQ� RI� WKH� îQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� +RZHYHU��
DQ\�V\VWHP�RI� LQWHUQDO�îQDQFLDO�FRQWURO�FDQ�SURYLGH�RQO\�UHDVRQDEOH��DQG�QRW�DEVROXWH��DVVXUDQFH�DJDLQVW�PDWHULDO�
misstatement or loss.

'LVFORVXUH�RI�DXGLW�LQIRUPDWLRQ
(DFK�RI�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�DSSURYDO�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�FRQîUPV�WKDW�
-  in so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s and Company’s 

auditor is unaware; and
- the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s auditor is aware of 
that information.

'LUHFWRUVª�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV
7KH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�VHW�RXW�RQ�SDJHV����WR�����ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�WKH�JRLQJ�
concern basis, were approved by the Board on 16 December 2020 by:

1�%RJDWVX� � � � � � � &�.JRVLGLLOH
Director        Director
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7KH� GLUHFWRUV� KDYH� SOHDVXUH� LQ� VXEPLWWLQJ� WKHLU� UHSRUW� RQ� WKH� îQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� %RWVZDQD� 'HYHORSPHQW�
Corporation Limited and the group for the year ended 30 June, 2020.

��� 5HYLHZ�RI�îQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�DQG�DFWLYLWLHV
� 7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�DQG�VHSDUDWH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,QWHUQDWLRQDO���
 Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2003. The accounting policies   
 have been applied consistently compared to the prior year. 

� )XOO�GHWDLOV�RI�WKH�îQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�FDVK�ïRZV�RI�WKH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�DUH�VHW��
 out in the accompanying statements. 

��� 6WDWHG�FDSLWDO
 The total number of ordinary shares issued and fully paid is 541,769,462 (2019: 541,769,462).

��� 'LUHFWRUDWH
� 7KH�GLUHFWRUV�LQ�RǸFH�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

 ',5(&7256� 2)),&(� '(6,*1$7,21� 1$7,21$/,7<� &+$1*(6

 1�%RJDWVX Chairperson Non-executive Motswana
 &�.JRVLGLLOH Managing Director  Executive Motswana Appointed 01 April 2020 
 %�0SKHWOKH Other Non-executive Motswana Appointed 1 February, 2020 
 5�&KLOLVD Other Non-executive Motswana
 7�0ROHEDWVL Other Non-executive Motswana
 $�5DOHEDOD Other Non-executive Motswana Appointed 1 February, 2020 
� 2�7HERJR Other Non-executive Motswana
 %�0DUROH Other Non-executive Motswana Resigned 31 January 2020 
 6�0�6HNZDNZD Other Non-executive Motswana Resigned 31 January, 2020 
 3�6HUDPH Other Non-executive Motswana Resigned 5 November, 2019 
 2�2WODDGLVD Other Non-executive Motswana Appointed 1 February 2020 
 0�/HNDXNDX Acting - 
  Managing Director Executive Motswana Resigned 31 March, 2020 
 
��� (YHQWV�DIWHU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG
 Material events after the reporting date up to the date of this report are included in note 39. Other than   
 these, the directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and   
 up to the date of this report.

��� 'LUHFWRUV�IHHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV
 It is recommended that the directors fees, expenses of P171 900 and directors emoluments of P3 291 861   
� ������)HHV�3���������(PROXPHQWV�3�����������IRU�WKH�\HDU�WR����-XQH������EH�UDWLîHG�

��� 'LYLGHQGV�GHFODUDWLRQ 
 No dividends have been declared post reporting date due to the COVID-19 pandemic to allow for    
 reinvestment opportunities for COVID-19 relief. This position would be evaluated in the next reporting   
 period (2019: P20 million).

%\�2UGHU�RI�WKH�%RDUG

*��2IHWRWVH
Group Company Secretary

KPMG, a partnership domiciled in Botswana and a member firm of 
the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss 
entity.�

          Partners: G Motsamai *AG Devlin **JA Venter �
      *British   **South African

 VAT Number:  P03623901112

KPMG, Chartered Accountants 
Audit
Plot 67977, Off Tlokweng Road, 
Fairgrounds Office Park 
PO Box 1519, Gaborone, Botswana 
Telephone +267 391 2400 
Fax +267 397 5281 
Web http://www.kpmg.com/

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the shareholder of Botswana Development Corporation Limited

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements 
of Botswana Development Corporation Limited (the group and company) set out 
on pages �� to ���, which comprise the statements of financial position as
at 30 June 2020, and the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and the
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, significant accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated and separate financial position of Botswana 
Development Corporation Limited as at 30 June 2020, and its consolidated and 
separate financial performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial reporting 
Standards.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and company 
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of 
most significance in our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
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of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. 

1) Valuation of investment properties

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated financial statements. 

Refer to the accounting policy for investment properties in note 1.6, the critical 
judgements in applying accounting policies in determining the valuation of 
investment properties in note 1.5 and note 7 to the financial statements. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
The group owns a portfolio of 
investment properties comprising 
office buildings, residential property, 
industrial property and mixed use 
properties. The carrying values of the 
investment properties amounted to 
P1.129 billion as at 30 June 2020. 
This accounts for 26.8% of the 
group’s total non-current assets and 
is the largest asset of the group. 

The group’s investment properties 
are measured at fair value based on 
valuations carried out by independent 
qualified professional valuers (the 
valuers). The valuations are 
dependent on inputs which are 
generally applied by valuers and 
involve judgement. 

The valuation model considers the 
present value of net cash flows to be 
generated from the respective 
property, taking into account the 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 

x We evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
valuers, including an evaluation of
controls in place for the
appointment and assessment of
these experts by management.
This was achieved through
conducting background checks,
reviewing details of the experts’
qualifications and experience and
verifying their membership to
professional bodies.

x We evaluated the
appropriateness of valuation
methodologies used against
those applied by other valuers for
similar property types.

x We obtained an understanding of
the valuation process used by the
valuers, including the significant
assumptions and critical

7

1) Valuation of investment properties

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated financial statements. 

Refer to the accounting policy for investment properties in note 1.6, the critical 
judgements in applying accounting policies in determining the valuation of 
investment properties in note 1.5 and note 7 to the financial statements. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
expected rental growth rate, void 
periods, occupancy rate, lease 
incentive costs such as rent-free 
periods and other costs not paid by 
tenants. The expected net cash flows 
are discounted using risk-adjusted 
discount rates. 

Due to the significance of the value of 
investment properties and the 
significant estimates and judgments 
involved in determining the fair values 
of the investment properties, the 
valuation of investment properties 
was considered to be a key audit 
matter.

judgments applied in the valuation 
methodologies and whether these 
methodologies met the 
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair 
Value Measurement. 

x We assessed and challenged the
key inputs and assumptions in the
valuation models to ensure that
the significant inputs are within a
reasonable range for the
respective market sector and
asset. This included the following
procedures:

(i) We traced cash flows
(rental incomes) to
underlying lease
contracts on a sample
basis;

o We compared expected
market rental growth and
discount rates to industry
data; and

o We compared occupancy
rates and rent free or void
periods to historical data. In
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1) Valuation of investment properties

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated financial statements. 

Refer to the accounting policy for investment properties in note 1.6, the critical 
judgements in applying accounting policies in determining the valuation of 
investment properties in note 1.5 and note 7 to the financial statements. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
addition, we considered 
whether the historical data 
was an appropriate indication 
for future inputs in line with 
current market conditions. 

(a) We traced the fair values of
the group’s investment
properties to the independent
valuers’ reports on a sample
basis.

x We tested controls over
management’s process for
reviewing the inputs and results
obtained from these valuation
reports on a sample basis, in
ensuring that the movement in the
property fair values are
appropriately recognised.

x We considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in the
financial statements related to the
valuation of investment properties
in relation to the requirements of
IAS 40 Investment Property and
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

9

2) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted
investees

This key audit matter is applicable to the separate financial statements. 

Refer to the accounting policies on investments in subsidiaries in note 1.3 and 
equity accounted investees in note 1.4. The critical accounting estimates and 
judgements in applying accounting policies in determining the impairment of 
investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted investees in note 1.5, notes 
11 and 12 relating to subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 
respectively. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
The carrying value of the company’s 
investments in subsidiaries and 
equity accounted investees 
amounted to P1.448 billion at the 
reporting date. This constitutes 38.6% 
of the company’s total non-current 
assets. The accumulated impairment 
balance on investments in 
subsidiaries and equity accounted 
investees amounted to P173 million. 

Investment in subsidiaries and equity 
accounted investees are measured at 
cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. 

The company assesses its 
investment in subsidiaries and equity 
accounted investees whenever 
circumstances may indicate the 
presence of impairment indicators by 
amongst other factors comparing the 
carrying value to the respective net 
asset values of the investees. 

Our audit procedures performed 
included the following: 

(a) We compared the carrying
values of the investment in
subsidiaries and equity
accounted investees with the
respective net asset values
per the subsidiaries and
equity accounted investees’
financial statements.
Where the comparison of the
company’s investment in 
subsidiaries and equity 
accounted investees to the 
net book value of the 
subsidiaries or equity 
accounted investees
indicated a possible 
impairment, we assessed the 
adequacy of the impairment 
assessment performed by 
management. 
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2) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted
investees

This key audit matter is applicable to the separate financial statements. 

Refer to the accounting policies on investments in subsidiaries in note 1.3 and 
equity accounted investees in note 1.4. The critical accounting estimates and 
judgements in applying accounting policies in determining the impairment of 
investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted investees in note 1.5, notes 
11 and 12 relating to subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 
respectively. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
Management also takes into 
consideration information available at 
the reporting date which may have 
contributed to the current 
performance or which is expected to 
improve future performance of the 
subsidiaries and equity accounted 
investees. 

The assessment of these investments 
for impairment therefore requires the 
application of significant judgment 
and the use of significant 
assumptions, which include revenue 
growth rates, and other cash flow 
projections. Significant judgements 
and assumptions are also applied in 
determining the current market value 
of non-current assets held by the 
subsidiaries and equity accounted 
investees based on valuations carried 
out by independent qualified 
professional valuers (the valuers). 

x We reviewed and critically
evaluated the future performance
and growth rates applied by
management in their cash flow
projections, based on information
available at the reporting date
which included comparing 
expected revenue growth rates to 
the investees’ historical 
performance and relevant market 
growth data. 

(a) We assessed the adequacy of
disclosures in the financial
statements related to
investments in subsidiaries
and equity accounted
investees in accordance with
the requirements of IAS 36,
Impairment of Assets and
IFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement.

11

2) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted
investees

This key audit matter is applicable to the separate financial statements. 

Refer to the accounting policies on investments in subsidiaries in note 1.3 and 
equity accounted investees in note 1.4. The critical accounting estimates and 
judgements in applying accounting policies in determining the impairment of 
investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted investees in note 1.5, notes 
11 and 12 relating to subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 
respectively. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
Given the significance of the carrying 
values of the investment in 
subsidiaries and equity accounted 
investees and the significant 
judgements made by management, 
we considered the impairment of 
these assets to be a key audit matter 
to the company’s separate financial 
statements.

3) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements.

Refer to the accounting policies on financial instruments in note 1.10. The 
critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 
in determining the impairment of loans to subsidiaries, associates and non-
affiliates in note 1.5, and note 13 relating to financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
The financial assets measured at Our audit procedures performed 
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3) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements.

Refer to the accounting policies on financial instruments in note 1.10. The 
critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 
in determining the impairment of loans to subsidiaries, associates and non-
affiliates in note 1.5, and note 13 relating to financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
amortised cost are included under the 
other investments financial 
statements caption and amount to 
P1.388 billion and P1.443 billion at 
the reporting date for the group and 
company respectively. This 
constitutes 27% and 32% of the group 
and company’s total assets 
respectively. The financial assets 
measured at amortised cost consist of 
loans disbursed to subsidiaries, 
equity accounted investees and non-
affiliated entities. 

Loans to subsidiaries, equity 
accounted investees and non-
affiliated entities are initially 
recognised at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised 
cost less impairment. The impairment 
of these loans is considered based on 
the expected credit loss which 
considers Exposure at Default, the 
Probability of Default, the Loss Given 
Default, the internally determined 

included the following: 

(a) We evaluated the design and
implementation of internal
controls over the impairment
provisioning of loans to
ensure the appropriateness of
key assumptions applied, the
assessment by the risk
department and the directors
of the final measurement of
expected credit losses applied
to the loans.

x We reconciled the input
parameters applied in the
expected credit loss calculation to
underlying records.

x We engaged our valuation
specialists to review
management’s expected credit
loss computation on the financial
assets measured at amortised
cost based on the requirements
applicable to IFRS 9 Financial

13

3) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost 

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements.

Refer to the accounting policies on financial instruments in note 1.10. The 
critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 
in determining the impairment of loans to subsidiaries, associates and non-
affiliates in note 1.5, and note 13 relating to financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
credit risk rating of each obligor and 
the staging of each loan. 

The assessment of these loans for 
impairment therefore requires the 
application of judgment and the use of 
significant assumptions in 
determining certain inputs used in the 
expected credit loss computation. 

Given the significance of the financial 
assets measured at amortised costs 
and the significance and subjectivity 
of the judgements made by 
management in evaluating these 
assets for possible impairment, we 
considered the valuation of these 
assets to be a key audit matter. 

Instruments. This included 
critically evaluating 
management’s judgements and 
assumptions in determining the 
expected credit loss on loans to 
subsidiaries, associates and non-
affiliates through performance of 
the following procedures: 

o Re-calculating 
the Exposure 
at Default 
based on the 
remaining term 
of each loan. 

(i) Re-rating the obligors 
using approaches 
deemed appropriate to 
derive reasonable 
credit risk ratings for 
each obligor. 

(ii) Comparing the 
unsecured Loss Given 
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3) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

This key audit matter is applicable to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements.

Refer to the accounting policies on financial instruments in note 1.10. The 
critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 
in determining the impairment of loans to subsidiaries, associates and non-
affiliates in note 1.5, and note 13 relating to financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. 
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in 

our audit 
Default to global 
market practice. 

(iii) Assessing the
appropriateness of the
staging of the loans as
well as the probability
of default on each
loan.

x We considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in the
financial statements in
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.

Other information 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises general information, the director’s report and the directors’ 
responsibilities statement and approval of the financial statements which we 
obtained prior to the date of this report, and the Annual Report which is expected 
to be made available to us after that date. Other information does not include the 
consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon 
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

15

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate 
financial statements 
The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated and separate 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the 
directors are responsible for assessing the group's and company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the group and/or company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

x Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
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forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

x Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's
and company's internal control.

x Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

x Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the group and company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the group and/or company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

x Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
and separate financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

17

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

KPMG
Certified Auditors                     
Practicing member: AG Devlin 19960060                   
31 December 2020 
Gaborone
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6WDWHPHQWV�RI�3URîW�RU�/RVV�DQG�2WKHU�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� 1RWH�V��� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
� �� � � 5HVWDWHG�


&RQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV 
Income from trade 2  230,497  151,397  225,916  215,554 
Cost of sales   (34,622 ) (43,332 ) -  - 
*URVV�SURîW� �� �������� � ��������� �������� � ������� 
Rental income 7  96,579  167,620  -  - 
Contractual Rental   92,091  157,100  -  - 
- Straight line lease rental adjustment   4,488  10,520  -  - 
   292,454  275,685  225,916  215,554 

Finance Income 3  20,173  13,574  34,739  48,458 
Other operating income 4  45,807  33,812  81,076  12,709 
Fair value gain on investment properties 7  124,773  42,883  -  - 
- As per valuation   120,285  53,404  -  - 
- Straight line lease rental adjustment   (4,488 ) (10,520 ) -  - 
6KDUH�RI�SURîWV�RI�HTXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV��
net of tax 12  17,686  18,107  -  - 
Marketing expenses   (5,204 ) (6,218 ) (3,657 ) (4,168 ) 
Occupancy expenses   (31,889 ) (34,247 ) -  - 
Expected credit losses 43  (30,021 ) (15,613 ) (59,055 ) 93,021 
Other operating expenses   (92,937 ) (152,698 ) (41,870 ) (88,917 ) 
2SHUDWLQJ�SURîW� �� �������� � ��������� �������� � ������� 
Finance costs 3  (98,257 ) (75,167 ) (99,840 ) (69,542 ) 
'HUHFRJQLWLRQ�ORVVHV�RQ�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
at amortised cost   (91,244 ) -  -  - 
Change in fair value of equity instrument   -  -  93,787  - 
3URîW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� ��� �������� � ��������� �������� � ������� 
Income tax expense 6  (15,283 ) (21,484 ) (8,552 ) (8,382 ) 
3URîW�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV� �� �������� � �������� �������� � ������� 
 
Loss for the year from discontinued operations, 
net of tax   -  (24,178 ) -  - 
3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� �� �������� � �������� �������� � ������� 

2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�
,WHPV�WKDW�ZLOO�QRW�EH�VXEVHTXHQWO\�UHFODVVLîHG�
WR�SURîW�RU�ORVV 

Loss /(gain) on revaluation of land and buildings   1,506  (4,666 ) -  - 
Deferred taxation on revaluation loss /(gain)   883  1,822  -  - 
(Losses) gains on valuation of investments in 
equity instruments   (38,971 ) 30,107  (38,971 ) 30,107 
Share of other comprehensive income of equity 
accounted investees 12  28,145  (20 ) -  - 

7RWDO�LWHPV�WKDW�ZLOO�QRW�EH�UHFODVVLîHG�WR�SURîW�RU�ORVV� �� ��������� �������� ���������� ������ 
2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU��QHW�RI�WD[DWLRQ� ��������� �������� ���������� ������ 
7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU� �� �������� � �������� �������� � ������� 

3URîW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR� 
Owners of the Company   131,237  33,310  222,544  198,733 
Non-controlling interest   4,821  21,155  -  - 
   �������� � �������� �������� � ������� 

2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR� 
Owners of the Company   (8,437 ) 27,243  (38,971 ) 30,107 
Non-controlling interest   (2,416 ) -  -  - 
   ���������� �������� ���������� ������ 


�6HH�1RWH���

6WDWHPHQWV�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�DV�DW����-XQH�����


�6HH�1RWH���

� � � ���� *URXS� � ��������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� 1RWH�V�� � ������ ����� � ������ ����� � ����
� � � �� 5HVWDWHG�
� � 5HVWDWHG�


Assets
1RQ�&XUUHQW�$VVHWV
Investment property 7  1,128,772  1,883,410  2,024,301  -  -
Property, plant and equipment 8  419,994  420,383  392,893  2,064  4,451
Intangible assets 9  2,887  2,827  3,266  2,813  2,639
Right-of-use assets 10  -  2,523  -  124,388  136,938
Investments in subsidiaries 11  -  -  -  900,449  1,217,856
Equity accounted investees 12  722,322  240,759  211,589  547,950  48,247
Other investments 13  1,877,448  1,655,617  847,911  2,049,526  1,759,499
Due from group companies 14  -  -  -  121,567  136,107
Rental straight-line adjustment 7  9,172  60,907  65,496  -  -
Deferred taxation 28  27,124  6,140  10,789  -  -
   ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

&XUUHQW�$VVHWV
Inventories 15  6,661  6,891  7,577  -  -
Trade and other receivables 16  92,560  86,459  75,046  121,277  112,370
Other investments 13  148,577  63,853  80,560  167,355  85,700
Other assets 17  4,706  3,154  11,368  -  -
Cash and cash equivalents 18  485,960  380,571  360,970  447,028  50,803
Current tax receivable   14,329  26,267  25,124  4,310  4,974
   752,793  567,195  560,645  739,970  253,847
1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�
for sale 37  187,284  11,750  42,250  -  -
7RWDO�$VVHWV   ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

(TXLW\�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV
(TXLW\
Stated capital 19  888,269  888,269  888,269  888,269  888,269
Fair value reserve 20  318,835  477,137  447,030  318,835  477,137
Other reserves 21  465,499  437,381  450,530  134,775  135,169
Claims equalisation reserve 22  1,207  1,207  4,207  -  -
Retained earnings   1,014,685  784,117  771,330  910,361  588,092
(TXLW\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RZQHUV�RI�WKH�
&RPSDQ\� � � ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������
Non-controlling interests 23  109,368  365,841  366,260  -  -
7RWDO�HTXLW\� � � ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

/LDELOLWLHV

1RQ�&XUUHQW�/LDELOLWLHV
Borrowings 24  1,097,682  921,895  549,296  1,030,824  611,599
Government grants 25  10,343  10,699  11,055  -  -
Bonds outstanding 26  346,959  345,504  344,015  346,959  345,504
Lease liabilities 10  -  2,522  -  165,851  178,496
Provisions for restoration costs 27  9,904  13,495  12,069  -  -
Deferred taxation 28  128,479  150,139  147,810  -  -
   ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

&XUUHQW�/LDELOLWLHV
Borrowings 24  444,011  170,838  18,802  430,406  148,678
Government grants 25  356  356  356  -  -
Current tax payable   1,724  757  2,056  757  757
Trade and other payables 29  125,667  171,360  133,327  90,962  86,276
Lease liabilities 10  -  -  -  5,991  -
Bank overdraft 18 & 30  164,808  99,695  5,969  164,737  99,607
Dividend payable   -  10,299  6,759  -  -
   736,566  453,305  167,269  692,853  335,318
7RWDO�/LDELOLWLHV� � � ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������
7RWDO�(TXLW\�DQG�/LDELOLWLHV� � � ����������� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������
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� � � � � � � &ODLPV� � � � 5HWDLQHG� � �������7RWDO� � 1RQ�� �
� �������� 6WDWHG� � )DLU�9DOXH� � ������(TXDOLVDWLRQ��� ����2WKHU��� HDUQLQJV� �������$WWULEXWDEOH�WR�� FRQWUROOLQJ� �
� �������� &DSLWDO� � �5HVHUYH��� ������5HVHUYH� � ����5HVHUYH� � � � �������0HPEHUV� � ,QWHUHVWV� � ���������7RWDO
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � HTXLW\
)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG     
<HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�����                 

*URXS
Opening balance as previously reported   888,269  447,030  4,207  293,285  905,721  2,538,512  366,260  2,904,772
Adjustments

Prior period error   -  -  -  157,245  (134,391 ) 22,854  -  22,854
Adjustments on initial application of IFRS 9   -  -  -  -  (3,311 ) (3,311 ) -  (3,311 )
Other movements   -  -  -  -  (5,496 ) (5,496 ) -  (5,496 )
5HVWDWHG
�%DODQFH�DW���-XO\�������DV�UHVWDWHG� � � �������� � �������� � ������ � �������� � �������� � ���������� � �������� � ���������
3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU���UHVWDWHG� � � �� � �� � �� � �� � ������� � ������� � ������� � ������
Other comprehensive income   -  30,107  -  (2,864 ) -  27,243  -  27,243
7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � ������� � �� � ��������� ������� � ������� � ������� � ������
Transfer between reserves   -  -  (3,000 ) (3,246 ) 6,246  -  -  -
Other  Movements   -  -  -  (7,038 ) 7,038  -  -  -
Debenture interest declared during the year   -  -  -  -  -  -  (19,392 ) (19,392 )
Dividend paid   -  -  -  -  (25,000 ) (25,000 ) (1,362 ) (26,362 )
   �� � �� � ��������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������

%DODQFH�DW����-XO\��������UHVWDWHG� � � �������� � �������� � ������ � �������� � �������� � ���������� � �������� � ���������
3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � �� � �� � �� � �������� � �������� � ������ � �������
Other comprehensive income   -  (38,971 ) -  28,117  -  (10,854 ) (2,416 ) (13,270 )
7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � ���������� �� � ������� � �������� � �������� � ������ � �������

Transfer of investment revaluation reserve upon disposal 
of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value 
through other comprehensive income   -  (119,331 ) -  -  119,331  -  -  -
Disposal of NCI on loss of control   -  -  -  -  -  -  (259,698 ) (259,698 )
Dividend paid   -  -  -  -  (20,000 ) (20,000 ) -  (20,000 )
  � �� � ����������� �� � �� � ������� � ���������� ����������� ����������
%DODQFH�DW����-XQH������� � � �������� � �������� � ������ � �������� � ���������� � ���������� � �������� � ���������
Note(s)   19  20  22  21      23

&RPSDQ\
Opening balance as previously reported   888,269  447,030  -  101,238  450,210  1,886,747  -  1,886,747
Adjustments
Change in accounting policy   -  -  -  -  (1,920 ) (1,920 ) -  (1,920 )
5HVWDWHG
�%DODQFH�DW���-XO\�������DV�UHVWDWHG� � � �������� � �������� � �� � �������� � �������� � ���������� � �� � ���������
3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � �� � �� � �� � �������� � �������� � �� � �������
Other comprehensive income   -  30,107  -  -  -  30,107  -  30,107
7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � ������� � �� � �� � �������� � �������� � �� � �������
Transfer between reserves   -  -  -  33,931  (33,931 ) -  -  -
Dividend paid   -  -  -  -  (25,000 ) (25,000 ) -  (25,000 )
7RWDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�RZQHU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\� � � �� � �� � �� � ������� � ���������� ���������� �� � ���������
%DODQFH�DW���-XO\������� � � �������� � �������� � �� � �������� � �������� � ���������� � �� � ���������
3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � �� � �� � �� � �������� � �������� � �� � �������
Other comprehensive income   -  (38,971 ) -  -  -  (38,971 ) -  (38,971 )
7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � �� � ���������� �� � �� � �������� � �������� � �� � �������
Transfer of investment revaluation reserve upon disposal 
of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value 
through other comprehensive income   -  (119,331 ) -  (394 ) 119,725  -  -  -
Dividend paid   -  -  -  -  (20,000 ) (20,000 ) -  (20,000 )
7RWDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�RZQHUV�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\� � � �� � ����������� �� � ������� ������� � ���������� �� � ���������
%DODQFH�DW����-XQH������� � � �������� � �������� � �� � �������� � �������� � ���������� � �� � ���������
Note(s)   19  20    21      23

6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\


�6HH�1RWH���

6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&DVK�)ORZV


�6HH�1RWH���

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� 1RWH�V��� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
� �� � � 5HVWDWHG�


&DVK�ïRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 34  37,407  140,024  37,645  (92,746 )
Tax paid   (21,700 ) (20,961 ) (7,888 ) (1,619 )
1HW�FDVK�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� �� ������� � ��������� ������� � ���������

&DVK�ïRZV�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8  (4,496 ) (23,118 ) (371 ) (1,180 )
Purchase of shares in subsidiary   -  -  (14,235 ) (39,330 )
Purchase of intangible assets 9  (186 ) (195 ) (174 ) -
Loans disbursed to subsidiaries   -  -  -  (67,023 )
Purchase of shares in associates   -  (33,959 ) -  -
3XUFKDVH�RI�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV� �� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������
Proceeds on disposal of investments   16,818  -  160,170  -
Loans repaid by other investment companies   62,734  37,477  64,065  37,477
Loans repaid by subsidiaries   -  -  -  19,782
Loans repaid by associated companies   -  4,041  -  -
Loans disbursed to unquoted investment companies   (380,892 ) (717,312 ) (412,265 ) (704,396 )
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties and 
assets held for sale   1,100  290,500  -  -
Proceeds from disposal of  property, plant and 
equipment   -  2  -  -
Purchase of investment properties 7  (22,736 ) (90,362 ) -  -
Interest Income   20,173  13,574  153,534  81,117
Dividends received   32,254  29,503  72,382  134,437
1HW�FDVK�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� �� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������

&DVK�ïRZV�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV

Long term borrowings raised   833,134  540,545  833,134  500,000
Long term borrowings repaid   (154,706 ) (15,910 ) (157,494 ) -
Dividends paid to group shareholder   (20,000 ) (25,000 ) (20,000 ) (25,000 )
Lease liability paid   -  -  (17,198 ) -
Debentutre interest and dividends paid to minority 
interest   -  (20,754 ) -  -
Finance costs   (98,257 ) (75,167 ) (99,840 ) (69,542 )
1HW�FDVK�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� �� �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

1HW�PRYHPHQW�LQ�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�
IRU�WKH�\HDU� �� ������� � ���������� �������� � ����������
Cash at the beginning of the year   280,876  355,001  (48,804 ) 283,534

7RWDO�FDVK�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� ���� �������� � ��������� �������� � ���������
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6LJQLîFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�cont.6LJQLîFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�cont.6LJQLîFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�

 &RUSRUDWH�,QIRUPDWLRQ

 Botswana Development Corporation Limited is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in 
Botswana.

� 7KH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������ZHUH�VLJQHG�DQG�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�
issue on 16 December 2020.

��� 6LJQLîFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV

� 7KH�SULQFLSDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�

���� %DVLV�RI�SUHSDUDWLRQ

� 7KH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�
ZLWK��DQG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK��,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��§,)56¨��LVVXHG�DQG�HǺHFWLYH�DW�WKH�
WLPH�RI�SUHSDULQJ�WKHVH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

� 7KH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�WKH�KLVWRULF�FRVW�FRQYHQWLRQ��XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�
accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are 
presented in Pulas, which is the company’s functional currency.

���� 6HJPHQWDO�UHSRUWLQJ

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating-decision maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and 
DVVHVVLQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�RSHUDWLQJ�VHJPHQWV��KDV�EHHQ�LGHQWLîHG�DV�WKH�([HFXWLYH�&RPPLWWHH�WKDW�PDNHV�
strategic decisions.

 The basis of segmental reporting has been set out in note 41.

���� &RQVROLGDWLRQ

� %DVLV�RI�FRQVROLGDWLRQ

� 7KH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQFRUSRUDWH�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�DOO�VXEVLGLDULHV��6XEVLGLDULHV�
are entities (including structured entities) which are controlled by the group.

 The group has control of an entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from involvement with 
WKH�HQWLW\�DQG�LW�KDV�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�DǺHFW�WKRVH�UHWXUQV�WKURXJK�XVH�RI�LWV�SRZHU�RYHU�WKH�HQWLW\�

� 7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IURP�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�DFTXLVLWLRQ�WR�WKH�
HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�GLVSRVDO�

� $GMXVWPHQWV�DUH�PDGH�ZKHQ�QHFHVVDU\�WR�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�VXEVLGLDULHV�WR�EULQJ�WKHLU�DFFRXQWLQJ�
policies in line with those of the group.

 All inter-company transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies 
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

� 1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�WKH�QHW�DVVHWV�RI�FRQVROLGDWHG�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�LGHQWLîHG�DQG�UHFRJQLVHG�VHSDUDWHO\�
from the group’s interest therein, and are recognised within equity. Losses of subsidiaries attributable to 
non-controlling interests are allocated to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a debit balance 
being recognised for non-controlling interest.

 Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions and are recognised directly in the Statements of Changes in Equity. 

� 7KH�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�SDLG�RU�UHFHLYHG�DQG�WKH�PRYHPHQW�LQ�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�
interest for such transactions is recognised in equity attributable to the owners of the company.

���� &RQVROLGDWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG�

 Where a subsidiary is disposed of and a non-controlling shareholding is retained, the remaining investment is 
PHDVXUHG�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�ZLWK�WKH�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�RQ�
disposal of the controlling interest. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently 
DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�WKH�UHWDLQHG�LQWHUHVW�DV�DQ�DVVRFLDWH��MRLQW�YHQWXUH�RU�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��DQ\�DPRXQWV�
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group 
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in 
RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�DUH�UHFODVVLîHG�WR�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

 ,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�VXEVLGLDULHV�LQ�WKH�VHSDUDWH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV

� ,Q� WKH� FRPSDQ\ªV� VHSDUDWH� îQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� LQYHVWPHQWV� LQ� VXEVLGLDULHV� DUH� FDUULHG� DW� FRVW� OHVV� DQ\�
accumulated impairment losses. This excludes investments which are held for sale and are consequently 
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

� %XVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQV

 The group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of the 
business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or 
assumed and equity instruments issued. Costs directly attributable to the business combination are expensed 
DV�LQFXUUHG��H[FHSW�WKH�FRVWV�WR�LVVXH�GHEW�ZKLFK�DUH�DPRUWLVHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�DQG�FRVWV�WR�
issue equity which are included in equity.

 Any contingent consideration is included in the cost of the business combination at fair value as at the date 
of acquisition. Subsequent changes to the assets, liability or equity which arise as a result of the contingent 
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ� DUH� QRW� DǺHFWHG� DJDLQVW� JRRGZLOO�� XQOHVV� WKH\� DUH� YDOLG� PHDVXUHPHQW� SHULRG� DGMXVWPHQWV��
Otherwise, all subsequent changes to the fair value of contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset 
RU�OLDELOLW\�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�HLWKHU�SURîW�RU�ORVV�RU�LQ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�UHOHYDQW�
,)56ªV��&RQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKDW�LV�FODVVLîHG�DV�HTXLW\�LV�QRW�UHPHDVXUHG��DQG�LWV�VXEVHTXHQW�VHWWOHPHQW�
is accounted for within equity.

� 7KH�DFTXLUHHªV�LGHQWLîDEOH�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�ZKLFK�PHHW�WKH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�FRQGLWLRQV�
of IFRS 3 Business combinations are recognised at their fair values at acquisition date, except for non-current 
DVVHWV��RU�GLVSRVDO�JURXSV��WKDW�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,)56���1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�
Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised at fair value less costs to sell.

� &RQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�RQO\�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�LGHQWLîDEOH�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�DFTXLUHH�ZKHUH�WKHUH�LV�D�
present obligation at acquisition date.

� 2Q�DFTXLVLWLRQ��WKH�DFTXLUHHªV�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�UHDVVHVVHG�LQ�WHUPV�RI�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�DQG�DUH�UHFODVVLîHG�
ZKHUH�WKH�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�LV�LQDSSURSULDWH�IRU�JURXS�SXUSRVHV��7KLV�H[FOXGHV�OHDVH�DJUHHPHQWV�DQG�LQVXUDQFH�
FRQWUDFWV��ZKRVH�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�UHPDLQV�DV�SHU�WKHLU�LQFHSWLRQ�GDWH�

 Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair 
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s 
LGHQWLîDEOH� QHW� DVVHWV�� 7KLV� WUHDWPHQW� DSSOLHV� WR� QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ� LQWHUHVWV� ZKLFK� DUH� SUHVHQW� RZQHUVKLS�
interests, and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation. 
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair values, unless 
another measurement basis is required by IFRS’s.

 In cases where the group held a non-controlling shareholding in the acquiree prior to obtaining control, that 
LQWHUHVW�LV�PHDVXUHG�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�DV�DW�DFTXLVLWLRQ�GDWH��7KH�PHDVXUHPHQW�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�
ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU��:KHUH�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�VKDUHKROGLQJ�ZDV�FODVVLîHG�DV�DQ�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW��WKH�
cumulative fair value adjustments recognised previously to other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
HTXLW\�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DV�D�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�DGMXVWPHQW��

 Under IFRS 9, the consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 
UHODWLRQVKLSV�� 6XFK� DPRXQWV� DUH� JHQHUDOO\� UHFRJQLVHG� LQ� SURîW� RU� ORVV�� $Q\� FRQWLQJHQW� FRQVLGHUDWLRQ� LV�
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the 
GHîQLWLRQ�RI�D�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�LV�FODVVLîHG�DV�HTXLW\��WKHQ�LW�LV�QRW�UHPHDVXUHG�DQG�VHWWOHPHQW�LV�DFFRXQWHG�
for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date 
DQG�VXEVHTXHQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�FRQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��
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6LJQLîFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�cont.6LJQLîFDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�cont.

���� &RQVROLGDWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG��

 Goodwill is determined as the consideration paid, plus the fair value of any shareholding held prior to obtaining 
FRQWURO�� SOXV� QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ� LQWHUHVW� DQG� OHVV� WKH� IDLU� YDOXH� RI� WKH� LGHQWLîDEOH� DVVHWV� DQG� OLDELOLWLHV� RI� WKH�
DFTXLUHH�� ,I�� LQ� WKH�FDVH�RI�D�EDUJDLQ�SXUFKDVH�� WKH� UHVXOW�RI� WKLV� IRUPXOD� LV�QHJDWLYH�� WKHQ� WKH�GLǺHUHQFH� LV�
UHFRJQLVHG�GLUHFWO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

 Goodwill is not amortised but is tested on an annual basis for impairment. If goodwill is assessed to be impaired, 
that impairment is not subsequently reversed.

 Goodwill arising on acquisition of foreign entities is considered an asset of the foreign entity. In such cases 
the goodwill is translated to the functional currency of the group at the end of each reporting period with the 
adjustment recognised in equity through to other comprehensive income.

���� (TXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV

� $Q�DVVRFLDWH� LV� DQ�HQWLW\�RYHU�ZKLFK� WKH�JURXS�KDV� VLJQLîFDQW� LQïXHQFH�DQG�ZKLFK� LV�QHLWKHU� D� VXEVLGLDU\�
QRU�D�MRLQW�DUUDQJHPHQW��6LJQLîFDQW�LQïXHQFH�LV�WKH�SRZHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�SROLF\�
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. It generally accompanies a 
VKDUHKROGLQJ�RI�EHWZHHQ�����DQG�����RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�

� ,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�DVVRFLDWHV�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�XVLQJ�WKH�HTXLW\�PHWKRG��H[FHSW�ZKHQ�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�LV�FODVVLîHG�
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. 
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost 
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of net assets of the associate, less any impairment 
losses.

� 7KH�JURXSªV�VKDUH�RI�SRVW�DFTXLVLWLRQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��DQG�LWV�VKDUH�RI�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. Losses in an associate in excess of the group’s interest in that 
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, are recognised only to the extent that the group has 
incurred a legal or constructive obligation to make payments on behalf of the associate.

 Any goodwill on acquisition of an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment, however, a 
JDLQ�RQ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

� 3URîWV�RU�ORVVHV�RQ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�JURXS�DQG�DQ�DVVRFLDWH�DUH�HOLPLQDWHG�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�RI�WKH�JURXSªV�
interest therein. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of 
the asset transferred. 

� :KHQ�WKH�JURXS�UHGXFHV�LWV�OHYHO�RI�VLJQLîFDQW�LQïXHQFH�RU�ORVHV�VLJQLîFDQW�LQïXHQFH��WKH�JURXS�SURSRUWLRQDWHO\�
UHFODVVLîHV�WKH�UHODWHG�LWHPV�ZKLFK�ZHUH�SUHYLRXVO\�DFFXPXODWHG�LQ�HTXLW\�WKURXJK�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�
WR�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DV�D�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�DGMXVWPHQW��,Q�VXFK�FDVHV��LI�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�UHPDLQV��WKDW�LQYHVWPHQW�LV�
PHDVXUHG�WR�IDLU�YDOXH��ZLWK�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�DGMXVWPHQW�EHLQJ�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�JDLQ�RU�
loss on disposal.

���� 6LJQLîFDQW�MXGJHPHQWV�DQG�VRXUFHV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\

� 7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�,)56�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW��IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH��WR�
PDNH�MXGJHPHQWV��HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�WKDW�DǺHFW�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�SROLFLHV�DQG�UHSRUWHG�DPRXQWV�RI�
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience 
DQG�YDULRXV�RWKHU�IDFWRUV�WKDW�DUH�EHOLHYHG�WR�EH�UHDVRQDEOH�XQGHU�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��$FWXDO�UHVXOWV�PD\�GLǺHU�
from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
SHULRGV�DǺHFWHG�

� &ULWLFDO�MXGJHPHQWV�LQ�DSSO\LQJ�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV

 The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those involving 
HVWLPDWLRQV��WKDW�KDYH�WKH�PRVW�VLJQLîFDQW�HǺHFW�RQ�WKH�DPRXQWV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DUH�
outlined as follows:

 

���� 6LJQLîFDQW�MXGJHPHQWV�DQG�VRXUFHV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\��FRQWLQXHG�

� 9DOXDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV

� 7KH�*URXS�RZQV�D�SRUWIROLR�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�FRPSULVLQJ�RǸFH�EXLOGLQJV��UHVLGHQWLDO�SURSHUW\��LQGXVWULDO�
and mixed use properties located primarily in Gaborone, Selibe-Phikwe and Lobatse. The carrying values of 
the investment properties amounted to P1.287 billion as at 30 June 2020 (2019: P1.883 billion, restated). This 
DFFRXQWV�IRU�����RI�WKH�JURXSªV�WRWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV��

� 7KH�*URXSªV�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�îQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
EDVHG�RQ�YDOXDWLRQV�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�LQGHSHQGHQW�TXDOLîHG�SURIHVVLRQDO�YDOXHUV��§WKH�YDOXHUV¨���7KH�YDOXDWLRQV�
are dependent on unobservable inputs which are generally applied by valuers. These unobservable inputs 
involve judgement.

� 7KH�YDOXDWLRQ�PRGHO�FRQVLGHUV�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�QHW�FDVK�ïRZV�WR�EH�JHQHUDWHG�IURP�SURSHUW\��WDNLQJ�LQWR�
account the expected rental growth rate, void periods, occupancy rate, lease incentive costs such as rent-free 
SHULRGV� DQG� RWKHU� FRVWV� QRW� SDLG� E\� WHQDQWV�� 7KH� H[SHFWHG� FDVK� ïRZV� DUH� GLVFRXQWHG� XVLQJ� ULVN�DGMXVWHG�
discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimations considers the quality of a building and its 
location (prime vs secondary) tenant credit worthiness and lease terms.

� )DLU�YDOXH�LV�EDVHG�RQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHW�SULFHV��DGMXVWHG��LI�QHFHVVDU\��IRU�DQ\�GLǺHUHQFH�LQ�WKH�QDWXUH��ORFDWLRQ�RU�
FRQGLWLRQ�RI�WKH�VSHFLîF�DVVHW��,I�WKLV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QRW�DYDLODEOH��WKH�JURXS�XVHV�DOWHUQDWLYH�YDOXDWLRQ�PHWKRGV�
VXFK�DV�UHFHQW�SULFHV�RQ�OHVV�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�RU�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ïRZ�SURMHFWLRQV�

 These valuations are reviewed annually by the directors. Investment property that is being redeveloped 
for continuing use as investment property or for which the market has become less active continues to be 
measured at fair value.

 Land Block 5 

 Property previously transferred from the Government to the group is also carried at cost. The group has not yet 
IXOîOOHG�LWV�GXWLHV�SHU�WKH�DJUHHPHQW�RI�GHYHORSLQJ�WKH�ODQG��EXLOGLQJ�KRXVLQJ�DQG�D�JROI�FRXUVH�WR�WKH�YDOXH�RI�
P16 million) within two years as agreed with Government in 2003. The Group has applied the exemption in IAS 
40.53 as the fair value of the land is not reliably measurable until construction is completed. Once construction 
LV�FRPSOHWHG��WKH�SURSHUW\�ZLOO�EH�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��&RQVWUXFWLRQ�FRPPHQFHG�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG�
30 June 2020.

 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates

 The carrying value of the company’s investments in subsidiaries and associates amounted to P1 448 million 
�������3������PLOOLRQ��DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��7KLV�FRQVWLWXWHV�����������������RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\ªV�WRWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�
assets. The company assesses its investment in subsidiaries and associates whenever circumstances may 
indicate the presence of impairment indicators. The value of the investments is determined using generally 
DFFHSWHG� YDOXDWLRQ�PHWKRGV� WKDW� DUH�EDVHG�RQ�RYHUDOO� VWUDWHJLF�EXVLQHVV�PRGHOV�DQG� WKH� FXUUHQW� îQDQFLDO�
position and past performance of these subsidiaries and associated companies.

 Management compares the carrying values of the investments in subsidiaries and associates with the 
UHVSHFWLYH� QHW� DVVHW� YDOXHV� SHU� WKH� îQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� 0DQDJHPHQW� DOVR� WDNHV� LQWR� FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�
information available at the reporting date which may have contributed to the current performance or which 
is expected to improve future performance of the subsidiaries and associated companies. The assessment of 
WKHVH� LQYHVWPHQWV� IRU� LPSDLUPHQW� WKHUHIRUH�UHTXLUHV�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI� MXGJPHQW�DQG�WKH�XVH�RI�VLJQLîFDQW�
DVVXPSWLRQV�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�IXWXUH�SURîWDELOLW\�DQG�WKH�FXUUHQW�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV�KHOG�E\�WKH�VXEVLGLDULHV�DQG�
associated companies. 

 Taxation

� 7KH�JURXS� UHFRJQLVHV� WKH�QHW� IXWXUH� WD[�EHQHîW� UHODWHG� WR�GHIHUUHG� LQFRPH� WD[�DVVHWV� WR� WKH�H[WHQW� WKDW� LW�
LV� SUREDEOH� WKDW� WKH� GHGXFWLEOH� WHPSRUDU\� GLǺHUHQFHV�ZLOO� UHYHUVH� LQ� WKH� IRUHVHHDEOH� IXWXUH��$VVHVVLQJ� WKH�
UHFRYHUDELOLW\� RI� GHIHUUHG� LQFRPH� WD[� DVVHWV� UHTXLUHV� WKH� JURXS� WR� PDNH� VLJQLîFDQW� HVWLPDWHV� UHODWHG� WR�
H[SHFWDWLRQV�RI�IXWXUH�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH��(VWLPDWHV�RI�IXWXUH�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�IRUHFDVW�FDVK�ïRZV�
IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�H[LVWLQJ�WD[�ODZV��7R�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�IXWXUH�FDVK�ïRZV�DQG�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH�
GLǺHU�VLJQLîFDQWO\�IURP�HVWLPDWHV��WKH�DELOLW\�RI�WKH�JURXS�WR�UHDOLVH�WKH�QHW�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�UHFRUGHG�DW�WKH�
end of the reporting period could be impacted.
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���� 6LJQLîFDQW�MXGJHPHQWV�DQG�VRXUFHV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\��FRQWLQXHG��

 Impairment loss on debtors

 The directors reviews its debtors to assess impairment on a monthly basis. In determining whether an 
LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�VKRXOG�EH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��WKH�GLUHFWRUV�PDNH�MXGJPHQWV�DV�WR�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�LV�DQ\�
REVHUYDEOH�GDWD� LQGLFDWLQJ� WKDW� WKHUH� LV�D�PHDVXUDEOH�GHFUHDVH� LQ�HVWLPDWHG�FDVK�ïRZV� IURP�D�SRUWIROLR�RI�
debtors. Directors use estimates based on the default rate together with forward looking information  in terms 
RI�WKH��VLPSOLîHG�DSSURDFK���XQGHU�,)56�����UHIHU�1RWH��������7KH�DVVXPSWLRQV�XVHG�IRU�HVWLPDWLQJ�WKH�DPRXQW�
DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�FDVK�ïRZV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�UHJXODUO\�WR�UHGXFH�DQ\�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�ORVV�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DFWXDO�
loss experience.                                                                                   

� /RDQV�WR�VXEVLGLDULHV��DVVRFLDWHV�DQG�QRQ�DǸOLDWHV

� /RDQV� WR� VXEVLGLDULHV�� DVVRFLDWHV� DQG� QRQ� DǹLDWHV� DUH� LQLWLDOO\� UHFRJQLVHG� DW� IDLU� YDOXH� DQG� VXEVHTXHQWO\�
PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�OHVV�LPSDLUPHQW��8QGHU�,)56���WKH�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVV�LV�HVWLPDWHG�DV�WKH�GLǺHUHQFH�
EHWZHHQ�DOO�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV�WKDW�DUH�GXH�WR�WKH�JURXS�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�FDVK�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV�WHVW�
DQG�DOO� FDVK�ïRZV� WKDW� WKH�JURXS�H[SHFWV� WR� UHFHLYH��GLVFRXQWHG�DW� WKH�RULJLQDO�HǺHFWLYH� LQWHUHVW� UDWH�� �7KH�
LPSDLUPHQW�RI�ORDQV�IURP�VXEVLGLDULHV��DVVRFLDWHV�DQG�QRQ�DǹLDWHV��LV�FRPSXWHG�RQ�D�ORDQ�E\�ORDQ�EDVLV�XVLQJ�
D�IRUPXOD�(&/� �3'
/*'
($'��6LJQLîFDQW�MXGJHPHQW�LV�DSSOLHG�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�3UREDELOLW\�RI�'HIDXOW��3'��
and Loss Given Default (LGD).

 3UREDELOLW\�RI�'HIDXOW��3'�� Estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. 

 /RVV�*LYHQ�'HIDXOW��/*'��� Estimate of the loss arising in case a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the 
GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV�GXH�DQG�WKRVH�WKDW�WKH�OHQGHU�ZRXOG�H[SHFW�WR�UHFHLYH��LQFOXGLQJ�
from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

 ([SRVXUH�DW�'HIDXOW��($'��� Estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected 
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether 
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from 
missed payment.

 The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration 
since initial recognition. Under the general approach, there are two measurement bases: 

� ���PRQWK�(&/V��VWDJH�����ZKLFK�DSSO\�WR�DOO�LWHPV�DV�ORQJ�DV�WKHUH�LV�QR�VLJQLîFDQW�GHWHULRUDWLRQ�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN

� /LIHWLPH�(&/V� �VWDJHV���DQG�����ZKLFK�DSSO\�ZKHQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW� LQFUHDVH� � LQ� FUHGLW� ULVN�KDV�RFFXUUHG�RQ�DQ�
individual or collective basis.

���� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\

 Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only when, it is probable that the future economic 
EHQHîWV�WKDW�DUH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�ZLOO�ïRZ�WR�WKH�JURXS��DQG�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�
property can be measured reliably.

 Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

 Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service 
a property. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

� ,Q� FHUWDLQ� FLUFXPVWDQFHV� LW� LV� GLǸFXOW� WR� GLVWLQJXLVK� LQYHVWPHQW� SURSHUW\� IURP�RZQHU� RFFXSLHG� SURSHUW\� RU�
inventory. In those circumstances the criteria used to distinguish investment property are where the owner 
RFFXSLHG�VHFWLRQ�LV�LQVLJQLîFDQW�

���� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��FRQWLQXHG�

 )DLU�YDOXH

 Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.

� $�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�DULVLQJ�IURP�D�FKDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�QHW�SURîW�RU�ORVV�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�LW�DULVHV�

 There are no property interests held under operating leases which are recognised as investment property.

 5HFODVVLîFDWLRQ�WR�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\
 When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is remeasured 

WR� IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�UHFODVVLîHG�DFFRUGLQJO\��$Q\�JDLQ�DULVLQJ�RQ�WKLV� UHPHDVXUHPHQW� LV� UHFRJQLVHG� LQ�SURîW�RU�
ORVV�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�UHYHUVHV�D�SUHYLRXV�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�RQ�WKH�VSHFLîF�SURSHUW\��ZLWK�DQ\�UHPDLQLQJ�JDLQ�
UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�2&,�DQG�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�UHYDODXWLRQ�UHVHUYH��$Q\�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��+RZHYHU��WR�
the extent that an amount is included in the revaluation surplus for that property, the loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and reduces the revaluation surplus within equity.

 'HUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\

� $Q�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�VKDOO�EH�GHUHFRJQLVHG��HOLPLQDWHG�IURP�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�îQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��RQ�GLVSRVDO�
RU�ZKHQ� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\� LV�SHUPDQHQWO\�ZLWKGUDZQ� IURP�XVH�DQG�QR� IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�DUH�
expected from its disposal.

� 7KH�GLVSRVDO�RI�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�PD\�EH�DFKLHYHG�E\�VDOH�RU�E\�HQWHULQJ�LQWR�D�îQDQFH�OHDVH���

���� 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW

 Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the group holds for its own use or for rental to others 
and which are expected to be used for more than one year.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic 
EHQHîWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LWHP�ZLOO�ïRZ�WR�WKH�JURXS��DQG�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�LWHP�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\�

 Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on 
qualifying assets.

 When investment property is transferred to property, plant and equipment, the cost is the fair value on the date 
of transfer.

 Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant 
DQG�HTXLSPHQW�DUH�FDSLWDOLVHG�LI�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�H[SHQGLWXUH�
ZLOO�ïRZ�WR�WKH�JURXS�DQG�WKH�FRVW�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\��'D\�WR�GD\�VHUYLFLQJ�FRVWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�
loss in the year in which they are incurred.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, except for land and buildings which are stated at revalued 
amounts. The revalued amount is the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

� 5HYDOXDWLRQV�DUH�PDGH�ZLWK�VXǸFLHQW�UHJXODULW\�VXFK�WKDW�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�GRHV�QRW�GLǺHU�PDWHULDOO\�IURP�
that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting year.

 When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted consistently 
with the revaluation of the carrying amount. The accumulated depreciation at that date is adjusted to equal the 
GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DQG�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DIWHU�WDNLQJ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�DFFXPXODWHG�
impairment losses.

 When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the 
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

 Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive 
LQFRPH�DQG�DFFXPXODWHG�LQ�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�LQ�HTXLW\��7KH�LQFUHDVH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�WR�WKH�
H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�UHYHUVHV�D�UHYDOXDWLRQ�GHFUHDVH�RI�WKH�VDPH�DVVHW�SUHYLRXVO\�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�
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���� 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��FRQWLQXHG�

� $Q\�GHFUHDVH�LQ�DQ�DVVHWªV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW��DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�D�UHYDOXDWLRQ��LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LQ�WKH�
current year. The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance 
existing in the revaluation reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive 
income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation reserve in equity.

� 7KH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�UHODWHG�WR�D�VSHFLîF� LWHP�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� LV� WUDQVIHUUHG�GLUHFWO\� WR�
retained income when the asset is derecognised.

 Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. 
'HSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�FKDUJHG�WR�ZULWH�RǺ�WKH�DVVHWªV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RYHU�LWV�HVWLPDWHG�XVHIXO�OLIH�WR�LWV�HVWLPDWHG�
UHVLGXDO� YDOXH�� XVLQJ� D� PHWKRG� WKDW� EHVW� UHïHFWV� WKH� SDWWHUQ� LQ� ZKLFK� WKH� DVVHWªV� HFRQRPLF� EHQHîWV� DUH�
consumed by the group. Leased assets are depreciated in a consistent manner over the shorter of their 
expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value 
exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the 
DVVHW�LV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�RU�GHUHFRJQLVHG�

 The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

 ,WHP� �'HSUHFLDWLRQ�PHWKRG� �$YHUDJH�XVHIXO�OLIH

 Land and buildings  Straight line    25-50 years
 Plant and machinery  Straight line    14-25 years
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�î[WXUHV� �6WUDLJKW�OLQH� � � ������\HDUV
 Motor vehicles  Straight line    3-5 years
 IT equipment  Straight line    3-5 years

 The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
\HDU��,I�WKH�H[SHFWDWLRQV�GLǺHU�IURP�SUHYLRXV�HVWLPDWHV��WKH�FKDQJH�LV�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�SURVSHFWLYHO\�DV�D�FKDQJH�
in accounting estimate.

� (DFK�SDUW�RI�DQ�LWHP�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�ZLWK�D�FRVW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLîFDQW�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�WRWDO�FRVW�
of the item is depreciated separately.

� 7KH�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�FKDUJH�IRU�HDFK�\HDU�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�XQOHVV�LW�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�
of another asset.

 Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be 
impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than 
WKH�HVWLPDWHG�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW��DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�WR�EULQJ�WKH�
carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.

� $Q�LWHP�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�GHUHFRJQLVHG�XSRQ�GLVSRVDO�RU�ZKHQ�QR�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�
are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��GHWHUPLQHG�DV�WKH�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�QHW�GLVSRVDO�SURFHHGV��LI�DQ\��DQG�WKH�
FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�LWHP��LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�ZKHQ�WKH�LWHP�LV�GHUHFRJQLVHG�

���� 6LWH�UHVWRUDWLRQ�DQG�GLVPDQWOLQJ�FRVW

 The group has an obligation to dismantle, remove and restore items of property, plant and equipment. Such 
obligations are referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities’. The cost of an item of 
property, plant and equipment includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item 
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is 
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period.

 If the related asset is measured using the cost model:
a subject to (b), changes in the liability are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the 

current period
b if a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised 

LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV
c if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the entity considers whether this is an 

indication that new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such an indication, 
the asset is tested for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount, and any impairment loss is 
UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

���� 6LWH�UHVWRUDWLRQ�DQG�GLVPDQWOLQJ�FRVW��FRQWLQXHG��

 If the related asset is measured using the revaluation model:
D� FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�OLDELOLW\�DOWHU�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�VXUSOXV�RU�GHîFLW�SUHYLRXVO\�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�WKDW�DVVHW��VR�

that:
- a decrease in the liability (subject to (b)) is credited in other comprehensive income and 

DFFXPXODWHG�LQ�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�LQ�HTXLW\��H[FHSW�WKDW�LW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�WR�
WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW� LW� UHYHUVHV�D�UHYDOXDWLRQ�GHîFLW�RQ�WKH�DVVHW�WKDW�ZDV�SUHYLRXVO\�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�
SURîW�RU�ORVV

�� DQ� LQFUHDVH� LQ� WKH� OLDELOLW\� LV� UHFRJQLVHG� LQ� SURîW� RU� ORVV�� H[FHSW� WKDW� LW� LV� GHELWHG� WR� RWKHU�
comprehensive income as a decrease to the revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit 
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

b in the event that a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been recognised 
KDG�WKH�DVVHW�EHHQ�FDUULHG�XQGHU�WKH�FRVW�PRGHO��WKH�H[FHVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

c a change in the liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure that 
WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�GRHV�QRW�GLǺHU�PDWHULDOO\�IURP�WKDW�ZKLFK�ZRXOG�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�XVLQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�
the end of the reporting period. Any such revaluation is taken into account in determining the amounts 
WR�EH�WDNHQ�WR�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�WR�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�XQGHU��D���,I�D�UHYDOXDWLRQ�LV�QHFHVVDU\��
all assets of that class are revalued.

���� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV

 An intangible asset is recognised when:
�� LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�WKDW�DUH�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�DVVHW�ZLOO�ïRZ�WR�WKH�

entity; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

 Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an 
internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

 An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognised when:

• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• there is an ability to use or sell it.
�� �LW�ZLOO�JHQHUDWH�SUREDEOH�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�
�� �WKHUH�DUH�DYDLODEOH�WHFKQLFDO��îQDQFLDO�DQG�RWKHU�UHVRXUFHV�WR�FRPSOHWH�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�WR�XVH�RU�

sell the asset.
•  the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

 Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

 Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

 Intangible assets that are acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from goodwill and are 
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to 
initial recongnition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are aquired 
separately.

 The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.

� 5HDVVHVVLQJ�WKH�XVHIXO�OLIH�RI�DQ�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHW�ZLWK�D�îQLWH�XVHIXO�OLIH�DIWHU�LW�ZDV�FODVVLîHG�DV�LQGHîQLWH�LV�
an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining 
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

 Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets.

 Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as 
follows:

 ,WHP� �'HSUHFLDWLRQ�PHWKRG� �$YHUDJH�XVHIXO�OLIH

 Computer software, other  Straight line    3 years
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����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV

� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�KHOG�E\�WKH�JURXS�DUH�FODVVLîHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,)56���)LQDQFLDO�,QVWUXPHQWV�

� %URDGO\��WKH�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�SRVVLELOLWLHV��ZKLFK�DUH�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�JURXS�DV�DSSOLFDEOH��DUH�DV�IROORZV�

 Financial assets which are equity instruments:
• 0DQGDWRULO\�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURîW�RU�ORVV��RU
•  Designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income. (This designation is not available to equity 

instruments which are held for trading or which are contingent consideration in a business combination).

Financial assets which are debt instruments:
•  Amortised cost. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on 

VSHFLîHG�GDWHV��WR�FDVK�ïRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�RQ�SULQFLSDO��DQG�ZKHUH�
the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to collect 
FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV���RU

•  Fair value through other comprehensive income. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of 
WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�JLYH�ULVH��RQ�VSHFLîHG�GDWHV��WR�FDVK�ïRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�
on principal, and where the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
FROOHFWLQJ�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV�DQG�VHOOLQJ�WKH�LQVWUXPHQWV���RU�

• �0DQGDWRULO\� DW� IDLU� YDOXH� WKURXJK� SURîW� RU� ORVV�� �7KLV� FODVVLîFDWLRQ� DXWRPDWLFDOO\� DSSOLHV� WR� DOO� GHEW�
instruments which do not qualify as at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income); or

• �'HVLJQDWHG� DW� IDLU� YDOXH� WKURXJK� SURîW� RU� ORVV�� �7KLV� FODVVLîFDWLRQ� RSWLRQ� FDQ� RQO\� EH� DSSOLHG�ZKHQ� LW�
HOLPLQDWHV�RU�VLJQLîFDQWO\�UHGXFHV�DQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�PLVPDWFK��

 Financial liabilities:
• Amortised cost; or
• �0DQGDWRULO\�DW� IDLU� YDOXH� WKURXJK�SURîW�RU� ORVV�� �7KLV�DSSOLHV� WR�FRQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ� LQ�D�EXVLQHVV�

combination or to liabilities which are held for trading); or
• �'HVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURîW�RU�ORVV���7KLV�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�RSWLRQ�FDQ�EH�DSSOLHG�ZKHQ�LW�HOLPLQDWHV�

RU�VLJQLîFDQWO\�UHGXFHV�DQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�PLVPDWFK��WKH�OLDELOLW\�IRUPV�SDUW�RI�D�JURXS�RI�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
managed on a fair value basis; or it forms part of a contract containing an embedded derivative and the 
HQWLUH�FRQWUDFW�LV�GHVLJQDWHG�DV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURîW�RU�ORVV��

� 1RWH����)LQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG� ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SUHVHQWV� WKH�îQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�KHOG�E\� WKH�JURXS�
EDVHG�RQ�WKHLU�VSHFLîF�FODVVLîFDWLRQV�

� $OO�UHJXODU�ZD\�SXUFKDVHV�RU�VDOHV�RI�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DQG�GHUHFRJQLVHG�RQ�D�WUDGH�GDWH�EDVLV��
5HJXODU�ZD\�SXUFKDVHV�RU�VDOHV�DUH�SXUFKDVHV�RU�VDOHV�RI�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�GHOLYHU\�RI�DVVHWV�ZLWKLQ�

 the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

� 7KH�VSHFLîF�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�IRU�WKH�FODVVLîFDWLRQ��UHFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�HDFK�W\SH�RI�îQDQFLDO�
instrument held by the group are presented below:

 /RDQV�UHFHLYDEOH�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW

� &ODVVLîFDWLRQ

� 'XH�IURP�JURXS�FRPSDQLHV�DQG�ORDQV�UHFHLYDEOH�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�VXEVHTXHQWO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�
amortised cost.

� 7KH\�KDYH�EHHQ�FODVVLîHG�LQ�WKLV�PDQQHU�EHFDXVH�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�RI�WKHVH�ORDQV�JLYH�ULVH��RQ�VSHFLîHG�
GDWHV�WR�FDVK�ïRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�RQ�WKH�SULQFLSDO�RXWVWDQGLQJ��DQG�WKH�
JURXSªV�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�LV�WR�FROOHFW�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV�RQ�WKHVH�ORDQV�

 5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW

 Loans receivable are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the loan. The 
loans are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

 They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG�

 The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the loan initially, minus principal repayments, plus cumulative 
DPRUWLVDWLRQ��LQWHUHVW��XVLQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�RI�DQ\�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�LQLWLDO�DPRXQW�DQG�WKH�
maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

 $SSOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG

� ,QWHUHVW� LQFRPH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��DQG�LV� LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU� ORVV�LQ�îQDQFH�
LQFRPH�DQG�îQDQFH�FRVW��QRWH����

� 7KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�WR�FDOFXODWH�LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH�RQ�D�ORDQ�UHFHLYDEOH�LV�GHSHQGHQW�
on the credit risk of the loan as follows:
• 7KH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�LV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�ORDQ��SURYLGHG�WKH�ORDQ�LV�QRW�FUHGLW�

impaired.  The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost before adjusting for a loss allowance.
• �,I� D� ORDQ� LV� SXUFKDVHG� RU� RULJLQDWHG� DV� FUHGLW�LPSDLUHG�� WKHQ� D� FUHGLW�DGMXVWHG� HǺHFWLYH� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� LV�

applied to the amortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment does not change over the life 
of the loan, even if it is no longer credit-impaired.

•  If a loan was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it has subsequently become credit-impaired, 
WKHQ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�LV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�RI�WKH�ORDQ�LQ�WKH�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�LQWHUHVW���
If, in subsequent periods, the loan is no longer credit impaired, then the interest calculation reverts to 
DSSO\LQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�WR�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�

 /RDQV�GHQRPLQDWHG�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV

 When a loan receivable is denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the loan is determined in 
the foreign currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Pula equivalent using the spot rate at the 
HQG�RI�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG���$Q\�UHVXOWLQJ�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LQ�
the other operating gains (losses) (note 5).

� 'HWDLOV�RI�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN�H[SRVXUH�DQG�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�WKHUHRI�DUH�SURYLGHG�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
and risk management (note 40).

� ,PSDLUPHQW

 The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on all loans receivable measured at amortised 
FRVW���7KH�DPRXQW�RI�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVHV�LV�XSGDWHG�DW�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�WR�UHïHFW�FKDQJHV�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�
since initial recognition of the respective loans.

 The group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) 
ZKHQ�WKHUH�KDV�EHHQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ���,I�WKH�FUHGLW�ULVN�RQ�D�ORDQ�
KDV�QRW�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��WKHQ�WKH�ORVV�DOORZDQFH�IRU�WKDW�ORDQ�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW����
month expected credit losses (12 month ECL).

 Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a loan. In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result 
from default events on a loan that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

 In order to assess whether to apply lifetime ECL or 12 month ECL, in other words, whether or not there has 
EHHQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��WKH�JURXS�FRQVLGHUV�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�KDV�EHHQ�
D�VLJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�ULVN�RI�D�GHIDXOW�RFFXUULQJ�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�UDWKHU�WKDQ�DW�HYLGHQFH�RI�D�ORDQ�
being credit impaired at the reporting date or of an actual default occurring.

� 6LJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN

� ,Q�DVVHVVLQJ�ZKHWKHU�WKH�FUHGLW�ULVN�RQ�D�ORDQ�KDV�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��WKH�JURXS�
compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring 
as at the date of initial recognition.
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����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG�

 The group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, 
LQFOXGLQJ�KLVWRULFDO�H[SHULHQFH�DQG�IRUZDUG�ORRNLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WKDW�LV�DYDLODEOH�ZLWKRXW�XQGXH�FRVW�RU�HǺRUW��
Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which the counter 
SDUWLHV� RSHUDWH�� REWDLQHG� IURP� HFRQRPLF� H[SHUW� UHSRUWV�� îQDQFLDO� DQDO\VWV�� JRYHUQPHQWDO� ERGLHV�� UHOHYDQW�
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and 
forecast economic information.

 Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the credit risk on a loan is always presumed to have 
LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�LI�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�SD\PHQWV�DUH�PRUH�WKDQ����GD\V�SDVW�GXH��
unless the group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

 By contrast, if a loan is assessed to have a low credit risk at the reporting date, then it is assumed that the credit 
ULVN�RQ�WKH�ORDQ�KDV�QRW�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�

� 7KH� JURXS� UHJXODUO\� PRQLWRUV� WKH� HǺHFWLYHQHVV� RI� WKH� FULWHULD� XVHG� WR� LGHQWLI\� ZKHWKHU� WKHUH� KDV� EHHQ� D�
VLJQLîFDQW� LQFUHDVH� LQ�FUHGLW� ULVN�DQG� UHYLVHV� WKHP�DV�DSSURSULDWH� WR�HQVXUH� WKDW� WKH�FULWHULD�DUH�FDSDEOH�RI�
LGHQWLI\LQJ�VLJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVHV�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�EHIRUH�WKH�DPRXQW�EHFRPHV�SDVW�GXH�

 'HîQLWLRQ�RI�GHIDXOW

 For purposes of internal credit risk management purposes, the group consider that a default event has occurred 
LI� WKHUH� LV� HLWKHU� D� EUHDFK� RI� îQDQFLDO� FRYHQDQWV� E\� WKH� FRXQWHUSDUW\�� RU� LI� LQWHUQDO� RU� H[WHUQDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ�
indicates that the counterparty is unlikely to pay its creditors in full (without taking collateral into account).

 Irrespective of the above analysis, the group considers that default has occurred when a loan instalment is 
more than 90 days past due unless there is reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a 
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

� :ULWH�RǺ�SROLF\

� 7KH�JURXS�ZULWHV�RǺ�D� ORDQ�ZKHQ�WKHUH� LV� LQIRUPDWLRQ� LQGLFDWLQJ�WKDW�WKH�FRXQWHUSDUW\� LV� LQ�VHYHUH�îQDQFLDO�
GLǸFXOW\� DQG� WKHUH� LV� QR� UHDOLVWLF� SURVSHFW� RI� UHFRYHU\�� H�J��ZKHQ� WKH� FRXQWHUSDUW\� KDV� EHHQ� SODFHG� XQGHU�
OLTXLGDWLRQ�RU�KDV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�EDQNUXSWF\�SURFHHGLQJV��/RDQV�ZULWWHQ�RǺ�PD\�VWLOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�HQIRUFHPHQW�
activities under the group recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any 
UHFRYHULHV�PDGH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

 &UHGLW�ULVN

� 'HWDLOV�RI�FUHGLW�ULVN�UHODWHG�WR�ORDQV�UHFHLYDEOH�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�VSHFLîF�QRWHV�DQG�WKH�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
and risk management (note 40).

 'HUHFRJQLWLRQ

 Refer to the “derecognition” section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to 
derecognition.

� $Q\�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�DULVLQJ�RQ�WKH�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�D�ORDQ�UHFHLYDEOH�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LQ�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�
JDLQV��ORVVHV��RQ�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��QRWH����

 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV

� &ODVVLîFDWLRQ

� 7UDGH� DQG� RWKHU� UHFHLYDEOHV�� H[FOXGLQJ�� ZKHQ� DSSOLFDEOH�� 9$7� DQG� SUHSD\PHQWV�� DUH� FODVVLîHG� DV� îQDQFLDO�
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost (note 16).

� 7KH\�KDYH�EHHQ�FODVVLîHG�LQ�WKLV�PDQQHU�EHFDXVH�WKHLU�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�JLYH�ULVH��RQ�VSHFLîHG�GDWHV�WR�FDVK�
ïRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�RQ�WKH�SULQFLSDO�RXWVWDQGLQJ��DQG�WKH�JURXSªV�EXVLQHVV�
PRGHO�LV�WR�FROOHFW�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV�RQ�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV�

����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG�

� 5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW

 Trade and other receivables are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

 They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

 The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the receivable initially, minus principal repayments, plus 
FXPXODWLYH� DPRUWLVDWLRQ� �LQWHUHVW�� XVLQJ� WKH� HǺHFWLYH� LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�RI� DQ\�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ� WKH� LQLWLDO�
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

 $SSOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG

� 7KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�WR�FDOFXODWH�LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH�RQ�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�LV�GHSHQGHQW�
on the credit risk of the receivable as follows:
• �7KH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�LV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�UHFHLYDEOH��SURYLGHG�WKH�UHFHLYDEOH�

is not credit impaired. The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost before adjusting for a loss allowance.
• �,I�D�UHFHLYDEOH�LV�D�SXUFKDVHG�RU�RULJLQDWHG�DV�FUHGLW�LPSDLUHG��WKHQ�D�FUHGLW�DGMXVWHG�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�

is applied to the amortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment does not change over the 
life of the receivable, even if it is no longer credit-impaired.

•  If a receivable was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it has subsequently become 
FUHGLW�LPSDLUHG�� WKHQ� WKH�HǺHFWLYH� LQWHUHVW� UDWH� LV�DSSOLHG� WR� WKH�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�RI� WKH� UHFHLYDEOH� LQ� WKH�
determination of interest.  If, in subsequent periods, the receivable is no longer credit impaired, then the 
LQWHUHVW�FDOFXODWLRQ�UHYHUWV�WR�DSSO\LQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�WR�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�

� ,PSDLUPHQW

 The group measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected 
credit losses (lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of the receivable.

� 0HDVXUHPHQW�DQG�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVHV

� 7KH�FXVWRPHU�EDVH�LV�ZLGHVSUHDG�DQG�GRHV�QRW�VKRZ�VLJQLîFDQWO\�GLǺHUHQW�ORVV�SDWWHUQV�IRU�GLǺHUHQW�FXVWRPHU�
VHJPHQWV��7KH�ORVV�DOORZDQFH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�RQ�D�FROOHFWLYH�EDVLV�XVLQJ�WKH�VLPSOLîHG�DSSURDFK�ZKLFK�WDNHV�LQWR�
account historical loss ratios for all trade and other receivables in totality.

 ,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV

� &ODVVLîFDWLRQ

� ,QYHVWPHQWV� LQ�HTXLW\� LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG� LQ�QRWH� ����7KH\�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�PDQGDWRULO\�DW� IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURîW�RU� ORVV�� �$V�DQ�H[FHSWLRQ� WR� WKLV� FODVVLîFDWLRQ�� WKH�JURXS�PD\�PDNH�DQ� LUUHYRFDEOH� HOHFWLRQ��
on an instrument by instrument basis, and on initial recognition, to designate certain investments in equity 
instruments as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

 The designation as at fair value through other comprehensive income is never made on investments which are  
either held for trading or contingent consideration in a business combination.

 5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW

 Investments in equity instruments are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. The investments are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value. Transaction costs are 
added to the initial carrying amount for those investments which have been designated as at fair value through 
RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH���$OO�RWKHU�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

� 'LYLGHQGV�UHFHLYHG�RQ�HTXLW\�LQYHVWPHQWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�ZKHQ�WKH�JURXSªV�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYHG�WKH�
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 
Dividends are included in income from trade (note 2).
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����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG��

� 'HUHFRJQLWLRQ

 Refer to the derecognition section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to 
derecognition.

 The gains or losses which accumulated in equity in the reserve for valuation of investments for equity 
LQYHVWPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�DUH�QRW�UHFODVVLîHG�WR�SURîW�RU�ORVV�RQ�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ��,QVWHDG��WKH�FXPXODWLYH�DPRXQW�
is transferred directly to retained earnings.

 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV

� &ODVVLîFDWLRQ

� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV��QRWH������H[FOXGLQJ�9$7�DQG�DPRXQWV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�DGYDQFH��DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�îQDQFLDO�
liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

� 5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW

 They are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are measured, at initial 
recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

� 7KH\�DUH�VXEVHTXHQWO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�

� 7KH� HǺHFWLYH� LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG� LV� D�PHWKRG� RI� FDOFXODWLQJ� WKH� DPRUWLVHG� FRVW� RI� D� îQDQFLDO� OLDELOLW\� DQG� RI�
DOORFDWLQJ�LQWHUHVW�H[SHQVH�RYHU�WKH�UHOHYDQW�SHULRG��7KH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�LV�WKH�UDWH�WKDW�H[DFWO\�GLVFRXQWV�
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of 
WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH��WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV�DQG�RWKHU�SUHPLXPV�RU�GLVFRXQWV��WKURXJK�WKH�H[SHFWHG�OLIH�RI�WKH�
îQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\��RU��ZKHUH�DSSURSULDWH��D�VKRUWHU�SHULRG��WR�WKH�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�RI�D�îQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�

� ,I�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�FRQWDLQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�îQDQFLQJ�FRPSRQHQW��DQG�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�UHVXOWV�
LQ�WKH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�LQWHUHVW�H[SHQVH��WKHQ�LW�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LQ�îQDQFH�FRVWV��QRWH����

 Trade and other payables expose the group to liquidity risk and possibly to interest rate risk.  Refer to note 40 
for details of risk exposure and management thereof.

 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�GHQRPLQDWHG�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV

 When trade payables are denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the payables are determined 
in the foreign currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Pula equivalent using the spot rate at the 
HQG�RI�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG���$Q\�UHVXOWLQJ�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�JDLQV�RU�ORVVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LQ�
the other operating gains (losses) (note 5).

� 'HWDLOV�RI�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN�H[SRVXUH�DQG�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�WKHUHRI�DUH�SURYLGHG�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
and risk management note (note 40).

� 'HUHFRJQLWLRQ

 Refer to the “derecognition” section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to 
derecognition.

� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
LQYHVWPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�UHDGLO\�FRQYHUWLEOH�WR�D�NQRZQ�DPRXQW�RI�FDVK�DQG�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�DQ�LQVLJQLîFDQW�ULVN�RI�
changes in value. They are measured at amortised cost and stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be 
fair value.

����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG��

� %DQN�RYHUGUDIWV��ERQGV�DQG�ERUURZLQJV

 Bank overdrafts, bonds and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 
DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��XVLQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��$Q\�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SURFHHGV��QHW�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQ�
costs) and the settlement or redemption of bank overdrafts, bonds and borrowings is recognised over the term 
RI� WKH�EDQN�RYHUGUDIWV��ERQGV�DQG�ERUURZLQJV� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�JURXSªV�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLF\� IRU�îQDQFH�
costs.

 2WKHU�DVVHWV

� 2WKHU� DVVHWV� FRPSULVH� VKRUW� WHUP� î[HG� LQFRPH� VHFXULWLHV� SODFHG� LQ� WKH� FDSLWDO�PDUNHWV�ZLWK� YDULRXV� IXQG�
managers. Due to the short term nature of these placements, the carrying value of the assets equals their fair 
value.

 'HUHFRJQLWLRQ

� )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV

� 7KH�JURXS�GHUHFRJQLVHV�D�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RQO\�ZKHQ�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�ULJKWV�WR�WKH�FDVK�ïRZV�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�
H[SLUH�� RU�ZKHQ� LW� WUDQVIHUV� WKH� îQDQFLDO� DVVHW� DQG� VXEVWDQWLDOO\� DOO� WKH� ULVNV� DQG� UHZDUGV� RI� RZQHUVKLS� RI�
the asset to another party. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group recognises its retained interest in the asset 
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the group retains substantially all the risks and 
UHZDUGV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�RI�D�WUDQVIHUUHG�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW��WKH�JURXS�FRQWLQXHV�WR�UHFRJQLVH�WKH�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW�DQG�
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

 )LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV

� 7KH� JURXS� GHUHFRJQLVHV� îQDQFLDO� OLDELOLWLHV� ZKHQ�� DQG� RQO\� ZKHQ�� WKH� JURXS� REOLJDWLRQV� DUH� GLVFKDUJHG��
FDQFHOOHG�RU� WKH\�H[SLUH��7KH�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI� WKH�îQDQFLDO� OLDELOLW\�GHUHFRJQLVHG�
and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

� 5HFODVVLîFDWLRQ

� )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV

� 7KH�JURXS�RQO\�UHFODVVLîHV�DǺHFWHG�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LI�WKHUH�LV�D�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�
îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV���,I�D�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�LV�QHFHVVDU\��LW�LV�DSSOLHG�SURVSHFWLYHO\�IURP�WKH�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�GDWH��$Q\�
previously stated gains, losses or interest are not restated.

� 7KH�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�GDWH�LV�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�îUVW�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�IROORZLQJ�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�
ZKLFK�QHFHVVLWDWHV�D�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�

 )LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV

� )LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�QRW�UHFODVVLîHG�

����� 7D[

� &XUUHQW�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV

 Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already 
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised 
as an asset.

 Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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����� 7D[��FRQWLQXHG�

� 'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV

� $�GHIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLW\�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�DOO�WD[DEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFHV��H[FHSW�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�WKH�GHIHUUHG�
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the 
WUDQVDFWLRQ��DǺHFWV�QHLWKHU�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURîW�QRU�WD[DEOH�SURîW��WD[�ORVV��

� $�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�DOO�GHGXFWLEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFHV�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�
WD[DEOH�SURîW�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�DJDLQVW�ZKLFK�WKH�GHGXFWLEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFH�FDQ�EH�XWLOLVHG��$�GHIHUUHG�WD[�
asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the 
WLPH�RI�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ��DǺHFWV�QHLWKHU�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURîW�QRU�WD[DEOH�SURîW��WD[�ORVV��

 A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused STC credits to the 
H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�WD[DEOH�SURîW�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�DJDLQVW�ZKLFK�WKH�XQXVHG�WD[�ORVVHV�DQG�
unused STC credits can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 Group tax relief

 Companies in Botswana Development Corporation Limited Group are subject to the special provision Section 
��L��RI�SDUW�,,�RI�WKH�)RXUWK�6FKHGXOH�RI�WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�$FW��&DS��������ZKLFK�DOORZV�WKH�JURXS�WR�VHW�RǺ�WKH�
WD[DEOH�ORVVHV�RI�LWV�ZKROO\�RZQHG�VXEVLGLDULHV�DJDLQVW�WKH�WD[DEOH�SURîWV�LQ�DUULYLQJ�DW�WKH�JURXS�WD[�OLDELOLW\��

 Tax expenses

� &XUUHQW�DQG�GHIHUUHG�WD[HV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�LQFRPH�RU�DQ�H[SHQVH�DQG�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�IRU�WKH�SHULRG��
except to the extent that the tax arises from:
• �D� WUDQVDFWLRQ� RU� HYHQW�ZKLFK� LV� UHFRJQLVHG�� LQ� WKH� VDPH� RU� D� GLǺHUHQW� SHULRG�� WR� RWKHU� FRPSUHKHQVLYH�

income, or
• a business combination.

 Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to 
LWHPV�WKDW�DUH�FUHGLWHG�RU�FKDUJHG��LQ�WKH�VDPH�RU�D�GLǺHUHQW�SHULRG��WR�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�

 Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are 
FUHGLWHG�RU�FKDUJHG��LQ�WKH�VDPH�RU�D�GLǺHUHQW�SHULRG��GLUHFWO\�LQ�HTXLW\�

����� /HDVHV

� *URXS�DV�OHVVHH

 A lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset are recognised at the lease commencement date, for all 
lease agreements for which the group is a lessee.

 The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for separately, 
with consideration being allocated to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of 
the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components (where non-lease 
components exist).

 However as an exception to the preceding paragraph, the group has elected not to separate the non-lease 
components for leases of motor vehicles.

 Details of leasing arrangements where the group is a lessee are presented in note 10 Leases (group as lessee).

����� /HDVHV��FRQWLQXHG�

� /HDVH�OLDELOLW\

 Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
• �î[HG�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�LQ�VXEVWDQFH�î[HG�SD\PHQWV��OHVV�DQ\�OHDVH�LQFHQWLYHV�
•  variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the 

commencement date;
•  the amount expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees;
•  the exercise price of purchase options, if the group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
•  lease payments in an optional renewal period if the group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 

option; and
• �SHQDOWLHV�IRU�HDUO\�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�D�OHDVH��LI�WKH�OHDVH�WHUP�UHïHFWV�WKH�H[HUFLVH�RI�DQ�RSWLRQ�WR�WHUPLQDWH�WKH�

lease.

 Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability 
(or right-of-use asset). The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period incurred and are 
included in operating expenses (note 10).

 The lease liability is presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position.

� 7KH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\�LV�VXEVHTXHQWO\�PHDVXUHG�E\�LQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�WR�UHïHFW�LQWHUHVW�RQ�WKH�OHDVH�
OLDELOLW\��XVLQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��DQG�E\�UHGXFLQJ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�WR�UHïHFW�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV�
PDGH��,QWHUHVW�FKDUJHG�RQ�WKH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�îQDQFH�FRVWV��QRWH����

 The group remeasures the lease liability, when applicable, in accordance with the following table:

 /HDVH�OLDELOLW\�UHPHDVXUHPHQW�VFHQDULR� �� �/HDVH�OLDELOLW\�UHPHDVXUHPHQW�PHWKRGRORJ\

 Change to the lease term.    discounting the revised lease payments using  
    a revised discount rate.

 Change in the assessment of whether the group will 
 exercise a purchase, termination or extension option.  discounting the revised lease payments using a  

    revised discount rate.
 Change to the lease payments as a result of a change 
 in an index or a rate.    discounting the revised lease payments using  

    the initial discount rate (unless the lease     
    payments change is due to a change in a     
� �� �ïRDWLQJ�LQWHUHVW�UDWH��LQ�ZKLFK�FDVH�D�UHYLVHG�� �
    discount rate is used);

 Change in expected payment under a residual value 
 guarantee.    discounting the revised lease payments using  

    the initial discount rate.
� /HDVH�FRQWUDFW�KDV�EHHQ�PRGLîHG�DQG�WKH�OHDVH�
� PRGLîFDWLRQ�LV�QRW�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�DV�D�VHSDUDWH�OHDVH�� �GLVFRXQWLQJ�WKH�UHYLVHG�SD\PHQWV�XVLQJ�D��� �

    revised discount rate.

 When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
DPRXQW�RI�WKH�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW��RU�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LI�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�ULJKW�RI�XVH�
asset has been reduced to zero.

� 5LJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV

 Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position.
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����� /HDVHV��FRQWLQXHG�

 Lease payments included in the measurement of the right of use asset comprise the following:
•  the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability;
•  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;
• any initial direct costs incurred;
•  any estimated costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 

site on which it is located, when the group incurs an obligation to do so, unless these costs are incurred to 
produce inventories; and

• less any lease incentives received.

 When the group incurs an obligation for the costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on 
which it is located or restore the underlying assets to the condition required by the terms and conditions of 
the lease, a provision is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. in note 27 Provisions for restoration 
costs.

 Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

 As an exception, when the underlying assets are land and buildings, the group adopts the revaluation model 
consistent with the accounting policy for land and buildings which are owned by the group. The accounting 
policy for the revaluation model is explained in the property, plant and equipment accounting policy.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 
+RZHYHU��LI�D�OHDVH�WUDQVIHUV�RZQHUVKLS�RI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�DVVHW�RU�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�UHïHFWV�WKDW�
the group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful 
life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts at the commencement date of a lease.

 For right-of-use assets which are depreciated over their useful lives, the useful lives are determined consistently 
with items of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Refer to the accounting policy for property, plant 
and equipment for details of useful lives.

 The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
\HDU��,I�WKH�H[SHFWDWLRQV�GLǺHU�IURP�SUHYLRXV�HVWLPDWHV��WKH�FKDQJH�LV�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�SURVSHFWLYHO\�DV�D�FKDQJH�
LQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWH��(DFK�SDUW�RI�D�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�ZLWK�D�FRVW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLîFDQW�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�WRWDO�
cost of the asset is depreciated separately.

� 7KH�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�FKDUJH�IRU�HDFK�\HDU�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�XQOHVV�LW�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�
of another asset.

� *URXS�DV�OHVVRU

� /HDVHV�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�JURXS�LV�D�OHVVRU�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�îQDQFH�RU�RSHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV��:KHQHYHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�
OHDVH�WUDQVIHU�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�WKH�ULVNV�DQG�UHZDUGV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�WR�WKH�OHVVHH��WKH�FRQWUDFW�LV�FODVVLîHG�DV�D�
îQDQFH�OHDVH��$OO�RWKHU�OHDVHV�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�RSHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV���/HDVH�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�LV�PDGH�DW�LQFHSWLRQ�DQG�
LV�RQO\�UHDVVHVVHG�LI�WKHUH�LV�D�OHDVH�PRGLîFDWLRQ�

 When the group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate 
FRQWUDFWV�� 7KH� VXEOHDVH� LV� FODVVLîHG�DV�D� îQDQFH�RU�RSHUDWLQJ� OHDVH�E\� UHIHUHQFH� WR� WKH� ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the group applies the exemption 
GHVFULEHG�SUHYLRXVO\��WKHQ�LW�FODVVLîHV�WKH�VXE�OHDVH�DV�DQ�RSHUDWLQJ�OHDVH�

 The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for separately, with 
consideration being allocated by applying IFRS 15.

����� ,QYHQWRULHV

� ,QYHQWRULHV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�ORZHU�RI�FRVW�DQG�QHW�UHDOLVDEOH�YDOXH�RQ�WKH�îUVW�LQ�îUVW�RXW�EDVLV�

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

����� ,QYHQWRULHV��FRQWLQXHG�

 The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and 
VHJUHJDWHG�IRU�VSHFLîF�SURMHFWV�LV�DVVLJQHG�XVLQJ�VSHFLîF�LGHQWLîFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�FRVWV�

 When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value 
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The 
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
reversal occurs.

����� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV

 Short term investments comprise highly liquid money market instruments placed with local commercial banks.  

����� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV��GLVSRVDO�JURXSV��KHOG�IRU�VDOH�RU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�WR�RZQHUV

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�DQG�GLVSRVDO�JURXSV�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�LI�WKHLU�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�ZLOO�EH�UHFRYHUHG�
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when 
the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present 
condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as 
D�FRPSOHWHG�VDOH�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�DQG�GLVSRVDO�JURXSV�DUH�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG� IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ� WR�RZQHUV�ZKHQ�WKH�HQWLW\� LV�
committed to distribute the asset or disposal group to the owners. This condition is regarded as met only when 
the distribution is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate distribution in its 
SUHVHQW�FRQGLWLRQ��SURYLGHG�WKH�GLVWULEXWLRQ�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�IURP�WKH�FODVVLîFDWLRQ�
date.

 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale (distribution to owners) are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (distribute).

� $�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHW�LV�QRW�GHSUHFLDWHG��RU�DPRUWLVHG��ZKLOH�LW�LV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH��KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�
WR�RZQHUV���RU�ZKLOH�LW�LV�SDUW�RI�D�GLVSRVDO�JURXS�FODVVLîHG�DV�VXFK�

� ,QWHUHVW� DQG� RWKHU� H[SHQVHV� DWWULEXWDEOH� WR� WKH� OLDELOLWLHV� RI� D� GLVSRVDO� JURXS� FODVVLîHG� DV� KHOG� IRU� VDOH�
�GLVWULEXWLRQ�WR�RZQHUV��DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

� 1R� LPSDLUPHQW� ORVV� LV�DOORFDWHG�WR� LQYHQWRULHV��îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�RU� LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��
which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies.

� $Q�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHW�GLVSRVDO�JURXS�WKDW�FHDVHV�WR�EH�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�RU�DV�KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�WR�
owners are measured at the lower of: 

• LWV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�EHIRUH�LW�ZDV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�RU�DV�KHOG�IRU�GLVWUXEXWLRQ�WR�RZQHUV��DGMXVWHG�
for any depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had the asset/disposal 
JURXS�QRW�EHHQ�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�RU�DV�KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�WR�RZQHUV��DQG

• its recoverable amount measured under IAS 36 at the date of the decision not to sell or distribute. 

����� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�DVVHWV

 The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

 If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

 The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
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����� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�DVVHWV��FRQWLQXHG�
 
 An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised  

LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��$Q\�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�RI�D�UHYDOXHG�DVVHW�LV�WUHDWHG�DV�D�UHYDOXDWLRQ�GHFUHDVH�

 An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

 The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment 
loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior periods.

 A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other 
WKDQ�JRRGZLOO�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��$Q\�UHYHUVDO�RI�DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�RI�D�UHYDOXHG�DVVHW�
is treated as a revaluation increase.

����� 6WDWHG�FDSLWDO�DQG�HTXLW\

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities.

� 2UGLQDU\�VKDUHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�SDU�YDOXH�DQG�FODVVLîHG�DV�©VWDWHG�FDSLWDOª�LQ�HTXLW\��'LYLGHQGV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�
as a liability in the group in the period in which they are declared.

����� &RPSRXQG�LQVWUXPHQWV

 Compulsory convertible preference shares and debentures are compound instruments, consisting of a liability 
component and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated 
XVLQJ�WKH�SUHYDLOLQJ�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�IRU�VLPLODU�QRQ�FRQYHUWLEOH�GHEW��7KH�GLǺHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SURFHHGV�
of issue of the convertible instruments and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the 
embedded option to convert the liability into equity of the group, is included in equity.

 Combined units are compound instruments, consisting of a debenture (liability) component and a share (equity) 
FRPSRQHQW��7KH�GHEHQWXUHV�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��DQG�DQ\�SUHPLXP�RU�GLVFRXQW�RQ�LVVXH�LV�ZULWWHQ�RǺ�
RYHU�WKH�UHGHPSWLRQ�SHULRG�XVLQJ�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�

 Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the compound instruments based 
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity component is charged 
directly against equity.

����� (PSOR\HH�EHQHîWV

� 6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQHîWV

� 7KH�FRVW�RI�VKRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQHîWV���WKRVH�SD\DEOH�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV�DIWHU�WKH�VHUYLFH�LV�UHQGHUHG��VXFK�DV�
SDLG�YDFDWLRQ�OHDYH�DQG�VLFN�OHDYH��ERQXVHV��DQG�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�EHQHîWV�VXFK�DV�PHGLFDO�FDUH���DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�
in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

 The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services 
that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

� 7KH�H[SHFWHG�FRVW�RI�SURîW�VKDULQJ�DQG�ERQXV�SD\PHQWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�ZKHQ�WKHUH�LV�D�OHJDO�RU�
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

 'HîQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SODQV

� 3D\PHQWV�WR�GHîQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHîW�SODQV�DUH�FKDUJHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�DV�WKH\�IDOO�GXH�

����� 3URYLVLRQV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQFLHV

 Provisions are recognised when:
•  the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• �LW� LV�SUREDEOH� WKDW�DQ�RXWïRZ�RI� UHVRXUFHV�HPERG\LQJ�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�ZLOO� EH� UHTXLUHG� WR� VHWWOH� WKH�

obligation; and
•  a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

 The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

 Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another 
party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The 
amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

 Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

 If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and 
measured as a provision.

 A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
•  has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

- the business or part of a business concerned;
�� WKH�SULQFLSDO�ORFDWLRQV�DǺHFWHG�
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for terminating 

their services;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

• �KDV� UDLVHG� D� YDOLG� H[SHFWDWLRQ� LQ� WKRVH� DǺHFWHG� WKDW� LW� ZLOO� FDUU\� RXW� WKH� UHVWUXFWXULQJ� E\� VWDUWLQJ� WR�
LPSOHPHQW�WKDW�SODQ�RU�DQQRXQFLQJ�LWV�PDLQ�IHDWXUHV�WR�WKRVH�DǺHFWHG�E\�LW�

 After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised 
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
•  the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
•  the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 31.

 6LWH�UHVWRUDWLRQ�DQG�GLVPDQWOLQJ�FRVW
 The group has an obligation to dismantle, remove and restore items of property, plant and equipment. Such 

obligations are referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities’. The cost of an item of 
property, plant and equipment includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item 
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is 
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period.

 
 If the related asset is measured using the cost model:
 a)subject to (b), changes in the liability are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the 

current period
 b)if a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately 

LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV
 c)if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the entity considers whether this is an indication 

that new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such an indication, the asset is tested 
IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�E\�HVWLPDWLQJ�LWV�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW��DQG�DQ\�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

 
 If the related asset is measured using the revaluation model:
� D�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�OLDELOLW\�DOWHU�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�VXUSOXV�RU�GHîFLW�SUHYLRXVO\�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�WKDW�DVVHW��VR�WKDW�
 -a decrease in the liability (subject to (b)) is credited in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 

WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�LQ�HTXLW\��H[FHSW�WKDW�LW� LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU� ORVV�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�UHYHUVHV�D�
UHYDOXDWLRQ�GHîFLW�RQ�WKH�DVVHW�WKDW�ZDV�SUHYLRXVO\�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV

� �DQ� LQFUHDVH� LQ� WKH� OLDELOLW\� LV� UHFRJQLVHG� LQ�SURîW�RU� ORVV�� H[FHSW� WKDW� LW� LV�GHELWHG� WR�RWKHU� FRPSUHKHQVLYH�
income as a decrease to the revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 
surplus in respect of that asset.

 b)in the event that a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been recognised had 
WKH�DVVHW�EHHQ�FDUULHG�XQGHU�WKH�FRVW�PRGHO��WKH�H[FHVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�
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����� 3URYLVLRQV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQFLHV��FRQWLQXHG�

 c)a change in the liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure that the 
FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�GRHV�QRW�GLǺHU�PDWHULDOO\�IURP�WKDW�ZKLFK�ZRXOG�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�XVLQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�
the reporting period. Any such revaluation is taken into account in determining the amounts to be taken to 
SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�WR�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�XQGHU��D���,I�D�UHYDOXDWLRQ�LV�QHFHVVDU\��DOO�DVVHWV�RI�WKDW�FODVV�
are revalued.

����� *RYHUQPHQW�JUDQWV

 Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
•  the group will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
• the grants will be received.

 Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs 
that they are intended to compensate.

 A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�JLYLQJ�LPPHGLDWH�îQDQFLDO�VXSSRUW�WR�WKH�HQWLW\�ZLWK�QR�IXWXUH�UHODWHG�FRVWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�
income of the period in which it becomes receivable.

 Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the as 
previously reported by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the 
carrying amount of the asset.

 Grants related to income are deducted from the related expense.

� 5HSD\PHQW�RI�D�JUDQW� UHODWHG� WR� LQFRPH� LV�DSSOLHG�îUVW�DJDLQVW�DQ\�XQ�DPRUWLVHG�GHIHUUHG�FUHGLW� VHW�XS� LQ�
respect of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred 
credit exists, the repayment is recognised immediately as an expense.

 Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing 
the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would have 
been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.22  Revenue

� 5HYHQXH� LV� PHDVXUHG� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� FRQVLGHUDWLRQ� VSHFLîHG� LQ� WKH� FRQWUDFW� ZLWK� D� FXVWRPHU�� 7KH� JURXS�
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

 The group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

 Interest on Loans and other interest revenue

� ,QWHUHVW�LV�DFFUXHG�RQ�D�WLPH�EDVLV��E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�SULQFLSDO�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DQG�DW�WKH�HǺHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
WKH�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW�WR�WKDW�DVVHWªV�QHW�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RQ�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��3D\PHQW�WHUPV�DUH�ZLWKLQ�IXQGLQJ�
agreements which typically require quarterly payments.   .

 Dividend and distribution Income

 Dividend and distribution income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

 Income from trade

 Income from trade comprises revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of services.(within the scope of 
IFRS 15)

 Sale of goods

 For sales of goods to cash customers, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being 
at the point the customer purchases the goods at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price is due 
immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods. For sales of goods on credit, a receivable is 
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in time 
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before 
payment is due.

����� �5HYHQXH��FRQWLQXHG��

 Rendering of services

 Revenue relating to the rendering of services for hotel, conference activities and entertainment events is 
recognised at the point in time the service is rendered to the customer and the customer simultaneously 
FRQVXPHV�WKH�EHQHîWV��5HYHQXH�IRU�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�DQG�RWKHU�VHUYLFHV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RYHU�WLPH�EDVHG�RQ�
the stage of completion method. This is determined as based on cost incurred as a proportion of the total costs 
expected to satisfy the performance obligation. If a customer pays consideration before goods or services are 
delivered, an advance deposit liability is recognised. The period of contracts average less than a year.

����� 5HQWDO�LQFRPH

 Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight 
line basis over the term of the relevant leases.

����� &RVW�RI�VDOHV

 When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period 
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable 
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. 
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, 
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
reversal occurs.

 The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

����� 7UDQVODWLRQ�RI�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV

� *URXS��SUHVHQWDWLRQ�FXUUHQF\

� ,WHPV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�HDFK�RI�WKH�JURXS�HQWLWLHV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�XVLQJ�WKH�FXUUHQF\�RI�WKH�
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (functional currency). 

� 7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�3XOD�ZKLFK�LV�WKH�FRPSDQ\ªV��IXQFWLRQDO�FXUUHQF\�DQG�
group presentation currency.

 )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�WUDQVDFWLRQV

 A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Pulas, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

 At the end of the reporting period:
•  foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
•  non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
•  non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

 In circumstances where the group receives or pays an amount in foreign currency in advance of a transaction, 
the transaction date for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related 
asset, income or expense is the date on which the group initially recognised the non-monetary item arising on 
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

  If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, group determines a date of transaction for each payment 
or receipt of advance consideration.

� ([FKDQJH�GLǺHUHQFHV�DULVLQJ�RQ�WKH�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�PRQHWDU\�LWHPV�RU�RQ�WUDQVODWLQJ�PRQHWDU\�LWHPV�DW�UDWHV�
GLǺHUHQW�IURP�WKRVH�DW�ZKLFK�WKH\�ZHUH�WUDQVODWHG�RQ�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�GXULQJ�WKH�SHULRG�RU�LQ�SUHYLRXV�îQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�DULVH���

 When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in equity, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised to other comprehensive income and 
DFFXPXODWHG�LQ�HTXLW\��:KHQ�D�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�RQ�D�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�LWHP�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��DQ\�H[FKDQJH�
FRPSRQHQW�RI�WKDW�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV��&DVK�ïRZV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WUDQVDFWLRQV�LQ�D�IRUHLJQ�
currency are recorded in Pulas by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Pula 
DQG�WKH�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�FDVK�ïRZ�
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

��� ,QFRPH�IURP�WUDGH

 Income from trade:

 Revenue from the sale of goods and 
 rendering of services   54,827  68,544  -  -

 Interest on loans:

 Subsidiaries   -  -  10,118  19,534
 Associated companies   7,419  -  7,419  8,233
 Other investments   135,997  53,350  135,997  53,350

 Dividends received:

 Subsidiaries   -  -  31,916  93,002
 Associated companies   -  -  8,212  11,932
� 4XRWHG�LQYHVWPHQWV� �� ������� � �������� ������� � ������
    �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

��� )LQDQFH�LQFRPH�DQG�)LQDQFH�FRVW

 Finance income:

 - Cash and cash equivalents   11,025  11,490  7,154  8,852
 - Debenture interest   -  -  18,437  37,522
 - Preference shares interest   9,148  2,084  9,148  2,084
    ������� � �������� ������� � ������
 

 Finance costs:

 - Bank borrowings   (49,619 ) (33,077 ) (40,662 ) (13,880 )
 - Long-term borrowings   (19,028 ) (11,473 ) (19,024 ) (11,473 )
 - Bonds   (29,610 ) (30,617 ) (29,610 ) (30,617 )
 - Lease interest   -  -  (10,544 ) (13,572 )
    ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������

��� 2WKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�LQFRPH

 Recoveries received*   4,264  3,367  -  -
 Management fees   6,128  11,615  6,348  11,647
 Arrangement and monitoring fees   3,717  -  3,717  -
 African Development Bank training grant   84  1,012  59  1,012
 Other income   5,218  3,432  2,358  50
 Gain on disposal of investments   20,088  8,036  68,594  -
 Debt collection and broker fees   2,395  1,929  -  -
 Levies   3,913  4,412  -  -
    ������� � �������� ������� � ������

 Management fees are earned from investee companies and these do not relate to rental properties.

 *Recoveries includes cost recoveries from tenants for service fees

��� 3URîW�EHIRUH�WD[

 The following items have been accounted for in 
� DUULYLQJ�DW�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[��LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�
 amounts already disclosed in notes 2, 3 and 4

 Amortisation of government grant (note 25)   355  356  -  -
 Auditors remuneration - external auditors   (1,904 ) (1,362 ) (739 ) (786 )
 Auditors remuneration - non-audit services   -  (641 ) -  -
 Bad debts and doubtful debts on trade and 
 other receivables (note16)   (4,321 ) 13,196  (893 ) 576
 Consulting and professional fees   (13,487 ) (16,723 ) (10,318 ) (8,211 )
 Consulting and professional fees - legal fees   (2,941 ) (3,428 ) (1,903 ) (1,748 )
 Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9)   (126 ) (634 ) -  -
 Depreciation (note 8)   (10,125 ) (11,068 ) (2,716 ) (2,713 )
 Directors’ fees   (1,465 ) (2,430 ) (172 ) (125 )
� 6WDǺ�FRVWV��DV�EHORZ�� �� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������
 Directors’ emoluments   (3,291 ) (2,611 ) (3,291 ) (2,611 )
 Net foreign exchange gains   -  (1,215 ) -  (1,215 )
 Repairs and maintenance   (1,970 ) (2,310 ) (270 ) (356 )
 Subscriptions   (2,945 ) (3,205 ) (2,435 ) (2,643 )
 Training   (1,559 ) (2,678 ) (1,046 ) (1,994 )

 6WDǺ�FRVWV
 Salaries and wages   (68,986 ) (63,471 ) (48,230 ) (39,963 )
� 7HUPLQDO�EHQHîWV� �� ��������� ��������� �� � �
 Medical aid - company contributions   (1,046 ) (868 ) (1,046 ) (868 )
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

��� ,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH

� 0DMRU�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�WKH�WD[�H[SHQVH

� %RWVZDQD�FRPSDQ\�WD[DWLRQ
� 1RUPDO�WD[DWLRQ�DW��������� �� ������ � ������� �� � �
 Group tax relief   413  (5,484 ) 1,500  (5,057 )
 Withholding tax on dividends   6,415  10,362  6,212  10,359
 Total normal taxation   8,667  8,770  7,712  5,302
 Deferred tax - current year   4,760  8,707  -  -
 Deferred tax for changes in estimates 
 relating to prior years   (714 ) 926  -  -
 Withholding tax on debenture interest   840  3,081  840  3,080
 Deferred tax recognised in OCI   1,730  -  -  -
  �� ������� � �������� ������ � �����

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�WKH�WD[�H[SHQVH

� 7KH�WD[�RQ�WKH�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�GLǺHUV�IURP�
 the theoretical amount as follows:

� $FFRXQWLQJ�SURîW� �� �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

� 7D[�FDOFXODWHG�DW��������� �� ������� � �������� ������� � ������

 Income not subject to tax   (16,109 ) (10,973 ) (15,923 ) (29,576 )
 Deferred tax for changes in estimates relating 
 to prior years   (714 ) 926  -  -
 Deferred tax - capital gains tax   5,193  -  -  -
 Gain on disposal of investment assets exempt 
 from taxation   (15,085 ) -  (35,719 ) -
 Expense not deductible for tax purposes   5,026  2,315  (125 ) 631
 Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (1,808 ) -  -  -
 Withholding tax on debenture interest   840  3,081  840  3,080
 Fair value adjustments subject to capital gains tax (1,773 ) (10,284 ) -  -
 Withholding tax on dividends received   6,415  10,362  6,212  6,815
 Unrecognised deferred tax balances   (413 ) 10,190  925  (13,076 )
 Group tax relief   410  (5,484 ) 1,500  (5,057 )
    ������� � �������� ������ � ������

 Income not subject to tax
 
 The Income Tax Act of Botswana details in Part 2 of the Second Schedule the gross income items that are 

exempted from taxation.  

 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

 Section 50 of the Income Tax Act of Botswana details the types of expenditure which are not allowable as a 
deduction in arriving at taxable income for the year. These comprise expected credit loss adjustments and 
lease interest adjustments.

 Group

 The amount of income tax relating to revaluation of land and buildings recognised in other comprehensive 
income amounted to P883,000 (2019: Nil). Other movements in other comprehensive income did not have a 
tax impact on the group. 

 ��� ,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH��FRQWLQXHG�

 Unrecognised deferred tax balances

� $W����-XQH�������WKHUH�ZDV�D�GHIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLW\�RI�3���PLOOLRQ���������3����PLOOLRQ��IRU�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFHV�
of P463.1 million (2019: P682 million) related to investments in subsidiaries. However, this liability was not 
UHFRJQLVHG�EHFDXVH� WKH�*URXS�FRQWUROV� WKH�GLYLGHQG�SROLF\�RI� LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV� �¥� L�H�� WKH�*URXS�FRQWUROV� WKH�
WLPLQJ�RI�UHYHUVDO�RI�WKH�UHODWHG�WD[DEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFHV�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�VDWLVîHG�WKDW�WKH\�ZLOO�QRW�
reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 The company has not recognised a deferred tax asset on its accumulated tax losses carried forward and on 
WKH�WD[�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFHV�EHFDXVH�RI�WKH�XQFHUWDLQW\�RYHU�WKH�IXWXUH�XWLOLVDWLRQ�RI�VXFK�DQ�DVVHW�DJDLQVW�
WD[DEOH�SURîWV�

 Tax losses:

 In accordance with the Income Tax Act (Chapter 52: 01), Section 46, assessed tax losses in relation to any tax 
year are deductible in ascertaining the relevant chargeable income for the subsequent tax year. No assessed 
WD[�ORVVHV�VKDOO�EH�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG�DV�D�GHGXFWLRQ�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI�PRUH�WKDQ�WKH�îYH�\HDUV�VXFFHHGLQJ�WKH�WD[�
year in which such losses arose.

 At the end of the year, the assessed and estimated tax losses available for deduction are as follows:

 Tax year:

 2014/2015   -  57,363  -  96,647
 2015/2016   112,987  116,069  110,567  110,567
 2016/2017   37,225  41,657  18,914  18,914
 2017/2018   46,672  46,672  34,487  34,487
 2018/2019   60,022  60,022  -  -
 2019/2020   1,582  -  1,582  -
    �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

��� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\���*URXS

 Land and buildings at fair value   1,137,944  1,944,317  -  -
 Rental Straight Line Adjustment   (9,172 ) (60,907 ) -  -
 %DODQFH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� �� ���������� � ����������� �� � �

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�IDLU�YDOXH
 Balance at beginning of the year   1,883,410  2,024,301  -  -

 - At valuation   1,944,317  2,089,797  -  -
 - Straight line lease rental adjustment   (60,907 ) (65,496 ) -  -

 Additions during the year - subsequent 
 expenditure   -  58,862  -  -
 Additions during the year - acquisitions   22,736  30,334
 Disposals during the year   -  (265,569 ) -  -
� 7UDQVIHUV�WR�DVVHWV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH� �� ����������� ��������� �� � �
 Rental deferral  account   1,650  1,599  -  -
 Disposal on loss of control in subsidiary (Note 11) (716,512 ) -  -  -
 Fair value gain of investment properties   124,773  42,883  -  -
 -  Increase in fair value during the year*   120,285  53,403  -  -
 -  Straight line lease rental adjustment   4,488  (10,520 ) -  -
 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� �� ���������� � ����������� �� � �
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\
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��� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��FRQWLQXHG�

 Fair value of investment properties
 The investment properties of the group measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period fall under Level 

����6LJQLîFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV��

 9DOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXH���'LVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ïRZV�
� 7KH�YDOXDWLRQ�PRGHO�FRQVLGHUV�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�QHW�FDVK�ïRZV�WR�EH�JHQHUDWHG�IURP�WKH�SURSHUWLHV��WDNLQJ�

into account the expected rental  growth rate, void periods, occupancy rate, lease incentive costs such as 
UHQW�IUHH� SHULRGV� DQG� RWKHU� FRVWV� QRW� SDLG� E\� WHQDQWV�� 7KH� H[SHFWHG� QHW� FDVK� ïRZV� DUH� GLVFRXQWHG� XVLQJ�
risk-adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a 
building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality and lease terms.

 6LJQLîFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV
� ([SHFWHG�PDUNHW� UHQWDO�JURZWK� �����������ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH����� ��������¥����ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�������9RLG�

periods (2020 :4-6 months on the basis of marketing of vacant space  2019: average 3 to 6 months after the 
HQG�RI�HDFK�OHDVH���2FFXSDQF\�UDWH����������¥����ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH��������������¥�����ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�
������ 5HQW�IUHH� SHULRGV� ������ DQG� ��������� PRQWKV� SHULRG� RQ� QHZ� OHDVHV��� 5LVN�DGMXVWHG� GLVFRXQW� UDWHV�
�������¥�����ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�������������¥�����ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH������

 The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in the need for deferred rentals and tenant leniency. Though a one time 
HYHQW�� LW� FRXOG� KDYH� VLJQLîFDQW� ORVV� LPSOLFDWLRQV� RQ� WHQDQW� EXVLQHVV�PRGHOV�ZKLFK� LQ� WXUQ� FRXOG� OHDG� WR� D�
GHFOLQH�LQ�UHQWDO�XSWDNHV�LQ�WKH�îQDO�TXDUWHU�RI������LQWR������

 Inter-Relationship between key unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
 The estimated fair value would increase if expected market rental growth were higher; void periods were 

VKRUWHU��WKH�RFFXSDQF\�UDWH�ZHUH�KLJKHU��UHQW�IUHH�SHULRGV�ZHUH�VKRUWHU��RU�WKH�ULVN�DGMXVWHG�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�ZHUH�
lower. The fair value of the investment properties has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at 
30 June 2020  by independent professional external valuers. The external valuers are members of the Real 
(VWDWH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�%RWVZDQD�DQG�WKH\�KDYH�DSSURSULDWH�TXDOLîFDWLRQV�DQG�UHFHQW�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�
of properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were done in conformity with and are subject to the 
requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct of the appraisal 
RUJDQLVDWLRQV�ZLWK�ZKLFK�WKH�YDOXHUV�DUH�DǸOLDWHG��7KH�PDUNHW�YDOXHV�ZHUH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�YDOXHUV�XVLQJ�
LQYHVWPHQW�YDOXDWLRQ�PRGHOV�IRU�LQGXVWULDO�DQG�FRPPHUFLDO�SURSHUWLHV��7KH�HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�WKH�YDOXDWLRQV�ZDV�
30 June 2020. All of the Group’s investment property is held under freehold interests.

 Investment properties held for sale
 One subsidiary is in the process of negotiating the sale of investment properties. As a result the investment 

SURSHUWLHV�KDYH�EHHQ�GLVFORVHG�DV�§$VVHWV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH¨��7KHVH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�YDOXHG�DW�
P187.28million (2019: P11.75million) were not disposed as at year end as management was in the process of 
negotiating the sales price with the potential purchasers.

 7UDQVDFWLRQV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�
 Rental income       96,578  167,620
 Repairs and maintenance expenses       (3,624 ) (2,310 )

� $� VXEVLGLDU\� FRPSDQ\� KDG� UHDVVHVVHG� WKH� FODVVLîFDWLRQ� RI� SURSHUW\� RZQHG� EHWZHHQ� RZQHU� RFFXSLHG� DW�
cost and investment property at fair value. In reviewing this assessment, a material error was noted in the 
FODVVLîFDWLRQ�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�D�SULRU�SHULRG�HUURU��7KH�LPSDFW�QRWHG�EHORZ�LV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�IXOO�DW�1RWH����

��� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��FRQWLQXHG�

 Cost
 At 30 June 2018 (previously stated)         2,208,051
 Prior period error corrected (note 38)         (183,750 )
 $W����-XQH�������UHVWDWHG�� �� � � �� � � ���������

� &DUU\LQJ�DPRXQW
 Cost         2,024,301
 $W����-XQH������� �� � � �� � � ���������

 Registers with details of land and buildings are available for inspection by shareholders or their duly 
� DXWKRULVHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�DW�WKH�UHJLVWHUHG�RǸFH�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�

��� 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW

� *URXS� � � ������ � � �� ����

� � &RVW�RU���$FFXPXODWHG�� &DUU\LQJ� � &RVW�RU��$FFXPXODWHG� � &DUU\LQJ
� � 5HYDOXDWLRQ� �'HSUHFLDWLRQ�� 9DOXH� � 5HYDOXDWLRQ��'HSUHFLDWLRQ� � 9DOXH

 Land and buildings 363,574  (3,187 ) 360,387  352,782  (2,953 ) 349,829
 Plant and machinery 151,299  (97,414 ) 53,885  152,442  (91,743 ) 60,699
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�î[WXUHV� �������� ���������� ������ � �������� ���������� �����
 Motor vehicles 3,593  (2,320 ) 1,273  4,228  (2,264 ) 1,964
 IT equipment 9,398  (7,772 ) 1,626  10,905  (7,945 ) 2,960
 Capital - Work in 
 progress 137  -  137  -  -  -
 7RWDO� �������� � ����������� �������� � ��������� ����������� �������

� &RPSDQ\� � � ������ � � �� ����

� � &RVW� �$FFXPXODWHG�� &DUU\LQJ� � &RVW�RU��$FFXPXODWHG� � &DUU\LQJ
� � 5HYDOXDWLRQ� �'HSUHFLDWLRQ�� 9DOXH� � 5HYDOXDWLRQ��'HSUHFLDWLRQ� � 9DOXH

 )XUQLWXUH�DQG�î[WXUHV� �������� ��������� ���� � �������� ��������� �����
 Motor vehicles 1,176  (636 ) 540  1,176  (507 ) 669
 IT equipment 4,877  (4,045 ) 832  4,985  (3,641 ) 1,344
 7RWDO� ������� � ���������� ������ � �������� ���������� �����
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

��� 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��FRQWLQXHG�

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW���*URXS�������

� � /DQG�DQG� � 3ODQW�DQG� � )XUQLWXUH�� 0RWRU� � ,7�� &DSLWDO� � 7RWDO
� � %XLOGLQJV� � 0DFKLQHU\� � DQG�)L[WXUHV�� 9HKLFOHV� � (TXLSPHQW�� ZRUN�LQ
            progress

Cost or 
revaluation 363,574  151,299  18,277  3,593  9,398  137  546,278
Accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment (3,187 ) (97,414 ) (15,591 ) (2,320 ) (7,772 ) -  (126,284 )

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�
DW����-XQH������� �������� � ������� � ������� ������ � ������� ���� � �������

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW�
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�
\HDU� � �������� � ������� � ������� ������ � ������� �� � �������
Additions 1,422  2,032  592  -  450  -  4,496
Disposals and 
scrappings - cost -  (158 ) (494 ) (162 ) (801 ) -  (1,615 )
Disposals and 
scrapping - 
accumulated 
depreciation 
and impairment -  105  480  125  780  -  1,490
Transfers on 
disposal or loss 
of control (2,564 ) (2,976 ) (373 ) (277 ) (525 ) 137  (6,578 )
Revaluations 12,484  -  -  -  -  -  12,484
Depreciation (784 ) (5,817 ) (2,450 ) (377 ) (1,238 ) -  (10,666 )
  �������� � ������� � ������� ������ � ������� ���� � ��������

��� 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��FRQWLQXHG�

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW���*URXS�������

� � � � /DQG�DQG� � 3ODQW�DQG�� )XUQLWXUH��� 0RWRU�� ,7� � 7RWDO
� � � � %XLOGLQJV� � 0DFKLQHU\�� DQG�)L[WXUHV� � 9HKLFOHV�� (TXLSPHQW�     

         
Cost or revaluation 
- restated (note 38)   352,782  152,442  18,640  4,228  10,905  538,997
Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment   (2,953 ) (91,743 ) (13,709 ) (2,264 ) (7,945 ) (118,614 )
1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW����-XQH�
������UHVWDWHG�� � � �������� � �������� ������ � ������� ������ � �������

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�
RI�\HDU�� � � �������� � �������� ������ � ������� ������ � �������
Additions   22,410  14,502  907  1,524  1,422  40,765
Disposals and scrapping’s 
- cost    -  (1,321 ) (387 ) (299 ) (337 ) (2,344 )
Transfers   -  29  -  -  (29 ) -
Transfers (to) and from 
investment property   -  (29 ) -  -  -  (29 )
Other changes, movements  2,026  -  (661 ) 299  366  2,030
Depreciation   (485 ) (5,869 ) (2,655 ) (647 ) (1,413 ) (11,069 )
Depreciation on disposals   -  1,315  323  -  -  1,638
    �������� � �������� ������ � ������� ������ � �������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\
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��� 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��FRQWLQXHG�

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW���&RPSDQ\�������

� � � � � � �� )XUQLWXUH��� 0RWRU�� ,7� � 7RWDO
� � � � � � �� DQG�)L[WXUHV� � 9HKLFOHV�� (TXLSPHQW�  
            
Cost or revaluation       10,046  1,176  4,877  16,099
Accumulated depreciation and impairment   (9,354 ) (636 ) (4,045 ) (14,035 )
1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW����-XQH������� � � �� ���� � ����� ���� � �����

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�\HDU� � � �� ������ � ����� ������ � �����
Additions       -  -  458  458
Disposals and scrappings - cost     -  (129 ) -  (129 )
Depreciation       (1,746 ) -  (970 ) (2,716 )
� � � � � � �� ���� � ����� ���� � �����

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW���&RPSDQ\�������

Cost or revaluation       10,071  1,176  4,985  16,232
Accumulated depreciation and impairment   (7,633 ) (507 ) (3,641 ) (11,781 )
1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW����-XQH������� � � �� ������ � ����� ������ � �����

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�\HDU� � � �� ������ � ���� ������ � �����
Additions       147  714  319  1,180
Depreciation       (1,912 ) (68 ) (733 ) (2,713 )
� � � � � � �� ������ � ����� ������ � �����

� 5HYDOXDWLRQV�

 The group’s land and buildings are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less 
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed 
HYHU\���\HDUV�DQG�LQ�LQWHUYHQLQJ�\HDUV�LI�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�GLǺHUV�PDWHULDOO\�IURP�
their fair value.

� 5HIHU�WR�QRWH���IRU�VSHFLîF�GHWDLOV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV��

 Registers with details of land and buildings are available for inspection by shareholders or their duly authorised 
UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�DW�WKH�UHJLVWHUHG�RǸFH�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�LWV�UHVSHFWLYH�VXEVLGLDULHV�

��� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV

� *URXS� � � � � ������ � � �� ����

� � � � &RVW�� �$FFXPXODWHG�� &DUU\LQJ� � &RVW��$FFXPXODWHG� � &DUU\LQJ
� � � � YDOXDWLRQ� �DPRUWLVDWLRQ�� YDOXH� � ��DPRUWLVDWLRQ� � YDOXH

 Computer software, other 6,511  (3,624 ) 2,887  6,381  (3,554 ) 2,827

 &RPSDQ\� � � � � ������ � � �� ����

� � � � &RVW�� �$FFXPXODWHG�� &DUU\LQJ� � &RVW��$FFXPXODWHG� � &DUU\LQJ
� � � � YDOXDWLRQ� �DPRUWLVDWLRQ�� YDOXH� � ��DPRUWLVDWLRQ� � YDOXH

 Computer software, other 2,813  -  2,813  2,639  -  2,639

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV���*URXS�������

� � � � � � �� 2SHQLQJ� � $GGLWLRQV��$PRUWLVDWLRQ� � &ORVLQJ
� � � � � � �� EDODQFH� � �� � � EDODQFH

 Computer software, other     2,827  186  (126 ) 2,887

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV���*URXS�������

 Computer software, other     3,266  195  (634 ) 2,827

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV���&RPSDQ\�������

� � � � � � �� � � 2SHQLQJ�� $GGLWLRQV� � &ORVLQJ
� � � � � � �� � � EDODQFH�� � � EDODQFH

 Computer software, other       2,639  174  2,813

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV���&RPSDQ\�������

� � � � � � �� � � �� 2SHQLQJ� � &ORVLQJ
� � � � � � �� � � �� EDODQFH� � EDODQFH

 Computer software, other         2,639  2,639
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���� /HDVHV��JURXS�DV�OHVVHH�

 The group leases several assets, including buildings. 
 The average lease term for buildings is 5 years
  (2019: 5 years).

 The group has the option to purchase the building 
 at a nominal amount on completion of the lease term.

 The group has applied the low value exemption for
  leases of motor vehicles. 

 1HW�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV

 The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets are as follows:

 Buildings       -  2,523  124,388  136,938

 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV

 Depreciation recognised on each class of 
 right-of-use assets, is presented below.

 Buildings       -  444  12,550  15,726

 2WKHU�GLVFORVXUHV

 Interest expense on lease liabilities   -  -  10,544  13,564
� 7RWDO�FDVK�RXWïRZ�IURP�OHDVHV� �� �� �� � ��� ������� � ������

 At 30 June, 2020, the group is committed to Pnil (2019: P 58 623) for short-term leases.

 /HDVH�OLDELOLWLHV

 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities in relation to the company as a lessee is as follows:

 Within one year       -  -  17,518  15,220
� 7ZR�WR�îYH�\HDUV� �� �� �� �� � ��� ������� � ������
� 0RUH�WKDQ�îYH�\HDUV�� �� �� �� � ������� �������� � �������
        �� � ������� �������� � �������

 /HDVHV��JURXS�DV�OHVVRU�
 The group leases its properties under operating lease arrangements to various customers, the leases are 

W\SLFDOO\�IRU���WR����\HDUV�DQG�HVFDODWH�DQQXDOO\�ZLWK�UDWHV�OLQNHG�WR�LQïDWLRQ�DQG�DUH�UHQHZDEOH��7KH�PDWXULW\�
analysis (contractual undiscounted rentals receivable) are as follows:

 Less than one year       51,639  48,631  -  -
 More than a year       563,261  141,490  -  -
        �������� � ��������� �� � �

���� 6XEVLGLDULHV�

 The following table lists the entities which are controlled directly by the company, and the carrying amounts of 
WKH�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�WKH�FRPSDQ\ªV�VHSDUDWH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

 ,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�VXEVLGLDULHV

 

       � 2UGLQDU\� � 3UHIHUHQFH�� 7RWDO� � ��RI�VKDUHV
� � � � � � �� VKDUHV�DW� � VKDUHV�DW�� LQYHVWPHQW� � KHOG
� *URXS�������� � � � � �� FRVW� � FRVW

� $JULFXOWXUH� � � � � �� �������� � ��� �������� �

� )DUP�'HYHORSPHQW�&RPSDQ\��3W\��/WG� �� �� � ��� �� � ����
� 7DODQD�)DUPV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��� ������ � ����
� /3�$PXVHPHQWV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� 0DOXWX�,QYHVWPHQWV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� 0LON�$IULF��3W\��/WG� �� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
 ,QGXVWU\� � � � � �� ������� � ��� ������
� /REDWVH�&OD\�:RUNV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� *ROGHQ�)UXLW�����3W\��/WG
� �� �� �� � ��� �� � ����
� &DQ�0DQXIDFWXUHUV��3W\��/WG
� �� �� �� � ��� �� � ����

 6HUYLFHV� � � � � �� ������� � ������� ������

� ([SRUW�&UHGLW�,QVXUDQFH�	�*XDUDQWHH��3W\��/WG� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� &RDVW�WR�&RDVW�,QQ��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ������� ������� � ����

 3URSHUW\�PDQDJHPHQW� � � �� �������� � ��� �������

� %RWVZDQD�+RWHO�'HYHORSPHQW�&R���3W\��/WG� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ����
� &RPPHUFLDO�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ����
� )DLUJURXQG�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��� ������ � ���
� 13&�,QYHVWPHQWV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��� ������ � ����
� 5HVLGHQWLDO�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� :HVWHUQ�,QGXVWULDO�(VWDWH��3W\��/WG�� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ����
� 3KDNDODQH�3URSHUW\�'HYHORSPHQW��3W\��/WG� �� ���� � ��� ���� � ���
        ���������� � ������� ���������
 Less: Accumulated impairment         (156,138 )
            �������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� 6XEVLGLDULHV��FRQWLQXHG�

� � � � � � �� 2UGLQDU\� � 3UHIHUHQFH�� 7RWDO� � ��RI�VKDUHV
� � � � � � �� VKDUHV�DW� � VKDUHV�DW�� LQYHVWPHQW� � KHOG
� � � � � � �� FRVW� � FRVW
 *URXS�������

 $JULFXOWXUH� � � � � �� ������� � ��� ������

� )DUP�'HYHORSPHQW�&RPSDQ\��3W\��/WG� �� �� � ��� �� � ����
� 7DODQD�)DUPV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��� ������ � ����
� /3�$PXVHPHQWV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� 0DOXWX�,QYHVWPHQWV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� 0LON�$IULF��3W\��/WG� �� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����

 ,QGXVWU\� � � � � �� �������� � �������� �������

� /REDWVH�&OD\�:RUNV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� *ROGHQ�)UXLW�����3W\��/WG
� �� �� ������� � �������� ������� � ����
� &DQ�0DQXIDFWXUHUV��3W\��/WG
� �� �� �������� � ������� �������� � ����

� 6HUYLFHV� � � � � �� ������� � ������� ������

� ([SRUW�&UHGLW�,QVXUDQFH�	�*XDUDQWHH��3W\��/WG� �� ������� � ��� ������� � ����
� &RDVW�WR�&RDVW�,QQ��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ������� ������� � ����

 3URSHUW\�PDQDJHPHQW� � � �� ���������� � ������� ���������

� %RWVZDQD�+RWHO�'HYHORSPHQW�&R���3W\��/WG� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ����
� &RPPHUFLDO�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ����
� )DLUJURXQG�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��� ������ � ���
� 13&�,QYHVWPHQWV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��� ������ � ����
� 5HVLGHQWLDO�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ������� ������� � ����
� :HVWHUQ�,QGXVWULDO�(VWDWH��3W\��/WG�� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ����
� 3KDNDODQH�3URSHUW\�'HYHORSPHQW��3W\��/WG� �� ���� � ��� ���� � ���
� /HWOROH�OD�5RQD�/WG
��� �� �� �������� � ��� �������� � ���
 � � � � � �� ���������� � �������� ���������
 Less: Accumulated impairment         (267,994 )
            ���������

 All the above subsidiaries are registered in Botswana

� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�UHGXFHG�LWV�VKDUHKROGLQJ�LQ�/HWOROH�/D�5RQD�/LPLWHG�WR�������������������UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�ORVV�RI�
control and the remaining shareholding  equity accounted in note 12.  

 Golden Fruit 97 Proprietary Limited and Can Manufactures Proprietary Limited were deregistered and thus 
removed from the register of Companies on 26 November 2019. 

 The fair value of property, plant and equipment was determined by independent valuers - Apex properties  
in relation to the property and GEA Farm Technologies in relation to the plant and equipment. Valuation 
techniques applied to property are in line with those of other properties as disclosed in note 7. Valuation of 
plant and euipment was performed in relation to similar items in the market. 

� ,PSDLUPHQW
 The assessment of these investments for impairment requires the application of judgment and the use 

RI� VLJQLîFDQW� DVVXPSWLRQV� LQ� GHWHUPLQLQJ� IXWXUH� SURîWDELOLW\� DQG� WKH� FXUUHQW� YDOXH� RI� DVVHWV� KHOG� E\� WKH�
subsidiaries. A material decline in impairments year on year was as a result of reassesment of the valuation of 
securities held at a subsidiary company as well as the release of the provision held on disposal of fully impaired 
subsidiaries. 

���� 6XEVLGLDULHV��FRQWLQXHG�

� .H\� DVVXPSWLRQV� XVHG� LQ� WKH� GHWHUPLQLQJ� IXWXUH� SURîWDELOLW\� RI� VXEVLGLDULHV� LQFOXGH� UHYHQXH� JURZWK� UDWHV�
which were assessed as reasonable and are in line with relevant market growth rates. Such assumptions 
DUH�EDVHG�RQ�KLVWRULFDO�UHVXOWV�DGMXVWHG�IRU�DQWLFLSDWHG�IXWXUH�JURZWK��7KHVH�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�D�UHïHFWLRQ�RI�
management’s past experience in the market in which the investees operate.The current value of assets held 
by subsidiaries which is mostly property, plant and equipment and investment property was performed by 
independent property valuers. Refer to note 7 and 8 for additional details.

� 6XEVLGLDULHV�IRU�ZKLFK�FRQWURO�ZDV�ORVW�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU

 The group lost control of subsidiary Letlole La Rona Limited on 1 November, 2019.The company swapped a 
number of shares in Letlole La Rona Limited (LLR) in return for shares in another listed entity. This transaction 
UHVXOWHG�LQ�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�VKDUHKROGLQJ�LQ�//5�IURP�����WR��������DV�DW����-XQH�������

� (ǺHFW�RI�GLVSRVDO�RQ�îQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�JURXS

 ,Q�WKRXVDQGV�RI�3XOD�� � � �� � � �� � � %:3�©���

 Investment property            768,159
 Operating lease asset           2,259
 Property, plant and equipment           2,040
 Investment assets             46,247
 Deferred taxation             5,193
 Current assets             237,277
 Borrowings             (232,905 )
 Lease liability             (2,405 )
 Deferred taxation liability           (48,265 )
 Current liabilities             (13,784 )
              763,816
 Consideration received for shares           (149,895 )
 Non controlling interest           (259,697 )
 Fair value of remaining shareholding at 01 November 2019       (264,825 )
� �1HW�HǺHFW�RI�GLVSRVDO�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�ORVV� �� � � �� � � ������

� 7KH�ORVV�KDV�EHHQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�§'HUHFRIJQLWLRQ�ORVVHV�RQ�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVWV¨�RQ�WKH�IDFH�RI�WKH�
VWDWHPHQW�RI�SURîW�DQG�ORVV�
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� (TXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV

 The following tabe lists all of the associates in the group:

 (TXLW\�$FFRXQWHG�,QYHVWHHV

� � � � � � 2UGLQDU\�� 3RVW� � 7RWDO�� �����7RWDO� � ��RI�VKDUHV
� � � � � � VKDUHV�DW�� $FTXLVLWLRQ� � LQYHVWPHQW�� LQYHVWPHQW� � KHOG
� � � � � � FRVW�� 5HVHUYH

 *URXS�������

� $JULFXOWXUH� � � � � ������� ��������� ����� ���
 
� 0DUHNLVHWVR�$�0HURJR��3W\��/WG� �� ������� ��������� ����� ���� � ���

� ,QGXVWU\� � � � � �������� ��������� �������� ������

� 1DPSDN� �� �� �������� ��������� �������� ������� � ���
� ,QGXV�+HDOWKFDUH��3W\��/WG� �� �������� ��������� �������� �� � ���

 6HUYLFHV� � � � � ��������� �������� � ��������� �������

� 3HHUPRQW�*OREDO��%RWVZDQD��/WG� �� ������� ������� � �������� ������� � ���
� ,QYHVWHF�+ROGLQJV�%RWVZDQD��/WG� �� ��� �� � ��� ������ � ���
� 7UDQV8QLRQ��3W\��/WG�� �� ����� ������ � ������� ������ � ���
� 7UDQVSRUW�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �������� ������ � �������� ������� � ���
� 0DVKDWX�1DWXUH�5HVHUYH��3W\��/WG��� �������� �������� � ��������� ������� � ���
� .DPRVR�$IULFD��3W\���/WG� �� ��������� ������ � ��������� �� � ���

� 3URSHUW\�PDQDJHPHQW� � � ��������� ��������� ��������� ������

� 1%&�'HYHORSPHQWV�3DUWQHUVKLS� �� ��� �� � ��� ������� � ���
� /HWOROH�/D�5RQD�/LPLWHG� �� ��������� ��������� ��������� �� � ���

� 7RWDO�DOO�VHFWRUV� � � � � �� � � ��������� �������
 Less: Accumulated impairment       (16,400 ) (4,432 )
� � � � � � �� � � ��������� �������

���� (TXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV��FRQWLQXHG�

 
� � � � � � �� 2UGLQDU\� � 3RVW�� 7RWDO� � ��RI�VKDUHV
� � � � � � �� VKDUHV�DW� � $FTXLVLWLRQ�� LQYHVWPHQW� � KHOG
� *URXS�������� � � � � �� FRVW� � 5HVHUYH

 $JULFXOWXUH� � � � � �� ������ � ��������� ���

� 0DUHNLVHWVR�$�0HURJR��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������ � ��������� ���� � ���

 ,QGXVWU\� � � � � �� ������� � ��������� ������

� 1DPSDN� �� �� �� ������� � ��������� ������� � ���
 
 6HUYLFHV� � � � � �� ������� � ��������� �������

� 3HHUPRQW�*OREDO��%RWVZDQD��/WG� �� �� ������ � �������� ������� � ���
� ,QYHVWHF�+ROGLQJV�%RWVZDQD��/WG� �� �� ���� � ������� ������ � ���
� 7UDQV8QLRQ��3W\��/WG�� �� �� ���� � ������� ������ � ���
� 7UDQVSRUW�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG� �� �� ������� � ������� ������� � ���
� 0DVKDWX�1DWXUH�5HVHUYH��3W\��/WG��� �� ������� � �������� ������� � ���

 3URSHUW\�PDQDJHPHQW� � � �� ������� � ������� ������

� 1%&�'HYHORSPHQWV�3DUWQHUVKLS� �� �� ������� � ������� ������� � ���

� 7RWDO�DOO�VHFWRUV� � � � � �� � � �� �������
 Less: Accumulated impairment         (4,432 )
            �������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� (TXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV��FRQWLQXHG�

 Group investment as disclosed above   -  -  738,722  245,191
 Less post acquisition reserves     -  -  (161,720 ) (157,512 )
        -  -  577,002  87,679

 Less: NBC Developments Partnership   -  -  -  (35,000 )
 Less: Accumulated impairment     -  -  (29,052 ) (4,432 )
        -  -  547,950  48,247
        �� � ��� �������� � ������
 
 All associated companies/partnerships are registered in Botswana.

� 'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�D�����VWDNH�ZDV�DWWDLQHG�LQ�,QGXV�+HDOWKFDUH��3W\��/WG�DQG�����LQ�.DPRVR�$IULFD��3URSULHWDU\��
Limited in the months of January and March 2020 respectively. Letlole la Rona Limited which  was previously 
KHOG�DV�D�VXEVLGLDU\�ZDV�UHGXFHG�WR��������VKDUHKROGLQJ�LQ�1RYHPEHU�������

 ,QFOXGHG�LQ�SRVW�DFTXLVLWLRQ�UHVHUYHV�DUH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�

� &XUUHQW�\HDU�VKDUH�RI�DVVRFLDWHV�SURîWV� �� ������� � �������� �� � �
 Current year share of associates tax charge   (6,392 ) (2,267 ) -  -
� 1HW�SURîW�DIWHU�WD[� �� �� �� ������� � �������� �� � �
 Share of other comprehensive income of 
 associates, net of tax     28,145  (20 ) -  -
        ������� � �������� �� � �

 The assessment of these investments for impairment requires the application of judgment and the use of 
VLJQLîFDQW�DVVXPSWLRQV�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�IXWXUH�SURîWDELOLW\�DQG�WKH�FXUUHQW�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV�KHOG�E\�WKH�HTXLW\�
accounted investees. 

� .H\�DVVXPSWLRQV�XVHG�LQ�WKH�GHWHUPLQLQJ�IXWXUH�SURîWDELOLW\�RI�HTXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV�LQFOXGH�UHYHQXH�
growth rates which were assessed as reasonable and are in line with relevant market growth rates. Such 
assumptions are based on historical results adjusted for anticipated future growth. These assumptions are a 
UHïHFWLRQ�RI�PDQDJHPHQWªV�SDVW�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�WKH�PDUNHW�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�LQYHVWHHV�RSHUDWH�

 The current value of assets held by equity accounted investees which is mostly property, plant and equipment 
and investment property was performed by independent property valuers. Refer to note 7 and 8 for additional 
details.

���� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV

� � � ������������������������ � � � � � ��������������������������
� � � � 1RQ�� � 7RWDO� � �� � � � 1RQ�� � 7RWDO� � �
� � &XUUHQW� � &XUUHQW� � � � � � &XUUHQW� � &XUUHQW
� � ,QYHVW�� � ,QYHVW�� � � � ,QWHUHVW� � ,QYHVW�� � ,QYHVW�� � � � ,QWHUHVW
� *URXS� PHQWV� � PHQWV� � � � � � PHQWV� � PHQWV

� )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�
� DPRUWLVHG�FRVW
� /RQJ�WHUP�SODFHPHQWV
 Deposits with RMB 
� %RWVZDQD� ��� ��������� ��������� ������� ��� ��������� ��������� �����
 ��7R�DVVRFLDWH�
� FRPSDQLHV
� 0DVKDWX��3W\��/WG� ��� �������� �������� ������� ��� ��� ��� ���
 Transport Holdings 
� �3W\��/WG� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� ������
� ��7R�QRQ�DǸOLDWHG�
 entities
 Botswana based 
� HQWLWLHV� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ������
� 5HJLRQDO�HQWLWLHV� �������� ��������� ��������� �������� �������� ��������� ��������� ������

� 7RWDO�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
 at amortised cost 241,399  1,146,303  1,387,702  -  156,675  1,030,455  1,187,130  -

 (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�DW�
� IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
� SURîW�ORVV
� 3UHIHUHQFH�VKDUHV

 PASDEC 
 Automotives 
� �3W\��/WG� ��� �������� �������� �������� ��� �������� �������� ������
 Crates and Pallets 
� �3W\��/WG� ��� ������� ������� �������� ��� ������� ������� ������
 Thakadu and Kwena 
� +RWHOV��3W\��/WG� ��� ������� ������� �������� ��� ������� ������� ������
� ,QGXV�+HDOWKFDUH��3W\��/WG� ��� �������� �������� ������� ��� ��� ��� ���
� 0LQHUJ\�&RDO��3W\��/WG� ��� �������� �������� �������� ��� ��� ��� ���
 Total Equity securities 
 at fair value through 
� SURîW�ORVV� ��� ��������� ��������� ��� ��� �������� �������� �
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG�
 
� � � �������������������������� � � � � � � �����
� � � � 1RQ�� � 7RWDO� � �� � � � 1RQ�� � 7RWDO� � �
� � &XUUHQW� � &XUUHQW� � � � � � &XUUHQW� � &XUUHQW
� � ,QYHVW�� � ,QYHVW�� � � �,QWHUHVW� � ,QYHVW�� � ,QYHVW�� � � � ,QWHUHVW
� *URXS� PHQWV� � PHQWV� � � � � � PHQWV� � PHQWV

 (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�
� ��GHVLJQDWHG�DW�)DLU�
� YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�
� FRPSUHKHQVLYH
� LQFRPH
� 0RJRªORUL�0DOO��3W\��/WG� ��� �� � �� � ���� ��� ������� ������� ������
 Sechaba Brewery 
 Holdings Limited shares 
� DW�FRVW� ��� ������� � �������� �������� ��� �������� �������� ������
 Cresta Marakanelo 
� /LPLWHG�VKDUHV�DW�FRVW� ��� ������� � ���������������� ��� �������� �������� ������
� *ULW�5HDO�(VWDWH��3W\��/WG� ��� �������� � ��������� ������� ��� ��� ��� ���
 Net gain in fair value 
� UHVHUYH��1RWH����� ��� �������� � ��������� ���� ��� ��������� ��������� ���

 Total Equity securities 
 - designated at fair value 
 through other 
 comprehensive 
 income -  602,135  602,135  -  -  618,532  618,532  -
  �������� ����������� � ���������� � � � �������� � ���������� ����������

 Less:
 Accumulated 
 impairment (92,822 ) (43,087 ) (135,909 ) -  (92,822 ) (57,264 ) (150,086 ) -
  �������� ����������� ������������ � � ������� � ���������� ����������

 
 The Company holds 20,812,462 (2019: 26,820,924) and 50,283,975 (2019: 50,283,975) ordinary shares in 

Sechaba Brewery Holdings Ltd and Cresta Marakanelo Ltd, respectively.  The equity method of accounting is 
QRW�IROORZHG�DV�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQO\�KROGV�����RI�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DV�DW����-XQH�������)RU�WKH�\HDU�
HQGHG���� -XQH������� WKH�FRPSDQ\�GLG�QRW�H[HUFLVH�VLJQLîFDQW� LQïXHQFH�RYHU�6HFKDED�%UHZHULHV�+ROGLQJV�
/WGªV�îQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�SROLFLHV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�RQO\�RQH�ERDUG�VHDW�DQG�GLG�QRW�SDUWLFLSDWH� LQ� WKH�
SURFHVV�RI�DSSRLQWLQJ�VHQLRU�PDQDJHPHQW��QHLWKHU�GLG�LW�KDYH�GLUHFW�LQïXHQFH�RYHU�WKH�RSHUDWLRQDO�VWUDWHJLHV�
RI�6HFKDED�%UHZHU\�+ROGLQJV��/LPLWHG��7KH�&RPSDQ\�RZQV�����������������RI�&UHVWD�0DUDNDQHOR�/WGªV�LVVXHG�
FDSLWDO���KRZHYHU�WKH�HTXLW\�PHWKRG�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�LV�QRW�IROORZHG�DV�WKH�FRPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�H[HUFLVH�VLJQLîFDQW�
LQïXHQFH�RYHU�&UHVWD�0DUDNDQHOR�/WGªV�îQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�SROLFLHV�7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�QRW�WDNHQ�XS�ERDG�
seats during the year and does not control the process of appointing senior management, neither does it have 
GLUHFW� LQïXHQFH�RYHU� WKH�RSHUDWLRQDO� VWUDWHJLHV�RI�&UHVWD�0DUDNDQHOR�/LPLWHG��7KH� IDLU� YDOXH�RI� WKH�TXRWHG�
investments was determined by using level 1 inputs - the share price of the respective investee quoted on 
Botswana Stock Exchange as at year end.

� 'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������D�VXEVLGLDU\�DFTXLUHG�����RI�VKDUHV�DQG�OLQNHG�GHEHQWXUHV�LQ�0RJRªORUL�PDOO�
Limited which are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. No dividends were received in 
the year from this investment. During the year ended 30 June 2020, BDC no longer had a controlling stake in 
this subsidiary.

 

���� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG�

 The redeemable preference shares in Pasdec Automative of P52 100 000 were redeemable in May 2019. 
+RZHYHU��DQ�RǺHU�ZDV�PDGH�WR�UHVWUXFWXUH�WKH�IDFLOLW\�WR�D�ORQJHU�WHUP�IDFLOLW\�

 The long term placements represent cash pledged as security for the RMB P150m debt facility (refer Note 24). 
7KH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�FROODWHUDO�DUH�VXFK�WKDW�WKH�IXQGV�DUH�WR�EH�KHOG�LQ�D�î[HG�GHSRVLW��DFFRXQW�WKDW�EHDUV�LQWHUHVW�
DW������SHU�DQQXP�DQG�UHPDLQ�WKHUH�IRU�WKH�GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�IDFLOLW\��WLOO�-XO\�������

 Consolidated other investments as above:       2,054,170  1,719,612
 $GG�EDFN�ORDQV�WR�VXEVLGLDULHV�
 Lobatse Clay Works (Pty) Ltd         72,292  35,787
 Botswana Hotel Development Corporation (Pty) Ltd     53,213  53,213
 Commercial Holdings (Pty) Ltd         -  -
 Western Industrial Estate (Pty) Ltd        19,678  19,542
 Milk Afric (Pty) Ltd           34,958  31,367

 Subtotal           2,234,311  1,859,521
 Less: subsidiary investments in equity instruments at FVOCI     -  (6,250 )
 Accumulated impairment         (17,430 ) (8,072 )
            ���������� � ���������

� &ODVVLîHG�DV�IROORZV�
 Current assets          - 167,335  85,700
 Non-current assets          - 2,049,526  1,759,499
          ��� ���������� � ���������

� (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�DUH�KHOG�IRU�ORQJ�WHUP�DSSURDFK�DQG�KDYH�QR�î[HG�PDWXULW\�

� 0DWXULW\�DQDO\VLV�RI�JURVV�ORDQV�îQDQFLDO�
 assets at amortised costs
 Up to 1 year       134,028  156,675  167,335  173,696
 1-5 years       667,359  880,597  710,385  925,736
 >5 years       371,891  150,000  485,879  150,000
        ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV��FRQWLQXHG�

        �*URXS� �� �&RPSDQ\

� )LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� � � �� )DLU�YDOXH� � 'LYLGHQGV�� )DLU�YDOXH� � 'LYLGHQGV

� ����
� (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�)92&,
 Sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited   449,549  26,582  449,549  26,582
 Cresta Marakanelo Limited     67,883  -  67,883  -
 GRIT Real Estate Income Group     84,703  5,672  84,703  5,672
 Subtotal       602,135  32,254  602,135  32,254
       � �������� � �������� �������� � ������

� ����
� (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�)92&,
 Investment in Mogo’lori Mall (Proprietary) Limited 6,250  -  -  -
 Sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited   551,438  29,503  551,438  29,503
 Cresta Marakanelo Limited     60,844  -  60,844  -
 Subtotal       618,532  29,503  612,282  29,503
        �������� � �������� �������� � ������

� ,Q�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������D�VXEVLGLDU\�WKDW�ZDV�ODWHU�GLVSRVHG��UHIHU�QRWH�����KHOG�����RI�VKDUHV�DQG�OLQNHG�
debentures in Mogo’lori mall Limited which were measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

 As at 1 July 2019, the Group designated the investments shown above as equity securities at FVOCI because 
these equity securities represent investments that the Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic 
purposes. 

� 7RWDO�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�IRU�WKH�JURXS�DQG�FRPSDQ\�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU�DPRXQWHG�WR�3������
billion  (2019: P1.037 million) and P1.567 billion (2019: P1.116 million) respectively.

���� 'XH�IURP�JURXS�FRPSDQLHV

 This comprises amounts due from Group companies as a result of the companies having claimed, under 
WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI� WKH�)RXUWK�6FKHGXOH�RI� WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�$FW�� WR�RǺVHW�WKHLU�DVVHVVDEOH� LQFRPH�DJDLQVW�WKH�
DVVHVVDEOH�ORVVHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�EDODQFHV�DUH�RǺVHW�DFURVV�WKH�YDULRXV�JURXS�FRPSDQLHVª�WD[�SRVLWLRQV�
DV�SHU�6FKHGXOH���RI�WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�$FW��DQG�WKLV�LV�RYHU�SHULRGV�H[FHHGLQJ�D�îQDQFLDO�\HDU��KHQFH�RI�D�ORQJ�WHUP�
nature

 *URXS�&RPSDQ\�1DPH
 Export Credit Insurance and Guarantee(Pty) Ltd   -  -  1,565  2,341
 Lobatse Clay Works(Pty) Ltd     -  -  (7,606 ) (5,228 )
 Commercial Holdings(Pty)     -  -  7,977  7,977
 Botswana Hotel Development Company(Pty) Ltd  -  -  40,664  38,825
 NPC Investment (Pty) Ltd     -  -  1  1
 Residential Holdings (Pty) Ltd     -  -  14,638  14,938
 Talana Farms(Pty) Ltd     -  -  459  459
 Western Industrial Estates(Pty) Ltd    -  -  64,969  64,969
 LP Amusement Centre (Pty) Ltd     -  -  (2,779 ) (2,779 )
 Malutu Enterprises (Pty) Ltd     -  -  1,679  1,752
 CAN Manufactures (Pty)Ltd     -  -  -  12,852
        �� � ��� �������� � �������

���� ,QYHQWRULHV

 Raw materials, components     2,715  2,663  -  -
 Work in progress       3,743  3,722  -  -
 Finished goods and consumables     1,689  1,992  -  -
        8,147  8,377  -  -
 Inventories (write-downs)     (1,486 ) (1,486 ) -  -
        ������ � ������� �� � �

 Amounts of inventory recognised as an expense in the period (purchases) amounts to P34.6million (2019:P42.6 
million)

���� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV

 Gross trade receivables     42,636  39,758  7,178  32,385
 Allowance for doubtful debts     (24,215 ) (20,572 ) -  -
 Net trade receivables     18,421  19,186  7,178  32,385
 Prepayments       18,025  8,466  16,286  5,027
� $GYDQFHV�WR�RǸFHUV�� �� �� ���� � ����� ���� � ���
 Preference shares interest     16,997  7,848  16,997  7,848
 Value Added Tax (VAT)     5,755  4,924  2,873  2,925
 Due from related parties     -  (28 ) 60,907  61,115
 Other       24,888  38,494  16,731  2,765
 Refundable taxes       8,299  7,264  -  -
 7RWDO�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� � � �� ������� � �������� �������� � �������

 The average credit period is 30 days (2019: 30 days). No interest is charged on overdue trade debtors. The 
Group has provided for all trade debtors based on estimated irrecoverable amounts. 

 Expected credit loss assessment for trade and other receivables

 The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is determined to be predictive of 
WKH�ULVN�RI� ORVV�� �LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW� OLPLWHG�WR�PDQDJHPHQW�DFFRXQV��DXGLWHG�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��FDVK�ïRZ�
projections etc) and applying experienced credit judgement. The nature of the company’s trade receivables are 
such that credit gradings are applied on a simplistic basis using qualitative and quantitative factors that are 
indicative of a risk of default. The expected credit losses for the Company are not material. 

� 7KH�EDODQFH�GXH�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�LQFOXGH�WKH�îQDO�OLTXLGDWLRQ�GLYLGHQG�IURP�)HQJ\XH�*ODVV�0DQXIDFWXULQJ�
(Botswana) Pty (Ltd) .

 3DVW�GXH�DQDO\VLV���GD\V�SDVW�GXH�EXW�QRW�LPSDLUHG
 1 - 30 days       1,772  2,440  257  -
 31 - 60 days       6,267  3,337  1,987  773
 61 -  90 days       3,486  12,767  3,470  398
 7RWDO� � � � � �� ������� � �������� ������ � �����

 0RYHPHQW�LQ�WKH�DOORZDQFH�IRU�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV
 Balance at beginning of the year     19,635  15,109  283  859
 Allowance charged /(reversed) during the year   6,677  4,526  893  (576 )
� $PRXQWV�ZULWWHQ�RǺ�DV�XQFROOHFWDEOH� �� ��������� ��� �� � �
 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� � � �� ������� � �������� ������ � ���

 At the reporting date, the Group considers the concentration of credit risk limited due to the customer base 
being unrelated. There are no other impaired trade and other receivables.
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV��FRQWLQXHG��

� )DLU�YDOXH�RI�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV�

 The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying amounts due to their short term nature.

���� 2WKHU�DVVHWV

 Balance at beginning of the year     3,154  11,368  -  -
 Interest income - reinvested     150  316  -  -
 Net deposits /(withdrawals)     1,402  (8,530 ) -  -
 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� � � �� ������ � ������� �� � �

� 2WKHU� DVVHWV� FRPSULVH� VKRUW� WHUP� î[HG� LQFRPH� VHFXULWLHV� SODFHG� LQ� WKH� FDSLWDO�PDUNHWV�ZLWK� YDULRXV� IXQG�
managers. Due to the short term nature of these placements, the carrying value of the assets equals their fair 
value. The value of funds are based on valuation of units provided by fund managers.

���� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�

 Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

 Cash on hand       117  14  -  5
 Bank balances       72,727  311,453  55,888  47,059
 Money market funds     410,788  69,104  391,140  3,739
 Other cash and cash equivalents     2,328  -  -  -
 Bank overdraft       (164,808 ) (99,695 ) (164,737 ) (99,607 )
        �������� � ��������� �������� � ���������

 Current assets       485,960  380,571  447,028  50,803
 Current liabilities       (164,808 ) (99,695 ) (164,737 ) (99,607 )
        �������� � ��������� �������� � ���������

 Money market funds

 Surplus cash funds are invested in money market 
� IXQGV�ZKLFK��FRPSULVH�UROOLQJ�DQG�î[HG�GHSRVLWV�
 with fund managers and have  a tenure of 1 week to 
� ���GD\V��7KH�LQWHUHVW�HDUQHG�LV�DW�DQ�HǺHFWLYH��
� LQWHUHVW�UDWH�RI�������������������7KH�SURSRUWLRQDWH�
 amount of interest up to 30 June is added to the 
 cost of investment to approximate fair value.

���� 6WDWHG�&DSLWDO

 2UGLQDU\�VKDUHV
 541 769 462 Ordinary shares of Nil Par value 
 (2019: 541 769 462)       888,269  888,269  888,269  888,269

 The company’s ordinary shares are held by a sole shareholder, the Government of the Republic of Botswana. 
 The shares carry a single vote, as well as a right to dividends as may be declared by the company from time to 

time.

 P20 million (2019: P25 million) dividends were declared during the year in respect of the company’s 541 769 
462 (2019: 541 769 462) ordinary  shares resulting in dividends per share of 4t per share (2019: 5t per share).

���� )DLU�YDOXH�UHVHUYH

 Balance at beginning of the year     477,137  447,030  477,137  447,030
 Fair value movement during the year   (158,302 ) 30,107  (158,302 ) 30,107
        �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 Comprising:
 Sechaba Breweries Holdings Ltd     405,141  494,233  405,141  494,233
 Cresta Marakanelo Ltd     (10,056 ) (17,096 ) (10,056 ) (17,096 )
 Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited   (76,250 ) -  (76,250 ) -
        �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 The group has made an irrevocable election on adoption of IFRS 9 to classify these equity instruments at fair 
value through OCI as it is  the business model not to hold the equities for trading or for contingent consideration. 
The fair value and dividend information on these securities are disclosed in Note 13. 

���� 2WKHU�5HVHUYHV

      �� 'HEW�DQG� � 6WDWXWRU\�� 5HYDOXDWLRQ� � 7RWDO
� � � � � � �� &DSLWDO� � &DSLWDO�DQG�� 5HVHUYH
� � � � � � �� 5HVHUYH� � 6ROYHQF\��
� &RPSDQ\� � � � � �� � � 5HVHUYHV
 
 Balance as at 30 June 2018     101,238  -  -  101,238
 Transfers during the year     33,931  -  -  33,931
 Balance at 30 June 2019     135,169  -  -  135,169
 Transfers during the year     (394 ) -  -  (394 )
 %DODQFH�DW����-XQH������� � � �� �������� � ��� �� � �������

 &RQVROLGDWHG

 Subsidiaries

 Balance as at 30 June 2018     -  2,262  96,288  98,550
 Transfers from/(to) retained earnings   -  -  154,401  154,401
� %DODQFH�DW����-XQH������ � � �� �� � ������� �������� � �������

 %DODQFH�DW����-XQH������� � � �� �� � ������� �������� � �������

 Associates

 Balance as at 30 June 2018     -  -  93,497  93,497
 Share of other comprehensive loss of associates -  -  (20 ) (20 )
 Disposal of investment     -  -  (44,215 ) (44,215 )
 5HVWDWHG
�%DODQFH�DW����-XQH������� �� �� � ��� ������� � ������

 Other movements       -  -  28,511  28,511
 %DODQFH�DW����-XQH������� � � �� �� � ��� ������� � ������

 7RWDO�2WKHU�UHVHUYHV�DW������ � � �� �������� � ������� �������� � �������

� 7RWDO�2WKHU�UHVHUYHV�DW������ � � �� �������� � ������� �������� � �������
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���� 2WKHU�5HVHUYHV��FRQWLQXHG��

 Debt and Capital Reserve 

� $OWKRXJK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�QRW�D�UHJXODWHG�îQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQ��D�&DSLWDO�DQG�'HEW�5HVHUYH�UHTXLUHPHQW�IUDPHZRUN�
was set up in 2017, through an internal policy. For this purposes, a Capital and Debt Reserve Account (CDRA) 
ZDV�VHW�XS��DQG�D�PLQLPXP�RI�������RI�123$7�JHWV�DOORFDWHG�WR�WKLV�DFFRXQW�DQQXDOO\��7KH�DFFRXQW�FDQ�DOVR�
be funded from cash windfalls and excess operational liquidity. The primary purpose of the CDRA is to hold 
adequate reserves for repayment obligations under long term funding facilities as well as mitigating against 
the impact of credit losses. Disbursements to investments can be made from this account under exceptional 
circumstances, provided a replacement is made from the Investment fund thereafter.

 During the year, the company made a transfer into the account of P24.8million (2019: P28.4million) in accordance 
with policy and utilised P31million (2019: NIL). The funds were invested in an interest bearing account and 
earned P6million (2019: P5.5million) 

 Statutory capital and solvency reserves 

� ,Q�WHUPV�RI�WKH�,QVXUDQFH�$FW��&$3�������������RI�SURîW�DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ��DQG�����RI�SURîW�EHIRUH�WD[�RI�D�VXEVLGLDU\�
company, which is providing  export and domestic credit insurance, is transferred to statutory capital and 
VROYHQF\�UHVHUYHV�UHVSHFWLYHO\��1R�WUDQVIHUV�WR�WKHVH�UHVHUYHV�ZHUH�PDGH�GXULQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�RU�SULRU�îQDQFLDO�
\HDU�DV�WKH�VXEVLGLDU\�UHDOLVHG�D�ORVV�EHIRUH�DQG�DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ�LQ�ERWK�îQDQFLDO�\HDUV�

���� &ODLPV�(TXDOLVDWLRQ�5HVHUYH

 Balance at beginning of the year     1,207  4,207  -  -
 Transfers to retained earnings     -  (3,000 ) -  -
 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� � � �� ������ � ������� �� � �

� ,W�LV�WKH�SROLF\�RI�D�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDQ\�WR�WUDQVIHU�����RI�WKH�QHW�FRPPHUFLDO�DQG�GRPHVWLF�SUHPLXP�LQFRPH�
from retained earnings into the claims equalisation reserve. The transfer from retained earnings ceases when 
WKH�EDODQFH�LQ�WKH�UHVHUYH�DFFRXQW�DPRXQWV�WR������RI�WKH�KLJKHVW�JURVV�SUHPLXP�LQFRPH�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�îYH�
years. A transfer amounting to PNil (2019: P3 million) was made to retained earnings to reduce the impact of 
abnormal claims.

���� 1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW

 Balance at beginning of the year     366,661  366,260  -  -
� 6KDUH�RI�SURîW�DQG�2&,�IRU�WKH�\HDU�RI�VXEVLGLDULHV� ������ � �������� �� � �
 Debenture interest declared during the year   -  (19,392 ) -  -
 Dividends paid       -  (1,362 ) -  -
 NCI relating to disposal of majority stake in a 
 subsidiary (note 11)       (259,698 ) -  -  -
 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� � � �� �������� � ��������� �� � �

 In November 2019 the Company disposed some of its shares in Letlole La Rona Limited remaining with a 
�������VKDUHKROGLQJ��������������DV�D�UHVXOW��WKH�UHPDLQLQJ��VKDUHKROGLQJ�LV��DFFRXQWHG�XQGHU�HTXLW\�DFFRXQWLQJ

���� %RUURZLQJV

 +HOG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW
 Syndicate - RMB and Stanbic Bank 
 Botswana Limited 
 A maximum secured loan of P450million, that 
� ERUH�LQWHUHVW�DW�SULPH�OHQGLQJ�UDWH��FXUUHQWO\�������
� ��������������PLQXV����PDUJLQ�SHU�DQQXP�DQG�
 repayable in 12 instalments of P25million paid 
 quarterly and a bullet payment of P150million payable 
 in November 2019. The loan was secured through 
 BDC’s shareholding in Letlole la Rona Limited 
 and Sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited, Western 
 Industrial Estates Limited and Debt service reserve. -  148,678  -  148,678
 
 Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited 
 A maximum loan of P179 960 000 that accrues 
� LQWHUHVW�DW������EHORZ�SULPH�UDWH��7KH�ORDQ�LV�
 repayable in 168 equal monthly instalments. 
� 7KH�ORDQ�LV�VHFXUHG�E\�D�îUVW�PRUWJDJHG�ERQG�
 over Lot 70667 Gaborone     80,463  95,505  -  -

 First National Bank of Botswana Limited 
 A P230million facility split equally as Tranche 
� $��FDUU\LQJ�LQWHUHVW�DW�������DQG�7UDQFKH�%�
� FDUU\LQJ�LQWHUHVW�DW�������7KH�ORDQ�ZDV�UHSD\DEOH�
 after 5 years from initial drawdown in 2018 and is 
� VHFXUHG�E\�����L��D�îUVW�FRYHULQJ�PRUWJDJH�ERQG�
 for P80million over lot 74204, Gaborone, (ii) a 
� îUVW�FRYHULQJ�PRUWJDJH�ERQG�IRU�3��PLOOLRQ�RYHU�
� /RW��������*DERURQH���LLL��D�îUVW�FRYHULQJ�PRUWJDJH�
 bond of P137million over Lot 29052, Mahalapye, (iv) 
 cession of lease rentals in relation to mortgaged 
 properties, (v) lien of P100million maintained in 
 the bank account, (vi) cession of insurance policies 
 and proceeds with regards to mortgaged properties; 
 and (vii) cession of receivable balances.   -  194,100  -  -

 Bank Gaborone 
 Loan facility of P47 756 million that accrued interest 
� DW�SULPH�UDWH��FXUUHQWO\���������������������SOXV����
 margin. The loan was repayable in 180 months 
 instalments from the signature date in structured 
 capital instalments and interest payments. 
� 7KH�ORDQ�ZDV�VHFXUHG�E\�D�îUVW�FRYHULQJ�
 mortgage bond of P24million over Lot 4738 station, 
� *DERURQH��UHJLVWHUHG�FHVVLRQ�RI�îUH�SROLF\�IRU�
� 3�����PLOOLRQ�DQG�îUVW�FRYHULQJ�PRUWJDJH�ERQG�RI�
 P24 million over lot 50380, show grounds, Gaborone. -  42,851  -  -

 Botswana Government 
 Unsecured loan bearing no interest repayable 
� DQQXDOO\�LQ�LQVWDOPHQWV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�����RI�WKH�
� WRWDO�LQFUHPHQWDO�IUHH�FDVK�ïRZ�JHQHUDWHG�E\�
 Gaborone International Conference Centre (GICC), 
� VXEMHFW�WR�D�PLQLPXP�RI�3��������IRU�WKH�îUVW�\HDU��
 escalated thereafter at a rate equal to the increase in 
 Consumer Price Index for urban areas.   53,213  53,213  53,213  53,213
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���� %RUURZLQJV���FRQWLQXHG�

 Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited 
 Term loan facility bearing interest rate of 
� SULPH�SOXV����PDUJLQ�SD\DEOH�RYHU����\HDUV�
 with interest payable on a quarterly basis 
 and capital repayments from year 3 to 10.
 The facility is secured by second covering 
 surety mortgage bond of P259 040 000 
 over Lot 70667, Gaborone     350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000

 Capital Bank Limited 
 Secured short term loan facility of 
 USD5.5 million bearing interest rate at 1 year 
� OLERU�SOXV�������SHU�DQQXP�UHSD\DEOH�RYHU�
 3 years. Interest is paid quarterly in arrears 
 and bullet at year 3. The facility is secured 
 by a pledge of shares in Botswana Hotel 
 Development Company to the amount of 
 USD5.5 million.       65,406  58,386  65,406  58,386

 RMB Botswana 
 Term loan facility of P150 000 000 bearing 
� LQWHUHVW�UDWH�RI�SULPH�UDWH�OHVV�������PDUJLQ��
 The loan is repayable on maturity in 2023 and 
 interest payments paid quarterly in arrears. 
 The loan is secured by cession over shares 
 in Sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited and 
 Letlole la Rona Limited as well as cession 
 of P100 000 000  cash collateral (refer note 13).  150,000  150,000  150,000  150,000

 SCB Bridge facility 
 Short term loan facility of P230 000 000
  bearing repayable in in 180 days.The bridge 
 facility bearing interest at a rate of prime 
� SOXV������PDUJLQ��,QWHUHVW�LV�SD\DEOH�
 monthly in arrears and all outstanding amounts 
 to be paid in full at maturity date. The facility is 
� VHFXUHG�E\�îUVW�GUDZ�GRZQ�RQ�$I'%�IDFLOLW\�IXQGV�� �������� � ��� �������� � �

 SCB Revolving facility 
 A revolving 1-year term facility bearing interest 
� DW�D�UDWH�RI�SULPH�OHVV������PDUJLQ��,QWHUHVW�LV�
 payable monthly in arrears and all outstanding 
 facility amounts to be paid in full at maturity date. 135,000  -  135,000  -

 African Development Bank 
 Non-sovereign guaranteed line of credit facility 
 of USD80 million bearing interest rate at 
� ��PRQWKV�/LERU�SOXV����SHU�DQQXP��5HSD\DEOH�
 by semi-annual instalments,amortised with a  2-year 
 principal grace period and balance payable in 
 16 equal and consecutive payments for a period 
 of 8 years.       477,611  -  477,611  -

���� %RUURZLQJV���FRQWLQXHG�

 %RQGV
 Issued       356,060  356,060  356,060  356,060
 Debt issuance costs      (5,123 ) (6,131 ) (5,123 ) (6,131 )
        350,937  349,929  350,937  349,929
 Discount on bonds       (3,978 ) (4,425 ) (3,978 ) (4,425 )
        �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 The Company maintains a Botswana Stock Exchange approved BWP 1 billion Domestic Medium Term Notes 
Program from which debt notes are issued to raise capital as and when need arises. In June 2016 notes 
amounting to BWP225 260 000 (Aggregate Principal Amount) were issued on an unsecured basis (BDC 
������ZLWK�D�FRXSRQ�UDWH�RI�%RWVZDQD�3ULPH����������'XULQJ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�\HDU�������DQ�RǺHU�WR�UHWURVSHFWLYHO\�
securitize BDC 001 notes was extended to investors in order to achieve broader capital raising objectives. 
$WWDFKHG�WR�WKLV�RǺHU�ZDV�D�UHGXFWLRQ�RI�PDUJLQ�RYHU�%RWVZDQD�3ULPH�IURP�������WR��������7KH�RǺHU�ZDV�WDNHQ�
up by investors holding BWP207 460 000 worth of notes under BDC 001 whilst holders of notes amounting 
to BWP17 100 000 remained on the original terms. An investor holding P700,000 worth of notes opted to sell 
back to the Company. The rest of the terms remain unchanged as follows:

 - Issue Price: 97.425 per cent of Aggregate Principal Amount
 - Maturity: June 2029.
 - Redemption basis: At par in 3 equal instalments occurring in June 2027, June 2028 and June 2029.

 Refer note 26 for more details

� *URVV�ERUURZLQJV��/RDQV�DQG�ERQGV�� �� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

        1,888,652  1,438,237  1,808,189  1,105,781
 Less: Current portion included under 
 current liabilities       (444,011 ) (170,838 ) (430,406 ) (148,678 )
        ���������� � ����������� ���������� � �������

 Analysis of term borrowings

 Term borrowings - long term portion   1,097,682  921,895  1,030,824  611,599
 Term borrowings - short term portion   444,011  170,838  430,406  148,678
 Bonds outstanding       346,959  345,504  346,959  345,504
        ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 Analysis of gross borrowings

 Not later than 1 year       444,011  170,838  430,406  148,678
 Later than 1 year, but not later than 5 years   243,014  313,164  343,240  299,998
 Later than 5 years       1,201,557  954,235  1,034,543  657,105
 *URVV�ERUURZLQJV� � � � � �� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 Amortised cost of borrowings:     53,213  53,213  53,213  53,213
 Balance at beginning of the year     -  -  (53,213 ) (58,039 )
 Transfer from provisions arising on repayments   -  -  -  4,826
 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� � � �� �� � ��� ���������� ���������
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���� *RYHUQPHQW�JUDQWV

 Non-current liabilities     10,343  10,699  -  -
 Current liabilities       356  356  -  -
        ������� � �������� �� � �

 Balance at beginning of the year     11,055  11,410  -  -
 Amortisation during the year     (356 ) (356 ) -  -
        ������� � �������� �� � �

 A provision for impairment loss of factory premises in Selebi Phikwe on lot 11270,11271 and 11272 was made 
in 2000. The P10 million  movement relates to release of amortisation grant to cover the cost of the related 
impairment for assets that were purchased through government grants in year 2000.

 Gross Government grants     32,456  32,456  -  -
 Amortisation       (11,757 ) (11,401 ) -  -
 Utilised as provision for impairment loss   (10,000 ) (10,000 ) -  -
        ������� � �������� �� � �

���� %RQGV�RXWVWDQGLQJ

 $W�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW
 BDC 001 
 Unsecured bond of interest coupon rate of  
� %RWVZDQD�SULPH�UDWH�SOXV��������ZLWK��WHQRUV�
 up-to 13 years.       82,030  82,030  82,030  82,030
 BDC 002 
 Senior secured bond of interest coupon rate 
� RI�%RWVZDQD�SULPH�UDWH�SOXV�������ZLWK�WHQRUV��
 up-to 5 years.       131,500  131,500  131,500  131,500
 BDC 003 
 Senior secured bond, interest coupon of Botswana 
� SULPH�SOXV�������ZLWK�WHQRUV�XS�WR����\HDUV�� �� �������� � ��������� �������� � �������
 Bond Discount       (3,979 ) (4,425 ) (3,979 ) (4,425 )
 Issuance Costs on BDC 001     (3,730 ) (4,099 ) (3,730 ) (4,099 )
 Issuance Costs on BDC 003     (78 ) (87 ) (78 ) (87 )
 Issunce Costs on BDC 002     (1,314 ) (1,945 ) (1,314 ) (1,945 )
      �� �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 6SOLW�EHWZHHQ�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DQG�FXUUHQW�SRUWLRQV

 Non-current liabilities     346,959  345,504  346,959  345,504

���� 3URYLVLRQV�IRU�UHVWRUDWLRQ�FRVWV

 Balance at beginning of year     13,495  12,069  -  -
 Change in estimate       (3,59 ) 1,426  -  -

� &KDUJH�WR�WKH�SURîW�RU�ORVV� �� �� ��������� ������� �� � �

 %DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� � � �� ������ � �������� �� � �

 A subsidiary company has two mining sites which have been operational since 1992. Botswana legislation 
and the lease agreement for the mine require the company to restore the sites to their original condition on 
cessation of mining operations in 2035. The main uncertainty in respect of the estimated provision is the 
amount of costs to be incurred. The Group expects to settle the majority of the liability at the end of the life of 
the mine.

 At the end of both June 2020 and 2019, the group engaged an external expert, Champs Botswana, to estimate 
provision for site rehabilitation. The costs estimated by the expert included estimates costs for premature 
FORVXUH��FRVW�RI�OHDYLQJ�WKH�4XDUU\�RSHQ�IRU�RWKHU�SRVVLEOH�XVHV��DQG�FRVW�RI�EDFNîOOLQJ�WKH�TXDUU\�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�
WKH�PLQLQJ�SHULRG��7KH�GLVFRXQWHG�OLDELOLW\�LV�DGMXVWHG�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�SHULRG�WR�UHïHFW�WKH�SDVVDJH�RI�WLPH��
EDVHG�RQ�D�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�RI��������������������WKDW�UHïHFWV�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�DVVHVVPHQWV�DQG�WKH�ULVNV�VSHFLîF�
WR�WKH�OLDELOLW\��DQG�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ïRZV�XQGHUO\LQJ�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�

� $�ULVN�IUHH�UDWH�RI��������������������UHïHFWV�WKH�ULVNV�VSHFLîF�WR�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�DV�PDQDJHPHQW�EHOLHYHV�WKH�
FDVKïRZV� DUH� KLJKO\� OLNHO\�� 7KHVH� HVWLPDWHV� GHSHQG� RQ� ODERXU� FRVWV�� NQRZQ� HQYLURQPHQWDO� LPSDFWV�� WKH�
HǺHFWLYHQHVV�RI�UHPHGLDO�DQG�UHVWRUDWLRQ�PHDVXUHV��LQïDWLRQ�UDWHV�DQG�ULVN�IUHH�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�VSHFLîF�WR�HDFK�
liability. The Company also estimates the timing of the outlays, which is subject to change depending on 
continued operation or newly discovered reserves.

���� 'HIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ

 'HIHUUHG�WD[

 Property plant and equipment     (128,478 ) (150,139 ) -  -
 Provisions       -  -  -  -
 Accumulated tax losses     -  -  -  -
 7RWDO�GHIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLW\� � � �� ����������� ����������� �� � �

 'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW

 Prepaid expenses       -  -  -  -
 Investment properties, property, plant and equipment (530 ) (6,140 ) -  -
 Provisions       (1,486 ) -  -  -
� 'HIHUUHG�WD[�EDODQFH�IURP�WHPSRUDU\�GLǺHUHQFHV�� ��������� ��������� �� � �
 other than unused tax losses     
� 7D[�ORVVHV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VHW�RǺ�DJDLQVW�IXWXUH�� �� ���������� ��� �� � �
 tax income                

       (27,124 ) (6,140 ) -  -
 7RWDO�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW� � � �� ���������� ��������� �� � �

 Deferred tax liability       (128,479 ) (150,139 ) -  -
 Deferred tax asset       27,124  6,140  -  -
 7RWDO�QHW�GHIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLW\� � � �� ����������� ����������� �� � �
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���� 'HIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG�

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW����OLDELOLW\�

 At beginning of year      143,999  130,575  -  -
� &KDUJHG�WR�VWDWHPHQW�RI�SURîW�RU�ORVV���FXUUHQW�\HDU� ������ � ������� �� � �
� &KDUJHG�WR�VWDWHPHQW�RI�SURîW�RU�ORVV���SULRU�\HDU� ��������� ������� �� � �
� &KDUJHG�WR�VWDWHPHQW�RI�SURîW�RU�ORVV����
 capital gains tax       5,397  2,769  -  -
� :ULWH�RǺ�RI�GHIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ�EDODQFHV�RQ�ORVV�RI�
 control of subsidiary (note 11)     (48,265 ) -  -  -
       � �������� � ��������� �� � �

� &DSLWDO�JDLQV�WD[�GHIHUUHG�RQ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�SURSHUWLHV�E\�D�VXEVLGLDU\

 On creaton of a Variable Loan Stock Company, Letlole la Rona Ltd (LLR), exemption was obtained from 
%RWVZDQD�8QLîHG�5HYHQXH�6HUYLFHV��%856��IRU�WKH�SD\PHQWV�RI�FDSLWDO�JDLQV�WD[�RQ�WUDQVIHU�RI�SURSHUWLHV�IURP�
WKH�VXEVLGLDULHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��§WKH�9HQGRUV¨���XQWLO�VXFK�WLPH�DV�WKH�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�GLVSRVHG�RǺ�E\�//5�7KLV�
amount represents the potential deferred capital gains tax liability at the end of the year. The actual liability 
arising on the disposal of any of the properties will be settled by the vendors on disposal of the properties by 
LLR.

���� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV

 )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�

 Trade payables       19,002  18,011  47,592  2,939
 Trade payables - related parties     260  2,675  20  49,429
 Interest accruals       5,295  4,862  1,043  6,601
 Accrued expenses       12,878  29,084  21,993  11,750
 Payroll accruals       18,477  18,344  14,263  13,466
 Deposits       49,730  56,774  6,051  863
 1RQ�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
 Amounts received in advance     12,420  2,280  -  -
 Value Added Taxation     7,605  39,330  -  1,228
        �������� � ��������� ������� � ������

���� %DQN�2YHUGUDIWV

 Bank overdraft       164,808  99,695  164,737  99,607

 7KH�*URXSªV�EDQN�RYHUGUDIW�OLPLWV�DUH�DV�IROORZV�
 - Standard  Chartered Bank Botswana Limited   70,000  70,000  70,000  70,000
 - First National Bank Botswana Limited   -  3,000  -  -
 - Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited     150,000  153,500  150,000  150,000
        �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 The facilities are secured over:
 The Company’s facilities are unsecured. The subsidiaries’ facilities 
 are secured as follows:
� ���:HV%DQN�DVVHWV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�3����������H[WHQGHG�DW�����
 • First covering mortgage bond for P4 720 000 over Lot 14405, Gaborone.

���� &RQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV

 Legal matters against certain subsidiaries   (1,600 ) (1,600 ) -  -
 Guarantees and Bonds outstanding   (284,381 ) (343,373 ) -  -
       � ����������� ����������� �� � �

� 7KH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�IXWXUH�FDVK�RXWïRZV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�OHJDO�PDWWHUV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKHLU�WLPLQJ�GHSHQG�RQ�
the outcome of the legal cases.

� 7KH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�IXWXUH�FDVK�RXWïRZV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�ORDQ�JXDUDQWHHG�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKHLU�WLPLQJ�GHSHQGHG�
on whether there will be instances of non-compliance with loan agreements. In 2016 the Corporation ceased 
issuing guarantees.

 Contingent liabilities are secured by immovable property or cash. This is done so as to minimise risk in the 
event a claim is lodged. Security held will be liquidated so as to increase recovery.

���� 3HQVLRQ�VFKHPH�DUUDQJHPHQWV

� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�RSHUDWHV�D�GHîQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SHQVLRQ�VFKHPH�IRU�LWV�HOLJLEOH�HPSOR\HHV�ZKLFK�SURYLGHV�IRU�
D�SHQVLRQ�EDVHG�RQ�OHQJWK�RI�VHUYLFH��7KH�GHîQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�VFKHPH�ZDV�HǺHFWHG�LQ�0DUFK�������7KH�WRWDO�
FRQWULEXWLRQ�IRU�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�LQFOXGHG�LQ�VWDǺ�FRVWV�ZDV�3����PLOOLRQ��������3����PLOOLRQ��

���� 5HODWHG�SDUWLHV

 Relationships
� 8OWLPDWH�KROGLQJ�FRPSDQ\� �7KH�FRPSDQ\�LV�RZQHG������E\�WKH�*RYHUQPHQW�RI�%RWVZDQD��5HODWHG�� �

    balances consist of amounts due from/(to) entities the under common   
    ownership or control other than the Government of the Republic of     
    Botswana  and its entities

 Subsidiaries            Refer to note 11
 Associates            Refer to note 12
 Members of key management  Executive Director 
     Executive Management

 5HODWHG�SDUW\�EDODQFHV

� � � � � � �� � � ���������������*URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\
� )LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� � � �� � � �� ����� � ����

 3KDNDODQH�3URSHUW\�'HYHORSPHQW��3W\��/WG
 Due to Phakalane Estates         -  915

 :HVWHUQ�,QGXVWULDO�(VWDWHV��3W\��/WG
 Cash invested on behalf of subsidiaries       27,114  30,972
 Group tax relief with BDC         64,969  64,969
 Loan from BDC           19,678  19,529
 Payables to BDC           61,115  61,115
 Dividend due to BDC         -  10,000

 &RPPHUFLDO�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG
 Cash invested on behalf of subsidiary by BDC       3,031  1,217
 Group tax relief           7,977  7,977
 Dividend due to BDC         -  2,500
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� 5HODWHG�SDUWLHV��FRQWLQXHG�� � � �� � � ���������������
� � � � � � �� � � ���������������*URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\
� �)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� � � �� � � �� ����� � ����

 /HWOROH�OD�5RQD�/LPLWHG
 Deferred tax recoverable         -  5,213
 Debenture interest and dividend due to BDC       2,039  19,801

� %RWVZDQD�+RWHO�'HYHORSPHQW�&RPSDQ\��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief with BDC         40,664  38,825
 Loan from BDC           53,212  53,212
 Cash invested on behalf of subsidiary       6,048  3,910

 7DODQD�)DUPV��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief           459  459
 Cash invested on behalf of subsidiaries       2,328  3,304

 13&�,QYHVWPHQWV��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief           1  1
 Cash invested on behalf of subsidiary       1,796  1,851

� 0DOXWX�(QWHUSULVHV��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief with BDC         1,679  1,751

 5HVLGHQWLDO�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief with BDC         14,639  14,939
 Cash invested on behlaf of subsidiary by BDC       817  4,412

 /3�$PXVHPHQW�&HQWUH��3W\��/WG
 Cash invested on behalf of subsidiary       3,780  3,633
 Group tax relief with BDC         (2,779 ) (2,779 )

 ([SRUW�&UHGLW�,QVXUDQFH�	�*XDUDQWHH��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief with BDC         1,565  2,341

 &DQ�0DQXIDFWXUHUV��3W\��/WG
 Group tax relief with BDC         -  12,852

 /REDWVH�&OD\�:RUNV��3W\��/WG
 Loan from BDC           72,222  35,787
 Group tax relief           (7,606 ) (5,228 )
 0LON�$IULF��3W\��/WG
 Loan from BDC           34,958  31,367
 7UDQVSRUW�+ROGLQJV��3W\��/WG
 Loan from BDC           60,987  63,238

� 5HODWHG�SDUW\�WUDQVDFWLRQV

 7UDQVDFWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU
� 'LUHFWRUVª�IHHV�SDLG
 Botswana Development Corporation       174  125
 Botswana Hotel Development Company (Pty) Ltd     36  26
 Commercial Holdings (Pty) Ltd         45  34
 Export Credit Insurance & Guarantee (Pty) Ltd       265  232
 Fairgrounds Holdings (Pty) Ltd         280  244
 Malutu Enterprises (Pty) Ltd         -  7
 Western Industrial Estates (Pty) Ltd       60  52

���� 5HODWHG�SDUWLHV��FRQWLQXHG�� � � �� � � ���������������
� � � � � � �� � � ���������������*URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\
� �)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� � � �� � � �� ����� � ����

 Talana Farms (Pty) Ltd         5  10
 Letlole La Rona Limited         1,999  1,623
 LP Amusement Centre (Pty) Ltd         56  51
 Residential Holdings (Pty) Ltd         35  26

 'LUHFWRUVª�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�H[HFXWLYH�VHUYLFHV���VKRUW�WHUP�EHQHîWV
 Botswana Development Corporation       3,292  2,805
 Investec Holdings Botswana Limited       -  2,513
 
 0DQDJHPHQW�IHHV�SDLG�WR�%'&
 Botswana Hotel Development Company (Pty) Ltd     161  304
 Commercial Holdings (Pty) Ltd         -  258
 Western Industrial Estates (Pty) Ltd       -  167
 Residential Holdings (Pty) Ltd         -  45

 .H\�PDQDJHPHQW�UHQXPHUDWLRQ���VKRUW�WHUP�EHQHîWV
 Botswana Development Corporation       17,915  15,321
 Fairground Holdings (Pty) Ltd         3,419  2,697
 Letlole La Rona Limited         4,684  4,558
 LP Amusement Centre (Pty) Ltd         1,121  998
 Export Credit Insurance & Guarantee (Pty) Ltd       3,612  3,299

 'LYLGHQGV�5HFHLYHG
 Botswana Hotel Development Company (Pty) Ltd     15,000  27,000
 Western Industrial Estates (Pty) Ltd       -  22,000
 Letlole La Rona Limited         115  184
 Residential Holdings (Pty) Ltd         -  40,000
 Commercial Holdings (Pty) Ltd         15,000  2,500
 Fairgrounds Holdings (Pty) Ltd         -  1,317
 Peermont Global Botswana (Pty) Ltd       4,000  8,000
 Marekisetso a merogo (Pty) Ltd         -  206
 Transport Holdings (Pty) Ltd         1,709  1,028
 Golden Fruit (Pty) Ltd         916  -
 
 )LQDQFH�FRVWV�SDLG�WR�%'&
 Commercial Holdings (Pty) Ltd         -  12,769
 Western Industrial Estate (Pty) Ltd        1,467  1,453
 Lobatse Clay Works (Pty) Ltd         5,131  2,233
 Mashatu (Pty) Ltd           434  -
 Pasdec Automotive (Pty) Ltd         4,846  -
 Transport Holdings (Pty) Ltd         6,986  8,013

 5HQWDO�LQFRPH�IURP�%'&
 Commercial Holdings (Pty) Ltd         17,198  15,929

 ,QWHUHVW�LQFRPH�RQ�GHEHQWXUHV
 Letlole La Rona Limited         18,437  37,522

 6KDUH�RI�SURîW�DQG�GLYLGHQG�SDLG�WR�/HWOROH�/D�5RQD�/LPLWHG
 NBC Development -dividend received       1,550  2,300
� 1%&�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDUH�RI�SURîW� �� �� � � �� ���� � �����
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\
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���� &DVK��XVHG�LQ��JHQHUDWHG�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV

� 3URîW�EHIRUH�WD[���FRQWLQXHG�DQG�GLVFRQWLQXHG�
 operations       151,341  100,118  231,096  207,115
 $GMXVWPHQWV�IRU�
 Depreciation and amortisation     10,792  11,702  15,308  2,713
 Government grants       (356 ) (356 ) -  -
 Loss on disposal of property, plant  and 
 equipment       125  704  -  -
 Impairment loss on assets held for sale   2,863  -  -  -
� 'HUHFRJQLWLRQ�ORVVHV�RQ�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
 at amortised cost       91,244  (14,127 ) (64,573 ) -
� 6KDUH�RI�SURîWV�RI�HTXLW\�DFFRXQWHG�LQYHVWHHV� �� ���������� ���������� �� � �
 Dividends received       (32,254 ) (29,503 ) (72,382 ) (134,437 )
 Finance income       (20,173 ) (13,574 ) (153,534 ) (81,117 )
 Finance costs       98,257  75,167  99,840  69,542
 Fair value adjustment of investment properties   (116,985 ) (39,996 ) -  -
 Interest on lease liabilities     -  -  10,545  -
 Net (gain)/loss on disposal of investment 
 properties       (15,595 ) 14,000  (17,500 ) -
 Movements in provisions     (3,591 ) (2,013 ) 53,461  26,202
 Movement in allowances for losses on investments (40,053 ) 21,017  -  (90,258 )
 Unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign loans   (56,416 ) -  (56,416 ) -
 Discount on bonds       (3,978 ) (4,425 ) (3,978 ) (4,425 )
 &KDQJHV�LQ�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�
 Inventories       230  686  -  -
 Trade and other receivables     (6,101 ) (10,708 ) (8,907 ) (10,304 )
 Rental straight-line adjustment     51,735  4,589  -  -
 Short-term investments     -  8,214  -  -
� 8QUHDOLVHG��ORVV����SURîW�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�
 of foreign loans       -  1,213  -  1,213
 Trade and other payables     (55,992 ) 35,423  4,685  (78,990 )
        ������� � ��������� ������� � ���������

���� )DLU�YDOXH�LQIRUPDWLRQ

� )DLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\

� 7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�DQDO\VHV�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�FDUULHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��7KH�GLǺHUHQW�OHYHOV�DUH�GHîQHG�DV�IROORZV�

� /HYHO����4XRWHG�XQDGMXVWHG�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�IRU�LGHQWLFDO�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�WKDW�WKH�JURXS�FDQ�DFFHVV�
at measurement date.

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either 
directly or indirectly.

 Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 /HYHOV�RI�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV

� /HYHO��

� 5HFXUULQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV

 Assets

���� )DLU�YDOXH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG�

      Note(s)

 (TXLW\�LQYHVWPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
� WKURXJK�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH 13
 Listed shares       602,135  612,282  602,135  612,282

 )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�PDQGDWRULO\�DW�IDLU�
� YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURîW�RU�ORVV�   13
 Other assets       4,706  3,154  -  -
 7RWDO� � � � � �� �������� � ��������� �������� � ��������

 /HYHO��

� 5HFXUULQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV

 Assets

 (TXLW\�LQYHVWPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
� RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH   13
 Equity-linked debentures     -  6,250  -  -

 )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�PDQGDWRULO\�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
� WKURXJK�SURîW�RU�ORVV
 Preference shares       172,097  63,894  172,097  63,894
 7RWDO� � � � � �� �������� � �������� �������� � ������

 1RQ�UHFXUULQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV

� $VVHWV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�DQG�GLVSRVDO�JURXSV�
� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,)56��
 Investment property      187,284  11,750  -  -
 7RWDO� � � � � �� �������� � �������� �� � �

 Level 1

 These instuments comprise of securities listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange  and are valued based on 
active share prices as at year end.

 Level 2 

� 7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�OHYHO���îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG�RU�SULRU�\HDU�

 Level 3

� 7KH�JURXS�YDOXHV�WKLV�LQYHVWPHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ïRZ��7KLV�WHFKQLTXH�FRQVLGHUV�WKH�SUHVHQW�
YDOXH� RI� WKH� QHW� FDVK� ïRZV� H[SHFWHG� WR� EH� JHQHUDWHG� IURP� WKH� IDFLOLW\�� WDNLQJ� LQWR� DFFRXQW� WKH� EXGJHWHG�
(%,7'$�JURZWK�UDWH�DQG�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�JURZWK�UDWH��7KH�H[SHFWHG�QHW�FDVKïRZV�DUH�GLVFRXQWHG�XVLQJ�
D� ULVN�GLVFRXQWHG�ULVN� UDWH�� 6LJQLîFDQW� XQREVHUYDEOH� LQSXWV� LQ� WKLV� YDOXDWLRQ� PHWKRG� LQFOXGH� 3DVGHF� DQG�
Thakadu. The value of cumulative preference  shares in Thakadu and Kwena hotels is P9.436million on the 
EDVLV�RI�PDUNHW�YDOXH�7KH�VLJQLîFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV��LQFOXGH��

� QRPLQDO�JURZWK�IDFWRU�RI����EDVHG�RQ�H[SHFWHG��ORQJ�WHUP�LQGXVWU\�JURZWK�UDWHV��H[LW�(%,7'$�PXOWLSOH�RI������
ULVN�IUHH�UDWH�RI�������DQG�VWULNH�SULFH�RI�3�������
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���� )DLU�YDOXH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG�

 The valuation of Pasdec is based on the valuation of subscription shares linked to the enterprise value of 
WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKHVH�DPRXQWHG�WR�3���PLOOLRQ��DV�DW����-XQH������6LJQLîFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�LQFOXGH�D�
currency exchange rate of 2.55 over 4 years and security asset cover ranging from of 12.2-13.7 over 4 years.

 The valuations for Thakadu and Kwena were performed by independent valuers not related to the Group with 
DSSURSULDWH�TXDOLîFDWLRQV�DQG�UHOHYDQW�H[SHULHQFH��7KH\�DSSOLHG�D�'&)�DSSURDFK�ZHUH�IXWXUH�FDVK�ïRZV�DUH�
discounted to present generating a net present value which is used together with the discounted terminal 
value.

� %XLOGLQJV�ZKLFK�DUH�FXUUHQWO\�FODVVLîHG�DV�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�KDYH�EHHQ�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
less costs to sell because the assets fair value less costs to sell is lower than its carrying amount.

 /HYHO��

� 5HFXUULQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV

 Assets     Note(s)

 Assets     7
 Investment property      1,128,772  1,883,410  -  -
 Land and buildings       209,550  274,061  -  -
 7RWDO�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\� � � �� ���������� � ����������� �� � �

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�PHDVXUHG�DW�OHYHO��

� *URXS�������

� $VVHWV� � � 1RWHV�V�� � 2SHQLQJ�� *DLQV�/RVV� � 3XUFKDVHV�� 6DOHV� � &ORVLQJ
� � � � � � EDODQFH�� LQ�3�/� � �� � � EDODQFH
 
 ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\
 Investment property    1,883,410  126,423  22,736  (903,797 ) 1,128,772

 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW 8
 Land and Buildings     274,061  (64,511 ) -  -  209,550
 7RWDO     ��������� ���������� ��� �� � �������

 *URXS�������

� $VVHWV� � � 1RWHV�V�� � 2SHQLQJ�� *DLQV�/RVV� � 3XUFKDVHV�� 6DOHV� � &ORVLQJ
� � � � � � EDODQFH�� LQ�3�/� � �� � � EDODQFH

 ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�  7
 Investment property    2,024,301  39,816  93,862  (274,569 ) 1,883,410

 3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW 8
 Land and buildings     274,681  (620 ) -  -  274,061
 7RWDO     ����������� ������� � �������� ����������� ���������

 * Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income are included in Gains and losses on property 
revaluation.

 
 The valuation of investment properties is primarily driven by market growth and occupancy rates. Given that 

the group has long term lease contracts with relatively stable customers, a reasonable change in market 
assumption is not expected to have a signiicant impact on the value of investment properties and land and 
buildings.

���� ,QWHUHVWV�LQ�RWKHU�HQWLWLHV

������ (QWLWLHV�ZLWK�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVWV�DQG�PDWHULDO�DVVRFLDWH�FRPSDQLHV

� 1DPH�RI�VXEVLGLDU\� � � �3KDNDODQH� �� �)DLUJURXQG��+ROGLQJV� �/HWOROH�OD�5RQD
� � � � �3URSHUW\�'HYHORSPHQW� ��3W\��/WG

 Principal Place of Business  Phakalane    Plot 50381,     1st Floor,
� � �� �� �� �)DLUJURXQG�2ǸFH�3DUN� ���0DWDQWH
             Mews, 
             Plot 54373, CBD

 Nature of Business    Property Developers  Conference Facilities,   Variable loan
� � �� �� �� �5HQWLQJ�RǸFH�6SDFH��� �VWRFN�FRPSDQ\
         Operating a Restaurant,   engaged in
         a bar and take away  property     

            investment and   
            deriving revenue in  
            property rentals   
            and trade in     
            property.

 Proportion of ownership 
� KHOG�E\�1&,� �� ���������������� ����������������� ���������������

 Proportion of voting rights 
� KHOG�E\�1&,� �� ���������������� ���������������� ���������������

� 3URîW����ORVV��DOORFDWHG�WR�1&,�
 of SUB in P’000s    47 (2019: 47)    (4 524) (2019: (1821)  -   (2019: 18 047)

 Accummulated NCI of SUB 
 in P’000s    10 061 (2019: 10 061)  90 225 (2019: 90 225)  -  (2019: 265 556)

 Dividend paid to NCI in 
 P’000s    - (2019: -)    - (2019: 1266)    -  (2019: 19 487)

 1DPH�RI�$VVRFLDWHG�&RPSDQ\� �3HHUPRQW�*OREDO�5HVRUW� �.DPRVR�$IULFD� �0DVKDWX�1DWXUH�� �
� � � � � �� ��3W\��/WG� �� �5HVHUYH

 Nature of Business    Operation of Casinos,   Manufacturing  Game safaris
     Hotels, conference   supply and    and accomodation
     centres in Botswana  distribution of fast   in northern
         moving consumer goods   Botswana
         in Southern Africa

 Pricipal Place of Business  Gaborone    Gaborone    Gaborone

 Proportion of ownership  
� LQWHUHVW�KHOG�E\�HQWLW\� ����������������� ���������������� ����������������

 Investment measure - fair 
 value or equity method  Equity method  Equity method   Equity method

 Dividends received from 
 associate in P’000    8 000 (2019: 8 000)  0 (2019: 0)    - (2019:1 316)



144 145

50years of Building Botswana50years of Building Botswana

(Registration number UIN BW00000608814) 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

(Registration number UIN BW00000608814) 
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements cont.Notes to the Financial Statements cont.

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
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����� 6XPPDULVHG�îQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IRU�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVWV�DQG�PDWHULDO�DVVRFLDWH�FRPSDQLHV

 Subsidiary companies
 Statements of Comprehensive Income     �� )DLUJURXQG� � 3KDNDODQH�
� � � � � � �� � � �� +ROGLQJV� � 3URSHUW\��� �

� � � � � �� � � �� � �'HYHORSPHQW

 Revenue           31,104  -
 Cost of sales           (17,516 ) -
� *URVV�SURîW� �� �� �� � � �� ������� � �
 Operating income           684  -
 Finance income           207  -
 Fair value adjustment         -  280
 Operating expenses          (18,693 ) -
� 3URîW�EHIRUH�WD[� �� �� �� � � �� ��������� ���
 Income tax credit/(expense)         (87 ) 62
� 3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV� �� � � �� ��������� ���
 Loss on revaluation of land and buildings       (6,663 ) -
 Deferred taxation on revaluation loss       1,731  -
 7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU� �� � � �� ��������� ���

 6WDWHPHQWV�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ

 Non-current assets           210,832  26,357
 Current assets           7,014  -
 7RWDO�DVVHWV� � � � � �� � � �� �������� � ������

 Capital and reserves          197,864  25,336
 Non-current liabilities         14,522  1,021
 Current liabilities           5,460  -
 7RWDO�HTXLW\�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV� � � �� � � �� �������� � ������

 $VVRFLDWHG�FRPSDQLHV

� 6WDWHPHQWV�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH� �� /HWOROH�/D� � 3HHUPRQW�� 0DVKDWX� � .DPRVR
� � � � � � �� 5RQD� � *OREDO�� 1DWXUH� � $IULFD
� � � � � � �� � � 5HVRUWV�� 5HVHUYH� � �3W\��/WG

� <HDU�HQG� �� �� �� -XQH� � 'HFHPEHU�� -XQH� � �

 Revenue       81,155  49,330  546  1,374,172
� 3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV� �� ������� � ���������� ��������� ������
 Total comprehensive income for the year   62,351  (15,468 ) (1,226 ) 53,401

 6WDWHPHQWV�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ

 Non-current assets       978,797  235,204  287,608  543,861
 Current assets       133,018  36,324  24,148  485,641
 7RWDO�DVVHWV� � � � � �� ���������� � ��������� �������� � ���������

 Capital and reserves      771,141  138,575  301,486  717,900
 Non-current liabilities     297,634  101,722  -  25,695
 Current liabilities       43,040  31,231  10,270  285,997
 7RWDO�HTXLW\�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV� � � �� ���������� � ��������� �������� � ���������

���� ,QWHUHVWV�LQ�RWKHU�HQWLWLHV��FRQWLQXHG�

 ,QWHUHVW�LQ�LPPDWHULDO�DVVRFLDWHV

 Carrying amount of interest in associates       722,322  240,758
� 6KDUH�RI�SURîW�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV� �� � � �� ������� � ������
 OCI           28,146  (20 )
 7RWDO�HTXLW\�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV� � � �� � � �� ������ � �����

 Associated company results are disclosed for the year or period ended 30 June 2020. Total comprehensive 
income has been derived from the latest available results.

���� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�FODVVLîHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�

 $VVHWV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�UHODWHV�WR�,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�KHOG�E\�D�VXEVLGLDU\�
Western Industrial Estate (Pty) Ltd and  Residential Holdings (Pty) Ltd amounting to P174 400 000 and P12 
��������UHVSHFWLYHO\�DQG��WKHVH�ZHUH�PRVWO\�GLVSRVHG�RǺ�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�\HDU�HQG��UHIHU�QRWH������,Q�DGGLWLRQ��
in the prior year, a susidiary company resolved to dispose all the investment properties in the Leisure Sector to 
DQ�LGHQWLîHG�SDUW\�ZKR�RFFXSLHG�WKHVH�SURSHUWLHV��%\����-XQH�������PRVW�RI�WKH�SURSHUWLHV�ZHUH�GLVSRVHG�DQG�
ownerships transferred save for one of the properties. Since all the other properties in the Leisure sector of the 
VXEVLGLDU\�KDG�EHHQ�GLVSRVHG�RI��WKH�SURSHUW\�UHWDLQHG�E\�WKH�VXEVLGLDU\�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG�ZDV�FODVVLîHG�DV�D�
discontinued operation and information required under IFRS 5 was presented.

 Below are the details:

� 3URîW�DQG�ORVV

 Revenue        - 2,887  -  -
 Expenses        - (14,000 ) -  -
 Net loss before tax        - (11,113 ) -  -
 Net loss after tax        - (11,113 ) -  -
 Losses on measurement to fair value less cost to 
 sell        - (13,065 ) -  -
        ��� ���������� �� � �

 $VVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV

 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH
 Investment property      187,284  2,750  -  -

 $VVHWV�RI�GLVSRVDO�JURXSV
 Investment property      -  9,000  -  -
        �������� � �������� �� � �

                 *URXS
� )LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� � � �� � � �� ����� � ����

 Opening balance           11,750  42,250
 Disposals           (1,100 ) (39,500 )
 Transfers in/additions         184,422  22,065
 Decrease/Increase in fair value         1,212  (13,065 )
 Disposal of subsidiary         (9,000 ) -
            �������� � ������
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���� 3ULRU�SHULRG�HUURUV

 A subsidiary company is a key player in the Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions (MICE) sector 
of the Hospitality and Tourism industry. Its core business is Conference Incentives Meetings and Exhibitions 
supported by Food and beverage facilities such as the Restaurant and Bars. The company existence is 
underpinned by customers utilising its facilities being the Conference rooms, Exhibition Hall, and the open 
spaces to host all meetings conferences, exhibitions, events and in the processes consuming food and 
beverage services.

 The company’s highest generator of revenue for the business is clearly meetings & conferences, exhibitions, 
and banquets in that a single business transaction in respect of the MICE will impact revenue generation in 
several other revenue streams of the business.

 Based on the analysis of both historical and projected future performance, the revenues generated from the 
DQFLOODU\� VHUYLFHV� DUH� VLJQLîFDQW�� GRPLQDWHG� E\� WKH� IRRG� 	� EHYHUDJHV�� +RZHYHU�� WKH� SURYLVLRQ� RI� IRRG� DQG�
beverages, while a support service are an integral part to the success of the core business. 

� 7KH� FRPSDQ\� KDV� SUHYLRXVO\� FODVVLîHG� LWV� SURSHUWLHV� DV� ,QYHVWPHQW� SURSHUWLHV� XQGHU� ,$6� ��� �� Investment 

properties��+RZHYHU�� LWV�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�GRHV�QRW�VXSSRUW�WKLV�FODVVLîFDWLRQ��$V�D�UHVXOW��WKLV�QHFHVVLWDWHG�D�
UHVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�DǺHFWHG�FDSWLRQV�WR�DOLJQ�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�,$6������Investment properties and IFRS 

16 - Property plant and equipment.

 In addition, the company owns a piece of land which was previously omitted in the general ledger. As a result, 
of this, the value of properties was understated in the previous years.

� 7KH�DǺHFWHG�FDSWLRQV�ZHUH�UHLQVWDWHG�WR�FRUUHFW�WKLV�HUURU�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�,$6�����Accounting 

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

� 7KH�HǺHFW�RI� WKH�UHVWDWHPHQW�RQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� LV�GHVFULEHG�EHORZ��7KH�HǺHFW� LQ� WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�
îQDQFLDO�\HDU�KDV�EHHQ�FRUUHFWHG�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�VWDWHPHQW�RI�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH��
VWDWHPHQW�RI� îQDQFLDO� SRVLWLRQ�DQG� WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI� FKDQJHV� LQ�HTXLW\�� 7KH� UHVWDWHPHQW�GLG�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�
LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ïRZV�

 6WDWHPHQW�RI�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH
� 7KH�LQYHVWPHQW�IDLU�YDOXH�DGMXVWPHQW�DQG�WKH�UHODWHG�GHIHUUHG�WD[�LPSDFW�ZDV�UHFODVVLîHG�IURP�SURîW�RU�ORVV�WR�

other comprehensive income. 

� 7KHUH�LV�QR�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVKïRZV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH������

���� 3ULRU�SHULRG�HUURUV��FRQWLQXHG�

 The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

 6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ������-XO\�����     $V��$GMXVWPHQWV� � 5HVWDWHG
� � � � � � �� � � 3UHYLRXVO\�� � � %DODQFH
� � � � � � �� � � 5HSRUWHG�

 Property, plant and equipment       210,692  209,550  420,242
 Investment properties       2,063,660  (180,250 ) 1,883,410
 Revaluation reserve         (282,981 ) (154,400 ) (437,381 )
 Retained earnings         (915,805 ) 131,546  (784,259 )
 Deferred taxation liability       (143,693 ) (6,446 ) (150,139 )

� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ������-XO\�����
 Property, plant and equipment       179,842  213,051  392,893
 Investment properties       2,208,051  (183,750 ) 2,024,341
 Revaluation reserve         (293,285 ) (157,245 ) 450,530
 Retained earnings         (905,721 ) 134,291  771,430
 Deferred taxation liability       (141,364 ) (6,446 ) (147,810 )

 6WDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH

 Fair value gain on Investment properties     38,217  4,666  42,883
 Income tax expense        (19,663 ) (1,822 ) (21,484 )
          �������� ������ � ������

 Impairment of Other Investments (Note 13)
 In the prior year, the impairment of other investments was not allocated accurately when ageing the long and 

VKRUW� WHUP�SRUWLRQV�RI� WKH�DVVHW��7KLV�HUURU�KDV�EHHQ�FRUUHFWHG� LQ� WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU� WR�DFFXUDWHO\� UHïHFW� WKH�
LPSDLUPHQW�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�VKRUW�WHUP�SRUWLRQ�RI�RWKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV��7KH�WRWDO�LPSDFW�ZDV�D�UHFODVVLîFDWLRQ�RI�
P92,822,000 which resulted in the carrying amount of Non-current investments increasing from P1,562,937,000 
to P1,655,759,000 while Current investments decreased from P156,675,000 to P63,853,000.
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���� (YHQWV�DIWHU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DQG�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�

 The Capital reserve fund for the Company stood at P135 million (2019: P135 million) as at 30 June 2020. 
Additional allocation of P24.8 million was approved subsequent to year end in line with policy.

 Subsequent to year end the  Company concluded a P162million Bond issuance on 25 September 2020.The 
ERQG�QRWH�LV�LVVXHG�DW�D�î[HG�UDWH�RI����RQ�DQ�XQVHFXUHG�EDVLV�IRU�D�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�OLIH�RI����\HDUV��

 BDC is currently in the process of acquiring shares held by the other shareholder in its subsidiary Milk Afric 
(Pty) Ltd. The transaction is expected to be concluded by 31 December 2020.

 In August 2020 the short term facility of P230million was settled by the Company. Further to this an amount 
of P100million was paid to reduce the revolving facility held with Stanchart Limited. 

 In December 2020, the Government of Botswana launched an Industry Support Fund through which 
P300million has been allocated to the Company to be used to provide relief to investee companies that meet 
set requirements.

 Subsequent to year end, Western Industrial Estates (Pty) Ltd disposed of part of its portfolio of properties (Lot 
6371-72, Lot 69365, Lot 69368, Lot 69369, Lot 22047, Lot 54060) to a listed company that is part of the group 
IRU�3������PLOOLRQ��7KH�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WKH�SXUFKDVH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�IRU�îYH�SURSHUWLHV�ZDV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�-XO\������
while one property is to be settled at a later date once ownership per the title deeds has been changed to the 
purchaser.

 *RLQJ�&RQFHUQ
 During the year ended 30 June 2020, a coronavirus disease (COVID-19) was discovered in the Wuhan province 

of China and rapidly spread across the globe. To that end, it was declared to be a pandemic in March 2020 by 
WKH�:RUOG�+HDOWK�2UJDQLVDWLRQ��7KH�îUVW�FDVHV�RI�WKH�GLVHDVH�ZHUH�QRWHG�LQ�%RWVZDQD�ODWH�0DUFK������FDXVLQJ�
the Government to take measures with the views to combat the spread of the virus. These measures included 
complete shutdown of the country for an extended period which in turn had a negative impact on the economy.  

 As at the date of this report, the directors made an assessment of the Group and Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern taking into account all available information about the future including an analysis of the 
possible impacts in relation to COVID-19, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the date of 
DSSURYDO�RI�WKHVH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�FRQîUP�WKDW�WKH\�KDYH�QRW�LGHQWLîHG�HYHQWV�RU�FRQGLWLRQV�WKDW�PD\�
FDVW�VLJQLîFDQW�GRXEW�RQ�WKH�*URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\ªV�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�

� 7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�KDV�DVVHVVHG�WKDW�WKHUH�DUH�VXǸFLHQW�FDVK�UHVRXUFHV�DYDLODEOH�WR�VHWWOH�WKH�REOLJDWLRQV�
XS�WR����PRQWKV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�WKHVH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��7KH�%RDUG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�PRQLWRU�
WKH� LPSDFW� RI� &29,'���� RQ� WKH� JURXS� DQG� FRPSDQ\� DQG� UHïHFW� WKH� FRQVHTXHQFHV� DV� DSSURSULDWH� LQ� WKH�
accounting and reporting. The Group and Company also keeps track of the Botswana government initiatives to 
protect the economy and will participate as appropriate. Measures already in place, such as the establishment 
of the Industry Support Fund by Government and the Company’s allocation as stated above. 

� 7KH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�WKXV�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�D�JRLQJ�
FRQFHUQ��7KH�EDVLV�SUHVXPHV�WKDW�IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�WR�îQDQFH�IXWXUH�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�WKDW�WKH�UHDOLVDWLRQ�RI�
assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course 
of business.

 Except as disclosed above, there has been no material events after the reporting date, which would require 
GLVFORVXUH�RU�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH������

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW

 &DWHJRULHV�RI�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV

� &DWHJRULHV�RI�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV

� *URXS�������

   � 1RWH�V�� � )DLU�YDOXH�� )DLU�YDOXH� � $PRUWLVHG�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � WKURXJK�� WKURXJK� � FRVW
� � � � � � RWKHU�� SURîW
� � � � � � FRPSUHKHQ��� RU�ORVV�
� � � � � �VLYH�LQFRPH��� 0DQGDWRU\
� � � � � � HTXLW\
� � � � � � LQVWUXPHQWV��

 Trade and other receivables 16  -  -  60,481  60,481  60,481
 Short term investments 13  -  -  148,577  148,577  148,577
 Cash and cash equivalents 18  -  -  486,960  486,960  485,960
 Other investments   13  602,135  168,906  1,106,407  1,877,448  1,905,593
 Other assets   17  -  -  4,706  4,706  4,706
      ��������� �������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 
� *URXS�������

� � � � 1RWH�V�� � )DLU�YDOXH�� )DLU�YDOXH� � $PRUWLVHG�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � WKURXJK�� WKURXJK� � FRVW
� � � � � � SURîW�� SURîW
� � � � � � RU�ORVV��� RU�ORVV�
� � � � � � 0DQGDWRU\�� 'HVLJQDWHG
      
 Trade and other receivables 16  -  -  65,805  65,805  65,805
 Other investments - short 
 term portion   13  -  -  63,853  63,853  63,853
 Cash and cash equivalents 18  -  -  380,571  380,571  380,571
 Other investments   13  63,894  618,532  973,191  1,655,617  1,655,759
 Other assets   17  -  -  3,154  3,154  3,154
      �������� �������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������
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���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG�

� &RPSDQ\�������

� � � � 1RWH�V�� � )DLU�YDOXH�� )DLU�YDOXH� � $PRUWLVHG�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � WKURXJK�� WKURXJK� � FRVW
� � � � � � RWKHU�� SURîW
� � � � � � FRPSUHKHQ��� RU�ORVV�
� � � � � �VLYH�LQFRPH��� 0DQGDWRU\
� � � � � � HTXLW\
� � � � � � LQVWUXPHQWV�

 Trade and other receivables 16  -  -  102,118  102,118  102,118
 Other investments - 
 short term portion   13  -  -  167,355  167,355  167,355
 Cash and cash equivalents 18  -  -  447,028  447,028  447,028
 Other investments   13  602,135  168,906  1,278,485  2,049,526  2,049,526
      ��������� �������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

� &RPSDQ\�������

� � � � 1RWH�V�� � )DLU�YDOXH�� )DLU�YDOXH� � $PRUWLVHG�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � WKURXJK�� WKURXJK� � FRVW
� � � � � � SURîW�� SURîW
� � � � � � RU�ORVV��� RU�ORVV�
� � � � � � 0DQGDWRU\�� 'HVLJQDWHG

 Trade and other receivables 16  -  -  104,418  104,418  104,418
 Short term investments 13  -  -  85,700  85,700  85,700
 Cash and cash equivalents 18  -  -  155,118  155,118  155,118
 Other investments   13  63,894  612,282  930,621  1,606,797  1,606,797
      �������� �������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 &DWHJRULHV�RI�îQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV

� *URXS�������

        1RWH�V�� � $PRUWLVHG�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � �� � � FRVW

 Trade and other payables     29  105,642  105,642  105,642
 Borrowings       24  1,541,693  1,541,693  1,541,693
 Bonds outstanding       26  346,959  346,959  346,959
 Bank overdraft       18  164,737  164,737  164,727
          ����������� ���������� � ���������  

 *URXS�������

� � � � � � 1RWH�V��� $PRUWLVHG� � /HDVHV�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � �� FRVW

 Trade and other payables   29  129,750  -  129,750  129,750
 Borrowings     24  1,092,733  -  1,092,733  1,092,733
 Lease liabilities     10  -  2,522  2,522  2,522
 Dividend payable       10,299  -  10,299  10,299
 Bonds outstanding     26  345,504  -  345,504  345,504
 Bank overdraft     18  99,695  -  99,695  99,695
      �� ���������� � ������� ���������� � ���������

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG�

 &RPSDQ\�������

� � � � � � 1RWH�V��� $PRUWLVHG� � /HDVHV�� 7RWDO� � )DLU�YDOXH
� � � � � � �� FRVW

 Trade and other payables   29  90,962  -  90,962  90,962
 Borrowings     24  1,461,230  -  1,461,230  1,461,230
 Finance lease liabilities   10  -  171,842  171,842  171,842
 Bonds outstanding     26  346,959  -  346,959  346,959
 Bank overdraft     18  164,737  -  164,737  164,737
        ���������� � ��������� ���������� � ���������

 &RPSDQ\�������

 Trade and other payables   29  85,047  -  85,047  85,047
 Borrowings     24  707,064  -  707,064  707,064
 Lease liabilities     10  -  178,496  178,496  178,496
 Bonds outstanding     26  345,504  -  345,504  345,504
 Bank overdraft     18  99,607  -  99,607  99,607
        ���������� � ��������� ���������� � ���������

 &DSLWDO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW

 The group’s objective when managing capital (which includes share capital, borrowings, working capital 
DQG�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�� LV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�ïH[LEOH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH�WKDW�UHGXFHV�WKH�FRVW�RI�FDSLWDO�WR�
an acceptable level of risk and to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern while taking 
advantage of strategic opportunities in order to maximise stakeholder returns sustainably.

 The group manages capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain the capital structure, the group may 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders, repurchase shares 
FXUUHQWO\� LVVXHG�� LVVXH� QHZ� VKDUHV�� LVVXH� QHZ�GHEW�� LVVXH� QHZ�GHEW� WR� UHSODFH� H[LVWLQJ� GHEW�ZLWK� GLǺHUHQW�
characteristics and/or sell assets to reduce debt.

 The group monitors capital utilising a number of measures, including the gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is 
calculated as net borrowings (total borrowings less cash) divided by shareholders’ equity. The group’s targeted 
JHDULQJ�UDWLR�LV������

 The capital structure and gearing ratio of the group at the reporting date was as follows:

 Bonds outstanding     26  346,959  345,504  346,959  345,504
 Borrowings     24  1,541,693  1,092,733  1,461,230  707,064
 Lease liabilities     10  -  2,522  171,842  178,496
 Trade and other payables   29  125,667  171,360  90,962  86,275
 7RWDO�ERUURZLQJV� � � � � �� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 Cash and cash equivalents   18  (321,152 ) (385,191 ) (282,291 ) (55,511 )
 1HW�ERUURZLQJV� � � � � �� ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 Equity       2,797,863  2,931,240  2,252,240  2,088,667

� *HDULQJ�UDWLR� �� �� �� ���� � ����� ���� � ���
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� )LQDQFLDO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW

 Overview

 7KH�JURXS�LV�H[SRVHG�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�ULVNV�IURP�LWV�XVH�RI�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
 - Credit risk;
 - Liquidity risk; and
 - Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

 The board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management 
framework. The board has established the board risk and investments committee (BRIC), which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the group’s risk management policies. The committee reports quarterly to the 
board on its activities.

 The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 
DQG�V\VWHPV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�UHJXODUO\�WR�UHïHFW�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�WKH�JURXSªV�DFWLYLWLHV�

 The group risk and investments committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk 
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 
to the risks faced by the group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal 
audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 
which are reported to the audit committee and the board risk  and investment committee.

 &UHGLW�ULVN

� &UHGLW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�RI�îQDQFLDO�ORVV�WR�WKH�JURXS�LI�D�FXVWRPHU�RU�FRXQWHUSDUW\�WR�D�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�IDLOV�
to meet its contractual obligations.

 The group is exposed to credit risk on loans receivable (at amortised cost), debt instruments at fair value 
through oci, trade and other receivables,  cash and cash equivalents, and loan commitments.

 Credit risk for exposures other than those arising on cash and cash equivalents, are managed by making use 
of credit approvals, limits and monitoring. The group only deals with reputable counterparties with consistent 
SD\PHQW�KLVWRULHV��6XǸFLHQW�FROODWHUDO�RU�JXDUDQWHHV�DUH�DOVR�REWDLQHG�ZKHQ�QHFHVVDU\��(DFK�FRXQWHUSDUW\�LV�
DQDO\VHG�LQGLYLGXDOO\�IRU�FUHGLWZRUWKLQHVV�EHIRUH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�DUH�RǺHUHG��7KH�DQDO\VLV�LQYROYHV�PDNLQJ�
use of information submitted by the counterparties. Counterparty credit limits are in place and are reviewed 
and approved by the Risk function. The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness of counterparties is 
continuously monitored. 

 Credit risk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is managed by the group through dealing with 
ZHOO�HVWDEOLVKHG�îQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�ZLWK�KLJK�FUHGLW�UDWLQJV��

 Credit loss allowances for expected credit losses are recognised for all debt instruments, but excluding those 
PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURîW�RU�ORVV��&UHGLW�ORVV�DOORZDQFHV�DUH�DOVR�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�ORDQ�FRPPLWPHQWV�
and loans commitments contracts. 

 In order to calculate credit loss allowances, management determine whether the loss allowances should be 
calculated on a 12 month or on a lifetime expected credit loss basis. This determination depends on whether 
WKHUH�KDV�EHHQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�FUHGLW�ULVN�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��,I�WKHUH�KDV�EHHQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�
increase in credit risk, then the loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime expected credit losses. If not, then 
the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses. This determination is made at the end of each 
îQDQFLDO�SHULRG��7KXV�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�ORVV�DOORZDQFH�IRU�D�VSHFLîF�îQDQFLDO�DVVHW�FRXOG�FKDQJH�\HDU�RQ�\HDU�

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� 0DQDJHPHQW�DSSO\�WKH�SULQFLSOH�WKDW�LI�D�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWªV�FUHGLW�ULVN�LV�ORZ�DW�\HDU�HQG��WKHQ��E\�LPSOLFDWLRQ��
WKH�FUHGLW� ULVN�KDV�QRW� LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH� LQLWLDO� UHFRJQLWLRQ�� ,Q�DOO�VXFK�FDVHV�� WKH� ORVV�DOORZDQFH�
is based on 12 month expected credit losses. Credit risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default 
�ZKHUH�GHIDXOW� LV�GHîQHG�DV�RFFXUULQJ�ZKHQ�DPRXQWV�DUH����GD\V�SDVW�GXH���:KHQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ� WKH� ULVN�RI�
default, management consider information such as payment history to date, industry in which the customer 
is employed, period for which the customer has been employed, external credit references etc. In any event, 
LI�DPRXQWV�DUH����GD\V�SDVW�GXH��WKHQ�WKH�FUHGLW�ULVN�LV�DVVXPHG�WR�KDYH�LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�
recognition. Credit risk is not assessed to be low simply because of the value of collateral associated with a 
îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW��,I�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�ZRXOG�QRW�KDYH�D�ORZ�FUHGLW�ULVN�LQ�WKH�DEVHQFH�RI�FROODWHUDO��WKHQ�WKH�
credit risk is not considered low when taking the collateral into account. Trade receivable and contract assets 
ZKLFK�GR�QRW�FRQWDLQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�îQDQFLQJ�FRPSRQHQW�DUH�WKH�H[FHSWLRQV�DQG�DUH�GLVFXVVHG�EHORZ�

� :KHUH� QHFHVVDU\�� WKH� DVVHVVPHQW� IRU� D� VLJQLîFDQW� LQFUHDVH� LQ� FUHGLW� ULVN� LV� PDGH� RQ� D� FROOHFWLYH� EDVLV��
Management typically adopt this approach when information relevant to the determination of credit risk is 
not available on an individual instrument level. Often, the only information available on individual instruments 
which could indicate an increase in credit risk, is “past due” information. It is typical that more forward-looking 
information is generally more readily available on a collective basis. Therefore, making the determination on a 
collective basis, helps to ensure that credit loss allowances are determined on the basis of lifetime expected 
credit losses before they reach the point of being past due. Forward looking, macro-economic information is 
DSSOLHG�RQ�D�FROOHFWLYH�EDVLV�ZKHQ�LW�LV�UHDGLO\�DYDLODEOH�ZLWKRXW�XQGXH�FRVW�RU�HǺRUW��:KHQ�ORVV�DOORZDQFHV�
DUH� GHWHUPLQHG� RQ� D� FROOHFWLYH� EDVLV�� PDQDJHPHQW� GHWHUPLQHV� WKH� ORVV� DOORZDQFHV� E\� JURXSLQJ� îQDQFLDO�
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics.

� )RU� WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�DQG�FRQWUDFW�DVVHWV�ZKLFK�GR�QRW�FRQWDLQ�D�VLJQLîFDQW�îQDQFLQJ�FRPSRQHQW�� WKH� ORVV�
allowance is determined as the lifetime expected credit losses of the instruments. For all other trade receivables, 
contract assets and lease receivables, IFRS 9 permits the determination of the credit loss allowance by either 
GHWHUPLQLQJ�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�ZDV�D�VLJQLîFDQW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RU�E\�DOZD\V�PDNLQJ�
use of lifetime expected credit losses. Management have chosen as an accounting policy, to make use of 
lifetime expected credit losses. Management does therefore not make the annual assessment of whether the 
FUHGLW� ULVN�KDV� LQFUHDVHG�VLJQLîFDQWO\�VLQFH� LQLWLDO� UHFRJQLWLRQ�IRU�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV��FRQWUDFW�DVVHWV�RU� OHDVH�
receivables.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

� *URXS� � � � � ������ � � �� ����
    *URVV� � &UHGLW�ORVV�� $PRUWLVHG� � *URVV�� &UHGLW�/RVV� � $PRUWLVHG
� � � � FDUU\LQJ� � DOORZDQFH�� FRVW�IDLU� � FDUU\LQJ�� DOORZDQFH� � FRVW�IDLU
� � � � DPRXQW� � �� YDOXH� � DPRXQW�� � � YDOXH

 Loans receivable  13 1,146,303  (43,087 ) 1,103,216  1,030,455  (57,264 ) 973,191
 Trade and other
  receivables  16 84,696  (24,215 ) 60,481  86,377  (20,572 ) 65,805
 Short term 
 investments  13 241,399  (92,822 ) 148,577  156,675  (92,822 ) 63,853
 Cash and cash 
 equivalents  18 485,960  -  485,960  380,571  -  380,571
    ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ����������� ����������� ���������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� &RPSDQ\� � � ������ �� � � ����
    *URVV� � &UHGLW�ORVV�� $PRUWLVHG� � *URVV�� &UHGLW�/RVV� � $PRUWLVHG
� � � � FDUU\LQJ� � DOORZDQFH�� FRVW�IDLU� � FDUU\LQJ�� DOORZDQFH� � FRVW�IDLU
� � � � DPRXQW� � �� YDOXH� � DPRXQW�� � � YDOXH

 Loans receivable 13  1,310,539  (32,305 ) 1,278,234  1,164,256  (100,894 ) 1,063,362
 Trade and other 
 receivables 16  102,118  -  102,118  104,418  -  104,418
 Short term 
 investments 13  257,304  (89,630 ) 167,674  178,522  (92,822 ) 85,700
 Cash and cash 
 equivalents 18  447,028  -  447,028  155,118  -  155,118
    ���������� � ����������� ���������� � ����������� ����������� ����������

 Amounts are presented at amortised cost or fair value depending on the accounting treatment of the item 
presented. The above analysis excludes invesments in equity instruments which are not subject to credit risk.
The impact of the current economic conditions and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic was taken into account 
in the determination of expected credit loss as they resulted in an increase in credit risk for all loans receivable. 

 The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for other investments as 
at 30 June. No ECL was recognised in relation to amounts due to group companies as this relates to group 
tax relief which is fully recoverable on utilisation of tax losses and tax liabilities in each year. Refer note 14 for 
further information. No ECL was recognised in relation to cash and cash equivalents and other assets as funds 
are placed with local institutions that are credit rated and regulated with the Bank of Botswana and ECL on 
these balances are deemed immaterial. Refer note 16 for trade and other receivables impacts. Refer to note 43 
RQ�WKH�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKH�FKDUJH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�

 *URXS� � � � � �� :HLJKWHG� � *URVV�� ,PSDLUPHQW� � &UHGLW
� � � � � � ��DYHUDJH�ORVV� � FDUU\LQJ�� ORVV� � LPSDLUHG
� � � � � � �� UDWH��� � DPRXQW�� DOORZDQFH

� ����
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%�WR�$$$� �� �� ������� � ��������� ��������� 1R
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%��WR�&&&�� �� �� ������� � ��������� ������� 1R
� &UHGLW�JUDGH�&�RU�ORZHU� �� �� ������� � ��������� ����������� <HV
        ��� � ����������� ����������

� &RPSDQ\

 ����
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%�WR�$$$� �� �� ������� � ��������� ��������� 1R
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%��WR�&&&�� �� �� ������� � ��������� ������� 1R
� &UHGLW�JUDGH�&�RU�ORZHU� �� �� ������� � ��������� ����������� <HV
        ��� � ����������� ����������

 *URXS
 
� ����
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%�WR�$$$� �� �� ��� � ��������� ��������� 1R
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%��WR�&&&�� �� �� ��� � ��� �� � 1R
� &UHGLW�JUDGH�&�RU�ORZHU� �� �� ���� � ��������� ���������� <HV
� � � � � � �� �� � ��������� ���������� �

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� &RPSDQ\        :HLJKWHG� � *URVV�� ,PSDLUPHQW� � &UHGLW
� � � � � � ��DYHUDJH�ORVV� � FDUU\LQJ�� ORVV� � LPSDLUHG
� � � � � � �� UDWH��� � DPRXQW�� DOORZDQFH

 ����
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%�WR�$$$� �� �� ��� � ��������� ��������� 1R
� &UHGLW�UDWLQJ�%��WR�&&&�� �� �� ��� � ��� �� � 1R
� &UHGLW�JUDGH�&�RU�ORZHU� �� �� ���� � ��������� ����������� <HV
        �� � ����������� ����������� �

 /LTXLGLW\�ULVN

� 7KH�JURXS�LV�H[SRVHG�WR�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN��ZKLFK�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�JURXS�ZLOO�HQFRXQWHU�GLǸFXOWLHV�LQ�PHHWLQJ�LWV�
obligations as they become due. 

� 7KH�JURXS�PDQDJHV�LWV�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�E\�HǺHFWLYHO\�PDQDJLQJ�LWV�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO��FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�DQG�FDVK�
ïRZV��7KH�îQDQFLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�PHW�WKURXJK�D�PL[WXUH�RI�FDVK�JHQHUDWHG�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�ORQJ�DQG�
short term borrowings. Committed borrowing facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and 
deposits are held at banking institutions.

� 7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�VLJQLîFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�VLQFH�WKH�SULRU�
reporting period.

� 7KH�PDWXULW\�SURîOH�RI�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ïRZV�RI�QRQ�GHULYDWLYH�îQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��DQG�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�KHOG�WR�
PLWLJDWH�WKH�ULVN��DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH��7KH�FDVK�ïRZV�DUH�XQGLVFRXQWHG�FRQWUDFWXDO�DPRXQWV�

 *URXS�������� � � � � /HVV�WKDQ�� ��WR��� � 2YHU�� 7RWDO� � &DUU\LQJ
� � � � � � ��\HDU�� \HDUV� � ��\HDUV�� � � DPRXQW

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Borrowings    24 -  339,544  916,460  1,256,004  1,097,682
 Bonds outstanding    26 -  103,635  391,373  495,008  346,959

 &XUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Trade and other payables  29 105,642  -  -  105,642  105,642
 Borrowings    24 473,621  -  -  473,621  444,011
 Bank overdraft    18 164,808  -  -  164,808  164,808
      ��������� �������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 *URXS�������

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Borrowings    24 -  313,164  608,731  921,895  921,895
 Bonds outstanding    26 -  -  345,504  345,504  345,504
 Lease liabilities     -  -  2,522  2,522  2,522

 &XUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Trade and other payables  29 129,750  -  -  129,750  129,750
 Borrowings    24 170,838  -  -  170,838  170,838
 Dividend payable     10,299  -  -  10,299  10,299
 Bank overdraft    18 99,695  -  -  99,695  99,695
      ��������� �������� � ��������� ���������� � ���������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

 &RPSDQ\�������      /HVV�WKDQ�� ��WR��� � 2YHU�� 7RWDO� � &DUU\LQJ
� � � � � � ��\HDU�� \HDUV� � ��\HDUV�� � � DPRXQW

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Borrowings   24  -  193,750  783,861  977,611  977,611
 Bonds outstanding   26  -  103,635  391,373  495,008  346,959
 Finance lease liabilities 10  -  47,040  118,812  165,852  171,842

 &XUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Trade and other payables 29  90,962  -  -  90,962  90,962
 Borrowings   24  430,406  -  -  430,406  430,406
 Lease liabilities     5,990  -  -  5,990  5,990
 Bank overdraft   18  164,737  -  -  164,737  164,737
      ��������� �������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 &RPSDQ\�������

 1RQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Borrowings   24  -  252,136  306,250  558,386  558,386
 Bonds outsanding   26  -  -  345,504  345,504  345,504
 Lease liabilities     -  -  178,496  178,496  178,496

 &XUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV
 Trade and other payables 29  86,277  -  -  86,277  86,277
 Borrowings   24  148,678  -  -  148,678  148,678
 Bank overdraft   18  99,607  -  -  99,607  99,607
      ��������� �������� � ��������� ���������� � ���������

 )LQDQFLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV

� 8QVHFXUHG�EDQN�RYHUGUDIW�IDFLOLW\��
� UHYLHZHG�DQQXDOO\�DQG�SD\DEOH�RQ�FDOO:
 Used       164,808  99,695  164,737  99,607
 Unused       61,692  126,805  55,263  120,393
        �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN

 The group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of certain transactions and borrowings which are 
denominated in foreign currencies. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters 
utilising foreign forward exchange contracts where necessary. The group also keeps foreign currency 
denominated bank balances to manage foreign currency exchange risk on its borrowings. The foreign 
currencies in which the group deals primarily are US Dollars.

 The group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency 
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the group’s foreign operations is managed 
primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.

� 7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�VLJQLîFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�VLQFH�
the prior reporting period.

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� ([SRVXUH�LQ�3XOD

 The net carrying amounts, in Pula, of the various exposures, are denominated in US Dollar. The amounts have 
been presented in Pula by converting the foreign currency amounts at the closing rate at the reporting date:

 86�'ROODU�H[SRVXUH�

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�
 Loans receivable     13  478,137  385,178  478,137  385,178
 Equity investments at FV OCI     84,703  -  84,703  -

 &XUUHQW�DVVHWV�
 Cash and cash equivalents   18  410,636  2,717  410,636  2,717

 1RQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�
 Borrowings     24  (543,017 ) (58,386 ) (543,017 ) (58,386 )

 1HW�86�'ROODU�H[SRVXUH� � � �� �������� � ��������� �������� � �������

 ([SRVXUH�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�DPRXQWV

 The net carrying amounts, in foreign currency of the above exposure was as follows:

 86�'ROODU�H[SRVXUH�

� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�
 Loans receivable     13  41,444  35,864  41,444  35,864
 Equity investments at FVOCI     7,182  -  7,182  -

 &XUUHQW�DVVHWV�
 Cash and cash equivalents   18  34,822  253  34,822  253

 Non-current liabilities:
 Borrowings     24  (46,048 ) (5,434 ) (46,048 ) (5,43 )
 1HW�86�'ROODU�H[SRVXUH� � � �� ������� � �������� ������� � ������

 ([FKDQJH�UDWHV

� 3XOD�SHU�XQLW�RI�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�
 US Dollar       11.790  10.740  11.790  10.740

 )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV

 The following information presents the sensitivity of the group to an increase or decrease in the respective 
currencies it is exposed to. The sensitivity rate is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally 
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change 
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
amounts and adjusts their translation at the reporting date. No changes were made to the methods and 
assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous reporting period.
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� *URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\�� � � �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����

� ,QFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�UDWH� � � �� ,QFUHDVH� � 'HFUHDVH�� ,QFUHDVH� � 'HFUHDVH

� ,PSDFW�RQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�
� 86�'ROODU���������������� �� �� ������ � ��������� ������ � ��������

� ,QWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN

� )OXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�DQG�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV��JLYLQJ�ULVH�WR�LQWHUHVW�
rate risk.

� 7KH�GHEW� RI� WKH� JURXS� LV� FRPSULVHG�RI� GLǺHUHQW� LQVWUXPHQWV��ZKLFK� EHDU� LQWHUHVW� DW� HLWKHU� î[HG�RU� ïRDWLQJ�
LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��7KH�UDWLR�RI�î[HG�DQG�ïRDWLQJ�UDWH�LQVWUXPHQWV�LQ�WKH�ORDQ�SRUWIROLR�LV�PRQLWRUHG�DQG�PDQDJHG��
E\� LQFXUULQJ� HLWKHU� YDULDEOH� UDWH� EDQN� ORDQV�RU� î[HG� UDWH� ERQGV� DV� QHFHVVDU\�� ,QWHUHVW� UDWH� VZDSV� DUH� DOVR�
XVHG�ZKHUH�DSSURSULDWH�� LQ�RUGHU� WR�FRQYHUW�ERUURZLQJV� LQWR�HLWKHU�YDULDEOH�RU�î[HG�� LQ�RUGHU� WR�PDQDJH�WKH�
composition of the ratio. Interest rates on all borrowings compare favourably with those rates available in the 
market.

� 7KH�JURXS�SROLF\�ZLWK�UHJDUGV�WR�îQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��LV�WR�LQYHVW�FDVK�DW�ïRDWLQJ�UDWHV�RI�LQWHUHVW�DQG�WR�PDLQWDLQ�
cash reserves in short-term investments in order to maintain liquidity, while also achieving a satisfactory return 
for shareholders.

� 7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�VLJQLîFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�VLQFH�WKH�
prior reporting period.

 ,QWHUHVW�UDWH�SURîOH
� 7KH� LQWHUHVW� UDWH�SURîOH�RI� LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�îQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�DW� WKH�HQG�RI� WKH� UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�ZDV�DV�

follows:

      Note
� � � � � � ��������������������$YHUDJH�HǺHFWLYH� �� �&DUU\LQJ
� � � � � � ��������������������������LQWHUHVW�UDWH� �� ��DPRXQW
        
� *URXS� � � � � �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����

 Assets
 /RDQV�UHFHLYDEOH� �� �� ���� ������� � �������� �������� � �������
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� �� ���� ������ � ������� �������� � �������
� 6KRUW�WHUP�LQYHVWPHQWV� �� ���� ������ � ������� ������ � �����
            �������� � �������

 /LDELOLWLHV
� %RUURZLQJV� �� �� ���� ������ � ������� ���������� � ���������
� %RQGV�RXWVWDQGLQJ� �� �� ���� ������ � ������� �������� � �������
� %DQN�RYHUGUDIW� �� �� ���� ������ � ������� �������� � ������
            ���������� � ���������

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

    Note
� � � � � � �������������������$YHUDJH�HǺHFWLYH� �� �&DUU\LQJ
� � � � � � ��������������������������LQWHUHVW�UDWH� �� ��DPRXQW

� � � � � � �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
 Assets
� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV� �� ���� �� ������� � �������� �������� � ���������

� &RPSDQ\

 Assets
� /RDQV�UHFHLYDEOH� �� �� �� ������� � �������� �������� � �������
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� ���� �� ������ � ������� �������� � ������
� � � � � � �� � � �� �������� � �������

� /LDELOLWLHV
� %RUURZLQJV� �� ���� �� ������ � ������� ���������� � �������
� %RQGV�RXWVWDQGLQJ� �� ���� �� ������ � ������� �������� � �������
� %DQN�RYHUGUDIW� �� ���� �� ������ � ������� �������  99,607
            ���������� � ���������
 Assets
 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV� �� ���� �� ������� � �������� ���������� � ���������

� ,QWHUHVW�UDWH�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV

 The following sensitivity analysis has been prepared using a sensitivity rate which is used when reporting 
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the 
reasonably possible change in interest rates. All other variables remain constant. The sensitivity analysis 
LQFOXGHV�RQO\�îQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�H[SRVHG�WR�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�ZKLFK�ZHUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��
No changes were made to the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis 
compared to the previous reporting period.

� *URXS� � � � � �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����

� ,QFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�UDWH� � � �� ,QFUHDVH� � 'HFUHDVH�� ,QFUHDVH� � 'HFUHDVH

� ,PSDFW�RQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�HTXLW\�
� %RQGV�DQG�RWKHU�ERUURZLQJV��������������� �� ������� ����� ������� ���
� %DQN�RYHUGUDIW��������������� �� �� ������ ���� ������ ��
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��������������� �� ���� � ������� ���� � ������
� 6KRUW�WHUP�LQYHVWPHQWV��������������� �� �� � ����� �� � ����
� 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV��������������� �� �� ���� � ������� ���� � ������
� � � � � � �� ������� ����� ������� ���

� &RPSDQ\

� ,PSDFW�RQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�HTXLW\�
 %RQGV�DQG�RWKHU�ERUURZLQJV��������������� �� ��������� ������� ������� ���
� %DQN�RYHUGUDIW��������������� �� �� ������ ���� ������ ��
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��������������� �� ���� � ������� ��� � �����
 2WKHU�LQYHVWPHQWV��������������     437  (437 ) 520  (520 )
� � � � � � �� ������� ����� ������� ���
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��FRQWLQXHG��

� 3ULFH�ULVN

 The group is exposed to price risk because of its investments in equity instruments which are measured at fair 
YDOXH��7KH�H[SRVXUH�WR�SULFH�ULVN�RQ�HTXLW\�LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�PDQDJHG�WKURXJK�D�GLYHUVLîHG�SRUWIROLR�

� 7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�VLJQLîFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�SULFH�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�VLQFH�WKH�SULRU�
reporting period.

 Refer to note 13 for details on exposure to price risk.

� 3ULFH�ULVN�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV

 The following sensitivity analysis has been prepared using a sensitivity rate which is used when price risk 
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably 
possible change in relevant prices. All other variables remain constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only 
investments held at the reporting date. No changes were made to the methods and assumptions used in the 
preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous reporting period.

 *URXS�DQG�&RPSDQ\�� � � �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����

� ,QFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�UDWH� � � �� ,QFUHDVH� � 'HFUHDVH�� ,QFUHDVH� � 'HFUHDVH

 ,PSDFW�RQ�HTXLW\�
 Sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited shares 
� ���������������� �� �� �� ������� � ���������� ������� � ���������
� &UHVWD�0DUDNDQHOR�/LPLWHG�VKDUHV�����
� ������������ �� �� �� ������� � ���������� ������� � ���������
� *5,7�5HDO�(VWDWH�,QFRPH�*URXS�����������1LO�� �� ������ � ��������� �� � �
        ������� � ���������� �������� � ����������

 ,PSDFW�RQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV
� /HWOROH�/D�5RQD�/LPLWHG������������1LO�� �� ������� � ���������� �� � �
 7RWDO�LPSDFW�RQ�SURîW�RU�ORVV�DQG�HTXLW\� �� �������� � ����������� �������� � ����������

���� 6HJPHQWDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ

 The Group adopted IFRS 8, “Operating segments”. This has resulted in a number of reportable segments 
presented.

 In addition, segments are reported in a manner that is consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
operating decision maker.

 The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the 
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The company has determined that its chief decision 
maker is the Board of the Company.

 Management has determined the operating segments based in the reports reviewed by the Board in making 
strategic decisions and the board considers the business on the following operating decisions.

 - Property development companies (Rental) - Companies that let properties and occasionally sell properties
 - Trade companies (Trade) - Companies that operate within the  hospitality or manufacturing industries
 - Service companies (Service) - Companies that provide insurance or investment services (loans)
 - Other (Other) - All other entities in the group which mostly consists out of dormant enterprises and associates

���� 6HJPHQWDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ��FRQWLQXHG�

 The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for the year ended 30 June is as 
follows:

 ���-XQH������� � � � � 5HQWDO�� 7UDGH� � 2WKHU�� 6HUYLFHV� � 7RWDO

 Revenue     81,437  40,113  -  182,966  304,516
� 3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� �� �� ��������� ���������� ��� �������� � �������
 ,QFOXGHG�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�SURîW
 Finance cost     (5,016 ) (1,702 ) -  (91,253 ) (97,971 )
 Finance income     2,013  357  -  7,312  9,682
 Fair value gain on investment 
 properties     134,262  (6,663 ) -  -  127,599

 Intangible assets     -  52  -  2,813  2,865
 Cash and cash equivalents   52,934  9,150  59  405,735  467,878
 Non current assets held for sale   187,283  -  -  -  187,283
 
 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV� � � � � ��������� ������� � ����������� ���������� � ���������

 ���-XQH������
 Revenue     167,620  50,133  -  101,264  319,017
� 3URîW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� �� �� ��������� ���������� ������� ���������� ������
� ,QFOXGHG�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�SURîW
 Finance cost     (19,921 ) (1,565 ) -  (53,682 ) (75,168 )
 Finance income     2,086  552  -  10,936  13,574
 Equity accounted investees   1,623  -  18,751  -  20,374
 Fair value gain on investment property 42,929  (4,667 ) -  (45 ) 38,217
 7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH� � � ����������� ���������� ������� �������� � ������

 7RWDO�DVVHWV� � � � � ����������� �������� � ������� ���������� � ���������

 Equity accounted investees   39,620  -  -  201,139  240,759
 Intangible assets     -  96  -  2,731  2,827
 Cash and cash equivalents   296,465  3,002  14,326  171,093  484,886
 Non current assets held for sale   11,750  -  -  -  11,750

 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV� � � � � ��������� ������� � ������� ���������� � ���������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� 1HZ�6WDQGDUGV�DQG�,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV

����� 6WDQGDUGV�DQG�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�QRW�\HW�HǺHFWLYH

 The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published 
and are mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July, 2020 or later periods:

 'HîQLWLRQ�RI�D�EXVLQHVV���$PHQGPHQWV�WR�,)56��

 The amendment:
• �FRQîUPHG�WKDW�D�EXVLQHVV�PXVW� LQFOXGH� LQSXWV�DQG�D�SURFHVVHV��DQG�FODULîHG�WKDW�WKH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�

VXEVWDQWLYH�DQG�WKDW�WKH�LQSXWV�DQG�SURFHVV�PXVW�WRJHWKHU�VLJQLîFDQWO\�FRQWULEXWH�WR�FUHDWLQJ�RXWSXWV�
• �QDUURZHG� WKH� GHîQLWLRQV� RI� D� EXVLQHVV� E\� IRFXVLQJ� WKH� GHîQLWLRQ� RI� RXWSXWV� RQ� JRRGV� DQG� VHUYLFHV�

provided to customers and other income from ordinary activities, rather than on providing dividends or 
RWKHU�HFRQRPLF�EHQHîWV�GLUHFWO\�WR�LQYHVWRUV�RU�ORZHULQJ�FRVWV��DQG

•  added a test that makes it easier to conclude that a company has acquired a group of assets, rather than 
a business, if the value of the assets acquired is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of 
similar assets.

� 7KH�HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�LV�IRU�\HDUV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU����-DQXDU\�������

� 7KH�JURXS�H[SHFWV�WR�DGRSW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�IRU�WKH�îUVW�WLPH�LQ�WKH������îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� ,W�LV�XQOLNHO\�WKDW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�ZLOO�KDYH�D�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�JURXSªV�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

 3UHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��'LVFORVXUH�LQLWLDWLYH

� 7KH�DPHQGPHQW�FODULI\�DQG�DOLJQ�WKH�GHîQLWLRQ�RI�©PDWHULDOª�DQG�SURYLGH�JXLGDQFH�WR�KHOS�LPSURYH�FRQVLVWHQF\�
in the application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.

� 7KH�HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�LV�IRU�\HDUV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU����-DQXDU\�������

� 7KH�JURXS�H[SHFWV�WR�DGRSW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�IRU�WKH�îUVW�WLPH�LQ�WKH������îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� ,W�LV�XQOLNHO\�WKDW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�ZLOO�KDYH�D�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�JURXSªV�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

 $FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV��&KDQJHV�LQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�(VWLPDWHV�DQG�(UURUV��'LVFORVXUH�LQLWLDWLYH

� 7KH�DPHQGPHQW�FODULI\�DQG�DOLJQ�WKH�GHîQLWLRQ�RI�©PDWHULDOª�DQG�SURYLGH�JXLGDQFH�WR�KHOS�LPSURYH�FRQVLVWHQF\�
in the application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.

� 7KH�HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�LV�IRU�\HDUV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU����-DQXDU\�������

� 7KH�JURXS�H[SHFWV�WR�DGRSW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�IRU�WKH�îUVW�WLPH�LQ�WKH������îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� ,W�LV�XQOLNHO\�WKDW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�ZLOO�KDYH�D�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�JURXSªV�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
 
� ,)56����,QVXUDQFH�&RQWUDFWV

 The IFRS establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance 
contracts issued.

� 7KH�HǺHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�WKH�VWDQGDUG�LV�IRU�\HDUV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU����-DQXDU\�������

� 7KH�JURXS�H[SHFWV�WR�DGRSW�WKH�VWDQGDUG�IRU�WKH�îUVW�WLPH�LQ�WKH������îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� 7KH�JURXS�LV�XQDEOH�WR�UHOLDEO\�HVWLPDWH�WKH�LPSDFW�RI�WKH�VWDQGDUG�RQ�WKH�îQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

���� ([SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVHV

 ,PSDLUPHQW�ORVVHV�UHFRJQLVHG��UHYHUVHG��
� LQ�SURîW�DQG�ORVV�UHODWLQJ�WR�
 Investments in Subsidiaries     -  -  18,610  35,677

 Equity accounted investees     11,968  -  23,077  -

 Other investments       18,053  15,509  17,368  15,509

 Reversal of impairment     -  -  -  (144,207 ) 
 The reversal of impairment losses arises 
 mainly from a previously non-performing 
� ORDQ�RI�D������VXEVLGLDU\�WKDW�EHFDPH�
 recoverable due to the subsidiary’s improved 
� SURîWDELOLW\�DQG�UHVWUXFWXULQJ�RI�WKH�GHEW�� ��
        ������� � �������� ������� � ���������

���� &KDQJHV�LQ�OLDELOLWLHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�OLDELOLWLHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV���*URXS�������

  2SHQLQJ� � ,QWHUHVW� � )DLU�YDOXH� � 2WKHU� � 7RWDO� � &DVK� � &ORVLQJ
� � EDODQFH� � H[SHQVH� � FKDQJHV� � QRQ�� � QRQ�� � ïRZV� � EDODQFH
� � � � � � � � FDVK� � FDVK� � � �
� � � � � � � � PRYH�� � PRYH�
� � � � � � � � PHQWV� � PHQWV

 Borrowings 1,092,733  68,647  -  -  68,647  380,313  1,541,693
 Bonds 
 outstanding 345,504  29,610  (3,978 ) 5,123  30,755  (29,300 ) 346,959
 Government 
 grant 11,055  -  -  (356 ) (356 ) -  10,699
 Lease liabilities 2,522  -  -  (2,522 ) (2,522 ) -  -
 Dividends payable 10,299  -  -  9,701  9,701  (20,000 ) -
  ���������� � ������� � ��������� ������� � �������� � �������� ����������
� 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV�IURP�
� îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� ���������� � ������� � ��������� ������� � �������� � �������� ����������

� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�OLDELOLWLHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV���*URXS�������

 Borrowings 568,098  44,550  -  -  44,550  480,085  1,092,733
 Bonds outstanding 344,015  30,617  (4,425 ) 5,914  32,106  (30,617 ) 345,504
 Government grant 11,410  -  -  (355 ) (355 ) -  11,055
 Lease liabilities -  -  -  2,522  2,522  -  2,522
 Dividends payable 6,759  -  -  28,540  28,540  (25,000 ) 10,299
  �������� � ������� � ��������� ������� � �������� � �������� � ���������

� 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV�IURP�
� îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� �������� � ������� � ��������� ������� � �������� � �������� � ���������
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
     

���� &KDQJHV�LQ�OLDELOLWLHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV

 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�OLDELOLWLHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV���&RPSDQ\�������

  � � 2SHQLQJ� � ,QWHUHVW� � )DLU�YDOXH� � 7RWDO� � &DVK�ïRZV� � &ORVLQJ
� � � � EDODQFH� � H[SHQVH� � FKDQJHV� � QRQ�FDVK� � � � EDODQFH
� � � � � � � � PRYHPHQWV
        

 Borrowings   707,064  44,550  14,752  59,302  641,651  1,408,017
 Bonds outsanding   345,504  34,231  (3,476 ) 30,755  (29,300 ) 346,959
 Lease liabilities   178,496  -  -  -  (6,654 ) 171,842
    ���������� � ������� � ������� � ������� � �������� ����������

� 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV�IURP�
� îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � � ���������� � ������� � ������� � ������� � �������� ����������

 
� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�OLDELOLWLHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�îQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV���&RPSDQ\�������

� � 2SHQLQJ� � )RUHLJQ� � )DLU�YDOXH� � 2WKHU� � 7RWDO� � &DVK�ïRZV� � &ORVLQJ
� � EDODQFH� � H[FKDQJH� � FKDQJHV� � QRQ�FDVK� � QRQ�FDVK� � � � EDODQFH
� � � � PRYHPHQW� � � � PRYHPHQWV� � PRYHPHQWV� � � �
          
         

 Borrowings 205,851  1,213  -  -  1,213  500,000  707,064
 Bonds 
 outsanding 344,015  -  (4,871 ) 6,360  1,489  -  345,504
 Lease liabilities -  -  -  178,496  178,496  -  178,496
  �������� � ������ � ��������� �������� � �������� � �������� ����������

� 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV�
� IURP�îQDQFLQJ�
� DFWLYLWLHV� �������� � ������ � ��������� �������� � �������� � �������� ����������

���� 'LUHFWRUVª�HPROXPHQWV

 P171 900 (2019: P125 100) directors fees were paid to the non-executive directors or any individuals holding a 
SUHVFULEHG�RǸFH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�

 ([HFXWLYH
 
� ����

� � � � � � �(PROXPHQWV� � � 2WKHU�� &RPSHQ�� � 7RWDO�
� � � � � � �� � � EHQHîWV
�� VDWLRQ
� � � � � � �� � � �� IRU�ORVV
� � � � � � �� � � �� RI�RǸFH

 Directors emoluments     320  504  2,468  3,292

� ����

� � � � � �(PROXPHQWV�� 2WKHU� � &RPSHQ��� 'LUHFWRUªV� � 7RWDO�
� � � � � � �� EHQHîWV
� � VDWLRQ�� IHHV
� � � � � � �� � � IRU�ORVV
� � � � � � �� � � RI�RǸFH

 Directors emoluments   1,238  839  721  7  2,805
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� �� ���*URXS� ���������������������������&RPSDQ\

)LJXUHV�LQ�3XOD�WKRXVDQG� �� ����� � ������ ����� � ����
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